TOWN OF SUNNYVALE
SUNNYVALE TOWN COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, MAY 13, 2019
TOWN HALL - 127 N. COLLINS RD.
7:00 pm
INVOCATION
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Mayor calls the Meeting to order, state the date and time. State Councilmembers present and
declare a quorum present.

PUBLIC FORUM
Citizens may speak on any matter other than personnel matters or matters under litigation. No Town
Council actions or discussion will be taken until such matter is placed on the agenda and posted in
accordance with law.

RECOGNITIONS
A. Recognition of Deputy Greenlee for his efforts in successfully organizing the first
annual Bike Rodeo.
DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:
TOWN SECRETARY
1.

Discuss, consider and act upon Resolution 19-15: a Resolution of the Town Council
of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, canvassing returns and declaring results of the
Special Election held on May 4, 2019, for the purpose of electing one Councilmember
Place 6 and voting on six propositions; and providing a severability clause.

2.

The Oath of Office will be administered to Mayor George, Councilmember Finch,
Councilmember Clark and Councilmember Freeman by Representative Rhetta
Bowers.

3.

Discuss, consider and act upon electing a Councilmember to serve as Mayor ProTem.

4.

Discuss, consider and act upon Resolution 19-16: A Resolution of the Town Council
of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, adopting Rules of Procedure for the Town Council
of Sunnyvale, Texas.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 5 THROUGH 7:

All items on the consent agenda are routine items and may be approved with one motion; should
any member of the Town Council or any individual wish to discuss any item, said item may be
removed from the consent agenda by motion of the Town Council.

5.

Consider approval of minutes for the regular meeting of the Town Council for April 22,
2019.

6.

Act upon the second reading of Ordinance 19-12; an ordinance of the Town of
Sunnyvale, Texas, adopting the Town's Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and
Appointed Officials; repealing all prior ordinances or resolutions related to the
adoption of the Town's Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed
Officials; and providing an effective date.

7.

Act upon Resolution 19-17: A Resolution of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas finding
that Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC'S application for approval to amend its
distribution cost recovery factor pursuant to 16 Texas Admin. Code § 25.243 to
increase distribution rates withing the Town should be denied; finding that the
Town's reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by the company; finding
that the meeting at which this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required
by law; requiring notice of this Resolution to the company and legal counsel.

PUBLIC HEARING
Open or continue public hearing, consider testimony and other information provided, close public
hearing, and take necessary action with respect to the following:

8.

Hold a public hearing, discuss, consider and act upon a request by Zeb Fish, to
approve a Replat for the Stoney Creek 5A, Lot 5R, Block B at or about 495 Bufflehead
Court.

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
9.

Discuss, consider and act upon a request by Ezequiel and Fabiola Cortez to approve
a Minor Plat for the Tripp Addition, Lot 1, Block A at or about 353 East Tripp Road.

10. Discuss, consider and act upon a request by Ronny Jones to approve an amended
site plan for Hope Church at or about 620 U.S. Highway 80.
FIRE DEPARTMENT
11. Discuss, consider and act upon authorizing the Town Manager to execute a Letter of
Intent between the Town of Sunnyvale and City of Mesquite to explore the feasibility
of contracting with the City of Mesquite for Fire/EMS dispatching services.
FINANCE
12. Discuss, consider and act upon the Independent Auditor's Report on financial
statements.

TOWN MANAGER
13. Discuss, consider and act upon a development agreement with TF Stoneycreek, LP
to provide for funding and construction of a portion of roadway connecting Hounsel
Lane and Nance Road.
MAYOR AND COUNCIL
14. Mayor and Council requests for future staff updates and agenda items.
ADJOURN
ALL LOCATIONS IDENTIFIED ARE IN THE TOWN OF SUNNYVALE UNLESS OTHERWISE
INDICATED. FOR A DETAILED PROPERTY DESCRIPTION, PLEASE CONTACT THE
BUILDING OFFICIAL AT TOWN HALL. ALL ITEMS ON THE AGENDA ARE FOR POSSIBLE
DISCUSSION AND ACTION. PLEASE TURN OFF ALL TELEPHONES AND HANDHELD
COMMUNICATION DEVICES WHILE IN ATTENDANCE AT THIS MEETING.
THE SUNNYVALE TOWN COUNCIL RESERVES THE RIGHT TO ADJOURN INTO EXECUTIVE
SESSION AT ANY TIME DURING THE COURSE OF THIS MEETING TO DISCUSS ANY OF THE
MATTERS LISTED ABOVE, AS AUTHORIZED BY TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY), 551.072 (DELIBERATION ABOUT REAL
PROPERTY), 551.073 (DELIBERATIONS ABOUT GIFTS AND DONATIONS), 551.074
(PERSONNEL MATTERS), 551.076 (DELIBERATIONS ABOUT SECURITY DEVICES), AND
551.087 (ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT).
THE TOWN OF SUNNYVALE IS COMMITTED TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT (ADA). REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS AND EQUAL ACCESS TO
COMMUNICATIONS WILL BE PROVIDED TO THOSE WHO PROVIDE NOTICE TO THE
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES AT (972)226–7177 AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO
THE MEETING.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING NOTICE WAS POSTED ON MAY 9, 2019, IN
THE FOLLOWING LOCATION AND REMAINED SO POSTED CONTINUOUSLY FOR AT
LEAST 72 HOURS PRECEDING THE SCHEDULED TIME OF SAID MEETING:
TOWN HALL AT 127 N. COLLINS ROAD

RACHEL RAMSEY, TOWN SECRETARY

Town of Sunnyvale
1.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Rachel Ramsey, Town
Secretary
Summary:
Discuss, consider and act upon Resolution 19-15: a Resolution of the Town
Council of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, canvassing returns and declaring
results of the Special Election held on May 4, 2019, for the purpose of electing
one Councilmember Place 6 and voting on six propositions; and providing a
severability clause.
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Background & Analysis:
The Texas Election Code requires the Town Council to canvass the votes of the May 4,
2019, Town Council election not prior to May 7, but not after May 15.

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

Attachments:
• Resolution 19-15

RESOLUTION 19-15
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS,
CANVASSING RETURNS AND DECLARING RESULTS OF THE SPECIAL ELECTION HELD ON
MAY 4, 2019, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING ONE TOWN COUNCIL MEMBER PLACE 6
AND VOTING ON SIX PROPOSITIONS; AND PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.
WHEREAS, on February 11, 2019, the Town Council ordered that a Special Election be held
on May 4, 2019, for the purpose of electing one Town Council Member Place 6; and
WHEREAS, notice of this election was duly published in The Mesquite News; and
WHEREAS, a copy of the notice was posted on the bulletin board at Town Hall; and
WHEREAS, this election was duly and legally held on May 4, 2019, in conformity with the
election laws of the State of Texas, and the results of the election have been certified and returned by
the proper judges and clerks; and
WHEREAS, the Town Council, of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, has today considered the
returns of the Special Election held on May 4, 2019; and
WHEREAS, it appears to the Council, and the Council finds, that the election was in all
respects lawfully held; and
WHEREAS, it appears to the Council, and Council finds, that the tabulation of the results of the
election is correct;
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
SUNNYVALE, TEXAS:
SECTION 1. The Special Election of May 4, 2019, was duly called, notice of the election was
given in accordance with law, and the election was held in accordance with law.
SECTION 2. The tabulation of votes cast in the Special Election held on May 4, 2019, for the
purposes stated above, a copy of which is attached to and made a part of this resolution, is adopted
as the official tabulation of the votes cast at the election, and the tabulation will be filed and recorded
in the official records of the Town of Sunnyvale as the official canvass of the election.
SECTION 3. The official canvass of the returns of the election reflects the following:
For Town Council Member Place 6:
Emery Powell

63

12.78%

Jared Tolleson

51

10.34%

Jonathan C. Freeman

379

76.88%

For

389

75.83%

Against

124

24.17%

421

82.39%

90

17.61%

For

360

74.07%

Against

126

25.93%

428

88.43%

56

11.57%

451

89.84%

51

10.16%

380

82.61%

80

17.39%

For Proposition A:

For Proposition B:
For
Against

For Proposition C:

For Proposition D:
For
Against

For Proposition E:
For
Against

For Proposition F:
For
Against

SECTION 4. That Jonathan C. Freeman received a majority of the votes and is elected to serve as
Town Council Member Place 6.
SECTION 5. That Proposition A received a majority of the votes for and passed.
SECTION 6. That Proposition B received a majority of the votes for and passed.
SECTION 7. That Proposition C received a majority of the votes for and passed.
SECTION 8. That Proposition D received a majority of the votes for and passed.
SECTION 9. That Proposition E received a majority of the votes for and passed.
SECTION 10. That Proposition F received a majority of the votes for and passed.
SECTION 11. That if any part or parts of this Resolution are found to be invalid or unconstitutional by
a court having competent jurisdiction, then such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the
remaining parts hereof and such remaining parts shall remain in full force and effect, and to that
extent this resolution is considered severable.
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 13th day of May, 2019.

______________________________
Saji George, Mayor
ATTEST:

_____________________________
Rachel Ramsey, Town Secretary

Town of Sunnyvale
3.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Rachel Ramsey, Town
Secretary
Summary:
Discuss, consider and act upon electing a Councilmember to serve as Mayor
Pro-Tem.
Staff Recommendation:
None.

Background & Analysis:
The Home Rule Charter states the Mayor Pro-Tem shall be a Councilmember elected
by the Town Council. Following each regular Town election and any applicable run-off
election, and at the first regular Town Council meeting when the newly elected
members of the Town Council are sworn and seated, the Town Council SHALL elect
the Mayor Pro-Tem. The Mayor Pro-Tem shall act as Mayor during the absence or
disability of the Mayor, and when doing so, shall have the rights conferred upon the
Mayor.
Section 3.06 of the Town Charter required that a vacancy in the Mayor's position be
filled by special election within one hundred twenty (120) days, however the Home Rule
Charter Committee recommended revising Section 3.06 of the Charter by adding a
new subsection for filling a Mayoral vacancy by appointment. This recommendation
was presented to the residents of Sunnyvale as Proposition A on the May 4, 2019
Special Election Ballot and passed. As a result, Section 3.06 of the Charter will be
amended to allow Town Council to appoint as the new Mayor a person that consents in
the following order: (i) Mayor Pro-Tem; (ii) Town Councilmember, and (iii) any person
qualified for office under the Charter.

Fiscal Impact:
None.

Attachments:
• Section 3.04 (B) of Town Charter addressing Mayor Pro-Tem

Town of Sunnyvale
4.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Rachel Ramsey, Town
Secretary
Summary:
Discuss, consider and act upon Resolution 19-16: A Resolution of the Town
Council of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, adopting Rules of Procedure for the
Town Council of Sunnyvale, Texas.
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Background & Analysis:
On April 8, 2019, Ethics Committee Chairperson Charles Anderson reported to
Council the Ethics Committee's recommended changes to the Town's Code of Ethics.
During that report he noted that the Ethics Committee suggested that the Town Council
adopt Rules of Procedure. Charles, the Committee's and Staff recommendations are
attached.

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

Attachments:
• Resolution 19-16 & Exhibit A

MINUTES
TOWN OF SUNNYVALE
SUNNYVALE TOWN COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, APRIL 22, 2019
TOWN HALL - 127 N. COLLINS RD.
7:00 PM

INVOCATION – PASTER DON IVY LED THE INVOCATION
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – MAYOR GEORGE LED THE PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE
CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Mayor calls the Meeting to order, state the date and time. State Councilmembers
present and declare a quorum present.
Mayor George called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. and stated Councilmember
Egan, Councilmember Clark, Mayor George and Councilmember Allen were present
while Mayor Pro-Tem Wade and Councilmember Finch were absent.
Town staff members present were Town Manager Susan Guthrie, Town Secretary
Rachel Ramsey, Finance Director Liz Hopkins, Director of Development Services
Rashad Jackson, Economic Development Director Traci Anderson, Public Works
Director Bryan Creed, Sergeant Scott Evans, Town Planner Erick del Angel and Town
Attorney David Dodd.
PROCLAMATION
A.

Proclamation by Mayor George recognizing May 6-10, 2019
as National Economic Development Week in the Town of
Sunnyvale.

Mayor George read and issued a Proclamation recognizing May 6-10, 2019 as National
Economic Development Week in the Town of Sunnyvale.
PUBLIC FORUM
Citizens may speak on any matter other than personnel matters or matters under
litigation. No Town Council actions or discussion will be taken until such matter is
placed on the agenda and posted in accordance with law.

Town Manager Susan Guthrie recognized Bryan Creed as the Town’s new Public
Works Director effective April 25, 2019.
Councilmember Egan reminded citizens that early voting began April 22, 2019 and
encouraged citizens to get out to vote and make informed decisions on the Home Rule
Charter propositions.
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1 THROUGH 4:
All items on the consent agenda are routine items and may be approved with one motion;
should any member of the Town Council or any individual wish to discuss any item, said
item may be removed from the consent agenda by motion of the Town Council.
1.

Department Monthly Reports - March 2019

2.

Consider approval of minutes for the regular meeting of the
Town Council for April 8, 2019.

3.

Act upon the first reading of Ordinance 19-12; an ordinance
of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, adopting the Town's Code
of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials;
repealing all prior ordinances or resolutions related to the
adoption of the Town's Code of Ethics and Conduct for
Elected and Appointed Officials; and providing an effective
date.

4.

Act upon the second reading of Ordinance 19-10; an
Ordinance amending Ordinance 18-16, which made
appropriations for the support of the Town of Sunnyvale for
the fiscal year beginning Oct. 1, 2018 and ending Sept. 30,
2019; and amending the annual budget of the Town of
Sunnyvale for the 2018-2019 fiscal year.

Mayor George removed item number four from the consent agenda.
Councilmember Clark made a motion to approve consent agenda items one, two and
three as presented, seconded by Councilmember Allen. Mayor George called for a vote
and with all members voting affirmative, motion passed 4/0.
Mayor George opened the floor for public comment for item four and with no one
coming forward, Mayor George closed the floor to public comment.
Councilmember Egan made a motion to approve Ordinance 19-10 as presented,
seconded by Councilmember Clark. Mayor George called for a vote and with all
members voting affirmative, motion passed 4/0.

PUBLIC HEARING
Open or continue public hearing, consider testimony and other information provided,
close public hearing, and take necessary action with respect to the following:
5.

Hold a public hearing, discuss, consider and act upon the
second reading of the Sunnyvale Center Truck Service and
Park Planned Development Ordinance 19-11: PD-04; a
request by David Jackson, The Jackson Company, to
change the Town Zoning Map from Industrial to Industrial –
Planned Development (Sunnyvale Center Truck Service and
Park) at or about 326-330 Clay Road.

David Jackson, 8216 Tanglerose Drive, Frisco, Texas, was available to answer any
questions from the Council.
Mayor George opened the public hearing and with no one coming forward, Mayor
George closed the public hearing.
Councilmember Egan made a motion to approve Ordinance 19-11:PD-04 as presented,
seconded by Councilmember Allen. Mayor George called for a vote and with all
members voting affirmative, motion passed 4/0.
DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:
TOWN ENGINEER
6.

Discuss, consider and act upon Resolution 19-14; a
Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Sunnyvale,
Texas, awarding the construction contract for the Collins
Road Capital Improvement Project (CIP) from U.S. Highway
80 to Tripp Road to Glenn Thurman, Inc.

Item was removed from the agenda and not discussed.
MAYOR AND COUNCIL
7.

Mayor and Council requests for future staff updates and
agenda items.

Councilmember Allen requested that we monitor construction work on holidays.
Councilmember Allen stated there were houses being framed on Easter.
ADJOURN
Mayor George adjourned the meeting at 7:37 p.m.

The undersigned presiding officer certifies that this is a true and correct record of the
proceedings.

___________________________
Mayor Saji George
ATTEST:
___________________________
Rachel Ramsey, Town Secretary

Town of Sunnyvale
6.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Rachel Ramsey, Town
Secretary
Summary:
Act upon the second reading of Ordinance 19-12; an ordinance of the Town of
Sunnyvale, Texas, adopting the Town's Code of Ethics and Conduct for
Elected and Appointed Officials; repealing all prior ordinances or resolutions
related to the adoption of the Town's Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected
and Appointed Officials; and providing an effective date.
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Background & Analysis:
In October 2018, the Town Council defined the scope for an Ethics Review Committee
and appointed citizens to serve on that committee. The Ethics Committee was
charged with reviewing the Town's current Code of Ethics and presenting any
recommended changes to the Town Council. On April 8, 2019, Chairperson Anderson
presented the committee's recommended changes to the Town Council. This
ordinance repeals all ordinances and/or resolutions previously passed that adopted
the Town's Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials. First
reading of Ordinance 19-12 was held on April 22, 2019.

Fiscal Impact:
$1,042.00 in Legal fees from currently budgeted funds.

Attachments:
• Ordinance 19-12 Code of Ethics
• Code of Ethics Final
• Code of Ethics Redlined

ORDINANCE 19-12
TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS, ADOPTING THE TOWN’S
CODE OF ETHICS AND CONDUCT FOR ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS;
REPEALING ALL PRIOR ORDINANCES OR RESOLUTIONS RELATED TO THE
ADOPTION OF THE TOWN’S CODE OF ETHICS AND CONDUCT FOR ELECTED
AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, in October 2018 the Town Council defined the scope for an Ethics
Review Committee and appointed citizens to serve on that committee.
WHEREAS, the Ethics Review Committee met from November 2018 through
March 2019 and provided their recommendations to the Town Council on April 8, 2019;
and
WHEREAS, it is important that the public have confidence in the integrity of its
government; and
WHEREAS, the proper operation of government requires that Town Officers be
independent and impartial and that governmental decisions and policy be made within
the proper channels of the governmental structure; and
WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, desires to adopt
a policy to govern the actions of public officials and to memorialize the official’s dedication
and service to the citizens of the Town; and
WHEREAS the Town Council by this Ordinance adopts a Code of Ethics and
Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials and hereby memorializes that desire by the
adoption of this ordinance.
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF SUNNYVALE, THAT:
Section 1. The revised Ethics Policy attached as Exhibit A is hereby adopted in its
entirety.
Section 2. All prior Ordinances and Resolutions related to the adoption of the Town’s
Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected or Appointed Officials are repealed, including but
not limited to Resolution 13-12.
Section 3. This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its passage.
Introduced and read at the Town Council meeting on April 22, 2019.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, on
this the 13th day of May, 2019.

__________________________
Saji George, Mayor
ATTEST:
________________________
Rachel Ramsey, Town Secretary

CODE OF ETHICS AND CONDUCT
FOR
ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS OF THE
TOWN OF SUNNYVALE
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POLICY PURPOSE
The Sunnyvale Town Council has adopted this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials in an effort to provide
guidelines for which members of the Town’s Council, Boards and Commissions to assure public confidence in the integrity of local
government through effective and fair operation. Town staff and employees shall be mindful of this Code as more particularly
implemented by the Personnel Policies of the Town in order that they also will serve to assure public confidence in the integrity as
well as the effective and fair operation of the Town’s government.

A. GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Confidential information - any information to which an Elected or Appointed Official (EAO) is privy to through official capacity,
which may not be disclosed to the public except pursuant to state and/or federal law and which is not otherwise a matter of public
record or public knowledge. Confidential information includes the following information, however transmitted: (i) any information
from a meeting closed to the public pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act or other law regardless of whether disclosure violates
the Texas Open Meetings Act or Texas Public Information Act; (ii) any information protected by attorney client, attorney work
product, or other applicable legal privilege; and (iii) any information deemed confidential by law.
Elected and Appointed Officials (EAO) – Members of the Town Council, Town Boards, Commissions, Committees and Town Manager
Gift- anything of value, regardless of form, offered or given in the absence of adequate and lawful consideration. It does not include
the receipt or acceptance of campaign contributions, which are regulated by federal, state, and/or local laws or ordinance.
Relative - any person related to an officer within the second degree by consanguinity or affinity. This relationship includes the
spouse, parents, children, stepchildren, father and mother-in-law, or son and daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, sisters
and brothers of the EAO.
Substantial financial interest - means (i) the ownership of ten (10) percent or more of the voting stock or shares of a business entity;
(ii) the ownership of ten (10) percent or more, or fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) or more of the fair market value of a business
entity; or (iii) funds received from the business entity exceed ten (10) percent of the person's gross income for the previous year,
and action on the matter involving the business entity will have a special economic effect on the business entity that is
distinguishable from the effect on the public. It is expressly provided herein that an investment or ownership in a publicly held
company, in an amount less than fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) does not constitute a substantial interest. Substantial
interest in real property means the person has an interest in the real property that is equitable or legal ownership with a fair market
value of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) or more; and it is reasonably foreseeable that an action on a matter involving
the real property will have a special economic effect on the value of the real property distinguishable from its effect on the public.
(Ownership includes any partnership, joint or corporate ownership or any equitable or beneficial interest as a beneficiary of a trust.)
A Member is considered to have a substantial interest under this Ethics Policy if a person related to the Member in the second
degree of consanguinity or affinity has a substantial interest under this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed
Officials. Subject to change based upon Section 171.002 of Texas Local Government code

B. ETHICS
The citizens and businesses of Sunnyvale are entitled to have a fair, ethical and accountable local government that has earned the
public’s full confidence for integrity.
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To this end, the Sunnyvale Town Council has adopted this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials (“Code of
Ethics and Conduct”) for all EAOs to assure public confidence in the integrity of local government and its effective and fair operation.
1. Express Prohibitions—the following prohibitions apply to all EAO’s, and, for purposes of Section 3.06(B)(2) of the Town Charter,
shall be considered Express Prohibitions:
1.
2.

Bribery
Release of Confidential Information to the detriment of the Town: EAO shall respect the confidentiality of information
concerning the property, personnel, or affairs of the Town. They shall neither disclose confidential information without
proper legal authorization, nor use such information to advance their personal, financial, political or other private interests.
This includes matters discussed in executive sessions or obtained through official capacity which are not public knowledge.
3. Conflict of interest accordance with state law: No EAO or employee of the Town or a relative thereof shall:
a. Have an undisclosed financial interest in any contract, job, work, or service of or to the Town, or the sale to the Town of
any supplies, equipment, material, or real or personal property.
b.

Participate in a vote or decision on any matter in which the officer has a substantial personal or financial interest.

c.

Act or serve as surety for the performance of any person doing business with the Town or as surety for any Town officer or
employee required to make a surety bond.

d.

Accept any gift from any person that might reasonably tend to influence such EAO or officer in the discharge of such
person's official duties. The prohibition against gifts shall not apply to:
i. A lawful campaign contribution;
ii. An honorarium in consideration for services unless the officer would not have been asked to provide the services
but for the officer's position;
iii. Meals, lodging, transportation in connection with services rendered by the EAO at a conference, seminar or similar
event that the EAO is providing services or is more than merely perfunctory;
iv. Complimentary copies of trade publications and other related promotional materials;
v. Attendance at hospitality functions at local, regional, state or national association meetings and/or conferences;
vi. Any gift or occasional item with value less than fifty dollars ($50.00);
vii. Gifts on account of kinship, personal, professional, or business relationship independent of the officer's status, in
accordance with state law; and,
viii. Complimentary attendance at political or charitable fund-raising events.

4.
5.

2.

Repeated or multiple violations of any Town policy or provisions of the ethics code
Actions that interfere with the Town Staff’s ability to operate, violations of Chapter 36, sexual harassment, and physical
violence

Act in the Public Interest. Recognizing that stewardship of the public interest must be their primary concern, Elected and
Appointed Officials (EAO) will work for the common good of the people of Sunnyvale and not for any private or personal
interest, and they will assure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and transactions coming before the Sunnyvale Town
Council, boards and commissions.
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3.

Comply with both the spirit and the letter of the law and Town policy. Members of the Town Council and the Town’s boards
and commissions shall comply with the laws of the nation, the State of Texas and the Town of Sunnyvale in the performance of
their public duties. These laws include, but are not limited to: the United States and Texas Constitutions; State laws pertaining
to conflicts of interest, election campaigns, financial disclosures, employer responsibilities, offenses against public
administration (Chapter 36 of the Texas Penal Code) and open processes of government; and Town Charter, ordinances and
policies.

4.

Conduct of Elected and Appointed Officials (“EAO”). EAO shall refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks
upon the character or motives of other members of Council, boards and commissions, the staff, or public.

5.

Respect for Process. EAO shall perform their duties in accordance with the processes and rules of order established or practiced
by the Town Council and boards and commissions governing the deliberation of public policy issues, meaningful involvement of
the public, and implementation of policy decisions of the Town Council by Town staff.

6.

Conduct of Public Meetings. EAO shall prepare themselves for public issues; listen courteously and attentively to all public
discussions before the body; and focus on the business at hand. They shall refrain from interrupting other speakers; making
personal comments not germane to the business of the body; attempting to monopolize the discussion at public meetings; or
otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct of meetings.

7.

Decisions Based on Merit. EAO shall base their decisions on the merits and substance of the matter at hand, rather than on
unrelated considerations.

8.

Communication. EAO shall publicly disclose substantive information that is relevant to a matter under consideration by the
Town Council or boards and commissions, which they may have received from sources outside of the public decision-making
process.

9.

Use of Public Resources. EAO shall not use public resources not available to the public in general, such as staff time,
equipment, supplies or facilities, for private gain or personal, political purposes. EAOs desiring use of such Town resources for
public meetings shall first obtain permission from a majority of the Council at a duly called, posted Council meeting.

10. Representation of Private Interests. In keeping with their role as stewards of the public interest, members of Council shall not
appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties before the Council or any board, commission or proceeding of the
Town, nor shall members of boards and commissions appear before their own bodies or before the Council on behalf of the
private interests of third parties on matters related to the areas of service of their bodies, nor voluntarily participate on behalf
of others in any litigation to which the Town is, or might be, an adverse party.
11. Advocacy. EAO shall represent the official policies or positions of the Town Council, board or commission to the best of their
ability when designated as delegates for this purpose. When presenting their individual opinions and positions, EAO shall
explicitly state they do not represent their body or the Town of Sunnyvale, nor will they allow the inference that they do.
12. Policy Role of EAO. EAO shall respect and adhere to the council-manager structure of Sunnyvale Town government as outlined
by the Sunnyvale Town Charter. In this structure, the Town Council determines the policies of the Town with the advice,
information and analysis provided by the public, boards and commissions, and Town staff. Except as provided by the Town
Charter, EAO shall not interfere with the administrative functions of the Town or the professional duties of Town staff; nor shall
they impair the ability of staff to implement Council policy decisions.
13. Independence of boards and commissions. Because of the value of the independent advice of boards and commissions to the
public decision-making process, members of Council shall refrain from using their position to unduly influence the deliberations
or outcomes of board and commission proceedings.
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14. Non-Interference. EAO shall not intervene in personnel or Municipal Court matters.
15. Purchasing. EAOs shall adhere to the same Town purchasing policy as utilized by Town staff.
16. Positive Work Place Environment. EAO shall support the maintenance of a positive and constructive work place environment
for Town employees and for citizens and businesses dealing with the Town. EAO shall recognize their special role in dealings
with Town employees so in no way do they create the perception of inappropriate direction to staff.

C. CONDUCT
The Town Charter provides detailed information on the roles and responsibilities of members of the Sunnyvale Town Council, the
Mayor Pro Tem, and the Mayor. The Town’s Code of Ethics and Conduct provides guidance on ethical issues and questions of right
and wrong.
This Code of Ethics and Conduct is designed to describe the manner in which EAOs should treat one another, Town staff, citizens,
and others they come into contact with in representing the Town of Sunnyvale.
The constant and consistent theme through all of the conduct guidelines is "respect." EAOs experience huge workloads and
tremendous stress in making decisions that could impact thousands of lives. Despite these pressures, elected and appointed officials
are called upon to exhibit appropriate behavior at all times. Demonstrating respect for each individual through words and actions is
the touchstone that can help guide EAOs to do the right thing in even the most difficult situations.
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COUNCILMEMBER ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Please refer to the Town Charter

GENERAL POLICIES AND PROTOCOL
Ceremonial Events
Invitations addressed to Councilmembers shall be shared with the Town Secretary’s Office in order to assure posting for compliance
with the Texas Open Meetings Act, if applicable.
Travel Expenses
All Council travel in which the Councilmember expects to officially represent the Town and be reimbursed by the Town for travel
costs, should be disclosed to the Mayor, Town Council, and Town Manager in advance. The travel budget for Council shall be
reviewed at each annual budget cycle.
Rules of Order for Meetings
Unless and until the Council or Boards and Committees shall adopt a set of Rules and Procedures for the conduct of meetings, the
presiding officer shall determine the most reasonable and orderly way to conduct meetings subject to review and approval, on
proper motion, by a majority of the Council or Board or Committee in attendance at the meeting.
Non-agenda Items (Public Forum)
During a designated period of the agenda, referred to as “Public Forum,” citizens may bring forth issues or questions that are not on
the meeting’s agenda. Each citizen may be limited to three minutes unless otherwise directed by the Mayor (Council meetings) or
Chair (board/commission meetings).
Public Forum may not be used as a forum to make personal attacks against individual citizens, Town employees or Councilmembers.
Such remarks will result in the speaker being asked to step back from the podium and a forfeiture of the remaining time to speak.
Public hearings
EAO will not express opinions during the public hearing portion of the meeting except to ask pertinent questions of the speaker or
staff. "I think" and "I feel" comments by EAO are not appropriate until after the close of the public hearing. EAO should refrain from
arguing or debating with the public during a public hearing and shall always show respect for different points of view.
Appeal Protocol
The applicant or appellant shall have the right to speak first. The Mayor or Chair will determine the length of time allowed for this
presentation. Speakers representing either pro or con points of view will be allowed to follow. The Mayor or Chair will determine
how much time will be allowed for each speaker, with 3 minutes the standard time granted. The applicant or appellant will be
allowed to make closing comments. The Mayor or Chair has the responsibility to run an efficient public meeting and has the
discretion to modify the public hearing process in order to make the meeting run smoothly.
EAO CONDUCT WITH ONE ANOTHER
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EAO are composed of individuals with a wide variety of backgrounds, personalities, values, opinions, and goals. All have chosen to
serve in public office to preserve and protect the interests of the community. In all cases, this common goal should be acknowledged
even though individuals may "agree to disagree" on contentious issues.

IN PUBLIC MEETINGS
Use formal titles
EAO should refer to one another formally during public meetings, such as Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, Chair, Commissioner or
Councilmember followed by the individual’s last name.
Practice civility and decorum in discussions and debate
Difficult questions, challenges to a particular point of view, and criticism of ideas and information are legitimate elements of a free
democracy in action. This does not allow EAO to make belligerent, personal, impertinent, slanderous, threatening, abusive, or
disparaging comments. No shouting or physical actions that could be construed as threatening will be tolerated.
Honor the role of the Chair in maintaining order
It is the responsibility of the Chair to keep the comments of EAO on track during public meetings. EAO should honor efforts by the
Chair to focus discussion on current agenda items. If there is disagreement about the agenda or the Chair’s actions, those objections
should be voiced politely and with reason, following procedures outlined in parliamentary procedure.
Avoid personal comments that could offend other EAO
If a member is personally offended by the remarks of another member, the offended member should make notes of the actual
words used and call for a "point of personal privilege" that challenges the other member to justify or apologize for the language
used. The Chair will maintain control of this discussion.
Demonstrate effective problem-solving approaches
EAO have a public stage to show how individuals with disparate points of view can find common ground and seek a compromise that
benefits the community as a whole. Although a board or commission may disagree with the final decision the Council makes, the
board or commission shall not act in any manner contrary to the established policy adopted by the Council.

IN PRIVATE ENCOUNTERS
Continue respectful behavior in private
The same level of respect and consideration of differing points of view that is deemed appropriate for public discussions should be
maintained in private conversations.
Be aware of the insecurity of written notes, voicemail messages, and E-mail
Technology allows words written or said without much forethought to be distributed wide and far. Written notes, voicemail
messages and e-mail should be treated as "public" communication.
Even private conversations can have a public presence
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Elected and appointed officials are always on display - their actions, mannerisms, and language are monitored by people around
them that they may not know. Lunch table conversations will be eaves-dropped upon, parking lot debates will be watched, and
casual comments between individuals before and after public meetings noted and may be subject to the Open Meetings Act.
CONDUCT WITH TOWN ST AFF
Governance of a Town relies on the cooperative efforts of elected officials, who set policy; appointed officials who advise the
elected, and Town staff, who implement and administer the Council’s policies. Therefore, every effort should be made to be
cooperative and show mutual respect for the contributions made by each individual for the good of the community.
Treat all staff as professionals
Clear, honest communication that respects the abilities, experience, and dignity of each individual is expected. Poor behavior
towards staff is not acceptable.
EAO questions/inquiries to Town staff
1.

Town Manager has the ability to assign members of Town staff to support the Town’s Commissions, Boards and Town Council.
The EAOs will utilize this designated Town Staff member for all communications, requests, meetings and inquiries related to the
duties of the EAOs position. EAOs cannot provide direction for town staff, EAOs can only contact the Town Manager and
designated Town Staff Member support person assigned to the commission, board or council for matters related to the
respective EAO role.

2.

EAOs shall not use town staff to accomplish purposes outside the EAOs responsibilities.

3.

Routine requests for Information and Inquiries. EAO may contact staff directly for information made readily available to the
general public on a regular basis (e.g., “What are the library’s hours of operation?” or “How does one reserve a tee time at the
golf course?”). Under these circumstances staff shall treat the EAO no differently than they would the general public, and the
EAO shall not use their elected or appointed status to secure preferential treatment. The Town Manager does not need to be
advised of such contacts.

4.

Non-Routine Requests for Readily Available Information. EAO may also contact staff directly for easily retrievable information
not routinely requested by the general public so long as it does not require staff to discuss the issue or express an opinion (e.g.,
“How many traffic lights are there in the Town?” or “Under what circumstances does the Town lower its flags to half-mast?”).

5.

Non-Routine Requests Requiring Special Effort. Any EAO request or inquiry that requires staff to compile information that is not
readily available or easily retrievable and/or that requests staff to express an opinion (legal or otherwise) shall be directed to
the Town Manager, or to the Town attorney, as appropriate. The Town Manager shall be responsible for distributing such
requests to his/her staff for follow-up. Responses to such requests shall be copied to all Councilmembers (if originating from a
Councilmember), relevant board or commission members (if originating from a board or commission member), the Town
Manager, the Town Attorney as appropriate and affected department directors. The Town Manager, at his or her option, may
choose to seek clarification from the Town Council for non-routine requests that might be considered extraordinary.

Do not disrupt Town staff from their jobs
EAO’s should not disrupt Town staff while they are in meetings, on the phone, or otherwise engaged in performing their job
functions to have their individual needs met. Do not attend Town staff meetings unless requested by staff - even if the elected or
appointed official does not say anything; his or her presence implies support, shows partiality, intimidates staff, and hampers staff
ability to do their job objectively.

Page 9 of 20

Never publicly criticize an individual employee
EAO’s should never express concerns about the performance of a Town employee in public, to the employee directly, or to the
employee’s manager. Comments about staff performance should only be made to the Town Manager through private
correspondence or conversation.
Do not get involved in administrative functions
EAO’s must not attempt to influence Town staff on the making of appointments, awarding of contracts, selecting of consultants,
processing of development applications, the payment of claims against the Town or granting of Town licenses and permits.
Check with Town staff on correspondence before taking action
Before sending correspondence, EAOs should check with the Town Manager to see if an official Town response has already been
sent or is in progress. Board and Commission members shall not send correspondence except as authorized by the Town Council.
Limit requests for staff support
Routine secretarial support will be provided to all EAOs. The Town Secretary (or designee) opens mail addressed to Mayor and
forwards information as appropriate. The Town Secretary also opens mail for other EAOs, unless an EAO requests other
arrangements.
Do not solicit political support from staff
EAO’s shall not solicit any type of political support (financial contributions, display of posters or lawn signs, name on support list,
etc.) from Town staff. Town staff may, as private citizens with constitutional rights, support political candidates, but all such
activities must be done away from the workplace. The use of the Town’s email system for political purposes or communications is
not allowed.
CONDUCT WITH THE PUB LIC

IN PUBLIC MEETINGS
Making the public feel welcome is an important part of the democratic process. No signs of partiality, prejudice or disrespect should
be evident on the part of individual EAO toward an individual participating in a public forum. Every effort should be made to be fair
and impartial in listening to public testimony.
Be welcoming to speakers and treat them with care and respect
Be fair and equitable in allocating public hearing time to individual speakers.
No speaker will be turned away unless he or she exhibits inappropriate behavior. Each speaker may only speak once during the
public hearing unless the Mayor or Chair requests additional clarification later in the process.
Give the appearance of active listening.
It is disconcerting to speakers to have EAO not look at them when they are speaking. Be aware of facial expressions, especially those
that could be interpreted as "smirking," disbelief, anger or boredom. EAOs shall refrain from texting or other cellular phone
functions during public hearings.
Ask for clarification, but avoid debate and argument with the public.
Only the Mayor (Chair) - not individual EAO - can interrupt a speaker during a presentation. However, a member can ask the Mayor
(Chair) for a point of order if the speaker is off the topic or exhibiting behavior or language that is disturbing.
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If speakers become flustered or defensive by questions, it is the responsibility of the Mayor (Chair) to calm and focus the speaker
and to maintain the order and decorum of the meeting. Questions by EAO to the public testifying should seek to clarify or expand
information. It is never appropriate to belligerently challenge or belittle the speaker. Personal opinions or inclinations of EAO about
upcoming votes should not be revealed until after the public hearing is closed.
No personal attacks of any kind, under any circumstance.
EAO should be aware that their body language and tone of voice, as well as the words they use, can appear to be intimidating or
aggressive.
Follow parliamentary procedure in conducting public meetings.
The Town Secretary serves as advisory parliamentarian for the Town Council and is available to answer questions or interpret
situations according to parliamentary procedures. In her or his absence, the Town Attorney serves as advisory parliamentarian. The
Mayor (Chair), subject to the appeal of the full Council or board/commission, makes final rulings on parliamentary procedure

IN UNOFFICIAL SETTINGS
Make no promises on behalf of the Council, board/commission or Town.
EAO will frequently be asked to explain a Council or board/commission action or to give their opinion about an issue as they meet
and talk with constituents in the community. It is appropriate to give a brief overview of Town policy and to refer to Town staff for
further information. It is inappropriate to overtly or implicitly promise Council or board/commission action, or to promise Town staff
will do something specific (fix a pothole, remove a library book, plant new flowers in the median, etc.).
Make no personal comments about other EAOs.
It is acceptable to publicly disagree about an issue, but it is unacceptable to make derogatory comments about other EAOs, and their
opinions and actions.
Remember that Sunnyvale is a small town at heart.
EAOs are constantly being observed by the community every day that they serve in office. Their behaviors and comments serve as
models for proper deportment in the Town of Sunnyvale. Honesty and respect for the dignity of each individual should be reflected
in every word and action taken by EAOs, 24 hours a day, seven days a week. It is a serious and continuous responsibility.

COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES
Be clear about representing the Town or personal interests.
When representing the Town, the Councilmember must support and advocate the official Town position on an issue, not a personal
viewpoint. Outside of official board or commission meetings, board and commission members are not authorized to represent the
Town or their board or commission unless specifically designated by the Council or the board or commission to do so for a particular
purpose and with the Town Manager’s knowledge.
When representing another organization whose position is different from the Town, the EAO should withdraw from voting on the
issue if it significantly impacts or is detrimental to the Town’s interest. EAOs should be clear about which organizations they
represent and inform the Mayor, the Town Council, and the Town Manager of their involvement.
Be equally clear in correspondence about representation.
Town letterhead may be used when the Councilmember is representing the Town and the Town’s official position. A copy of official
correspondence should be given to the Town Secretary to be filed with the Town as part of the permanent public record.
Page 11 of 20

Town letterhead should not be used for non-Town business or for correspondence representing a dissenting point of view from an
official Council position.

COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
The Town has established several boards and commissions as a means of gathering more community input. Citizens who serve on
boards and commissions become more involved in government and serve as advisors to the Town Council. They are a valuable
resource to the Town’s leadership and should be treated with appreciation and respect.
If attending a board or commission meeting, be careful of personal opinions.
Councilmembers may attend any board or commission meeting, which are always open to any member of the public. However, they
should be sensitive to the way their participation, especially if it is on behalf of an individual, business or developer, could be viewed
as unfairly affecting the process. Any public comments by a Councilmember at a board or commission meeting should be clearly
made as individual opinion and not as a representation of the feelings of the entire Town Council.
Limit contact with board and commission members to questions of clarification.
It is inappropriate for a Councilmember to contact a board or commission member to lobby on behalf of an individual, business, or
developer, and vice versa. It is acceptable for Councilmembers to contact board or commission members in order to clarify a
position taken by the board or commission.
Remember that boards and commissions serve the community, not individual Councilmembers.
The Town Council appoints individuals to serve on boards and commissions, and it is the responsibility of boards and commissions to
follow policy established by the Council; but board and commission members do not report to individual Councilmembers, nor
should Councilmembers feel they have the power or right to threaten board and commission members with removal if they disagree
about an issue. Appointment and re-appointment to a board or commission should be based on such criteria as expertise, ability to
work with staff and the public, and commitment to fulfilling official duties. A board or commission appointment should not be used
as a political "reward."
Be respectful of diverse opinions.
A primary role of boards and commissions is to represent many points of view in the community and to provide the Council with
advice based on a full spectrum of concerns and perspectives. Councilmembers may have a closer working relationship with some
individuals serving on boards and commissions but must be fair and respectful of all citizens serving on boards and commissions.
Keep political support away from public forums.
Board and commission members may offer political support to a Councilmember, but not in a public forum while conducting official
duties. Conversely, Councilmembers may support board and commission members who are running for office but not in an official
forum in their capacity as a Councilmember.

CONDUCT WITH THE MEDIA
Board and commission members are not authorized to represent the Town outside of official board/commission meetings unless
specifically authorized to do so by the Town Council.
The best advice for dealing with the media is to never go "off the record”.
Most members of the media represent the highest levels of journalistic integrity and ethics and can be trusted to keep their word.
But one bad experience can be catastrophic. Words that are not said cannot be quoted.
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The Mayor is the official spokesperson for the Town on Town positions.
The Mayor is the designated representative of the Council to present and speak on the official Town position. If an individual
Councilmember is contacted by the media, the Council member should be clear about whether their comments represent the
official Town position or a personal viewpoint.
Choose words carefully and cautiously.
Comments taken out of context can cause problems. Be especially cautious about humor, sardonic asides, sarcasm, or word play. It
is never appropriate to use personal slurs or swear words when talking with the media.

C. SANCTIONS
Public Disruption.
Members of the public who do not follow proper conduct after a warning in a public meeting may be barred from further testimony
at that meeting or removed from the Council Chambers.
Inappropriate Staff Behavior.
EAO’s shall refer any Town staff member or volunteer who does not follow proper conduct or protocol in their dealings with EAO,
other Town staff, or the public, to the Town Manager. These employees may be disciplined in accordance with standard Town
procedures for such action. (Please refer to the section on Council Conduct with Town Staff for more details on interaction with
Staff.)
Councilmembers Behavior and Conduct.
Compliance and Enforcement. The Code of Ethics and Conduct expresses standards of ethical conduct expected for members of the
Sunnyvale Town Council, boards and commissions. EAO themselves have the primary responsibility to assure that ethical standards
are understood and met, and that the public can continue to have full confidence in the integrity of government. The chairs of
boards and commissions and the Mayor and Council have the additional responsibility to intervene when actions of EAO that
appears to be in violation of the Code of Ethics and Conduct are brought to their attention.
Town Councilmembers who intentionally and repeatedly do not follow respectful conduct may be reprimanded or formally censured
by the Council, be removed from committee assignments (both within the Town of Sunnyvale or with inter-governmental agencies)
or be subject to other appropriate action by the Council.
Councilmembers should point out to the offending Councilmember infractions of the Ethics Policy. If the offenses continue, then the
matter should be placed on a council agenda in closed session under the provisions of Section 551.074 of the Texas Government
Code.
The affected Councilmember may request that the complaint be considered in a public meeting. The affected Councilmember shall
be provided by the Town Attorney a copy of the complaint in writing. At such meeting, the Town Attorney or Town Manager shall
present in detail to the Town Council the nature of the complaint and the Town Attorney findings and conclusions as to a possible
violation of this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials.
The affected Councilmember shall have the right to a full and complete hearing before the Town Council with the opportunity to call
witnesses and present evidence in such person's behalf. The non-implicated Town Councilmembers in attendance shall conduct a
hearing in open session and review the complaint. The Town Council may reject the complaint and take no action or take action to
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formally reprimand or censure the offending Councilmember. If the Town Council finds that the affected Council member has
violated an express prohibition of this Ethics Code, then the Council shall by resolution declare the office forfeited and shall call an
election to fill the vacancy
Board and Commission Members Behavior and Conduct.
Counseling and verbal reprimands may be administered by board and commission chairs (or their designee) to board and
commission members failing to comply with Town policy. These lower levels of sanctions shall be kept private to the degree allowed
by law. Verbal or written reprimands may be administered by the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem at the direction of the Council. Copies of
all written reprimands administered by the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem shall be distributed in memo format to the respective board or
commission member, the board or commission chairperson, the Town Secretary, the Town Manager, and the Town Council. Written
reprimands administered by the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem shall not be publicized except as required under the Public Information
Act.
The Town Council may impose sanctions on any EAO whose conduct does not comply with the Town’s policies, up to and including
removal from office in the case of non-council EAO’s. Any form of discipline imposed by Council shall be determined by a majority
vote of at least a quorum of the Council at a noticed public meeting and such action shall be preceded by a Report to Council with
supporting documentation. The Report to Council shall be distributed in accordance with normal procedures. Any Report to Council
addressing alleged misconduct by a board or commission member shall be routed through the Town Attorney for review of whether
any information is exempt from disclosure (subject to redaction) based on privacy interests authorized under the Public Information
Act.
When deemed warranted, the Council may call for an investigation of an EAO’s conduct. Should the Town Manager or Town
Attorney believe an investigation is warranted, they shall confer with the Council. The Council shall ask for an investigation of the
allegation and a report of the findings.
The results of any investigation conducted by the Town Manager or Town Attorney shall be reported to the full Council in a closed
session. It may be reported in a verbal or written report. Any written report to Council addressing the investigation of board and
commission members shall be routed through the Town Attorney for review of whether any information is exempt from disclosure
(subject to redaction) based on privacy interests authorized under the Public Information Act. The affected EAO may request that
the complaint be considered in a public meeting. The EAO shall be provided a copy of the complaint in writing. At such meeting, the
Town Attorney or Town Manager shall present a report to the Town Council describing in detail the nature of the complaint and the
Town Attorney findings and conclusions as to a possible violation of this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed
Officials. The affected EAO shall have the right to a full and complete hearing before the Town Council with the opportunity to call
witnesses and present evidence in such person's behalf. The non-implicated Town Councilmembers in attendance shall conduct a
hearing and review the complaint. The Town Council may reject the complaint or take action
It shall be the Council’ s responsibility to determine the next appropriate action. Any such action taken by Council (with the
exception of “take no further action”) shall be conducted at a noticed meeting. These actions include, but are not limited to
discussing and counseling the individual on the violations; placing the matter on a future public hearing agenda to consider
sanctions; forming a Council ad hoc subcommittee to review the allegation, the investigation and its findings, as well as to
recommend sanction options for Council consideration.
A violation of this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials, alone, shall not constitute a basis for challenging
the validity of a Council, board or commission decision.
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D. IMPLEMENTATION
As an expression of the standards of conduct for EAO expected by the Town, the Code of Ethics and Conduct is intended to be selfenforcing. It therefore becomes most effective when EAO are thoroughly familiar with it and embrace its provisions. For this reason,
•

Newly elected or appointed officials shall acknowledge the receipt and commitment to this document prior to being sworn
in.

•

Acknowledgement of the Code of Ethics and Conduct will be required annually for all EAOs.

•

The Town Council, and all Town Boards and Commissions will dedicate an annual meeting agenda item to the review of the
Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials, in an effort to address questions.

Failure to comply with the items outlined above could result in disciplinary action outlined in Section C.
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E. ETHICS RESOURCES
The below resources for reference only, not a comprehensive list of all applicable documents
TOWN OF SUNNYVALE
Town of Sunnyvale Personnel Policy
Town of Sunnyvale Purchasing Policy
TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE
Ch.171 Conflict of Interest
Ch. 176 Financial Disclosure in Contracts
TEXAS STATE GOVERNMENT CODE
Ch. 551 - Open Meetings Act
Ch. 552 - Public Information Act
Ch. 553 - Disclosure of Ownership in Property
Ch. 573 - Nepotism
TEXAS ELECTION CODE
Ch. 253 - Campaign Finance
TEXAS PENAL CODE
CH. 36 - BRIBERY AND CORRUPT INFLUENCE
§ 36.02. Bribery
§ 36.03. Coercion of Public Servant or Voter
§ 36.04. Improper Influence
§ 36.05. Tampering with Witness
§ 36.06. Obstruction or Retaliation
§ 36.07. Acceptance of Honorarium
§ 36.08. Gift to Public Servant by Person Subject to His Jurisdiction
§ 36.09. Offering Gift to Public Servant
§36.10 Non-Applicable
CH. 37 – PERJURY AND OTHER FALSIFICATION
Page 16 of 20

§ 37.10 - Tampering with a Governmental Record
CH. 39 – ABUSE OF OFFICE
§ 39.02. Abuse of Official Capacity
§ 39.03. Official Oppression
§ 39.04. Violations of the Civil Rights of Person in Custody; Improper Sexual Activity With Person in Custody
§ 39.05. Failure to Report Death of Prisoner
§ 39.06. Misuse of Official Information

TEXAS ETHICS COMMISS ION
Conflict of Interest Form

Page 17 of 20

Page 18 of 20

Page 19 of 20

CODE OF ETHICS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Town of Sunnyvale’s most recent Code of Ethics for Elected and Appointed Officials.
I further acknowledge that I have read and understand all my obligations, duties, and responsibilities under each provision of this
Code of Ethics.

Printed Name:

Signature:

Date:
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POLICY PURPOSE
The Sunnyvale Town Council has adopted this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials in an
effort to provide guidelines for which members of the TownTown’s Council, Boards and the Town’s boards and
commissionsCommissions to assure public confidence in the integrity of local government and itsthrough effective
and fair operation. Town staff and employees shall be mindful of this Code as more particularly implemented by the
Personnel Policies of the Town in order that they also will serve to assure public confidence in the integrity as well as
the effective and fair operation of the Town’s government.

A. GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Confidential information ‐ any information to which an Elected or Appointed Official (EAO) is privy to through
official capacity, which may not be disclosed to the public except pursuant to state and/or federal law and which is
not otherwise a matter of public record or public knowledge. Confidential information includes the following
information, however transmitted: (i) any information from a meeting closed to the public pursuant to the Texas
Open Meetings Act or other law regardless of whether disclosure violates the Texas Open Meetings Act or Texas
Public Information Act; (ii) any information protected by attorney client, attorney work product, or other applicable
legal privilege; and (iii) any information deemed confidential by law.
Elected and Appointed Officials (EAO) – Members of the Town Council, Town Boards, Commissions, Committees
and Town Manager
Gift‐ anything of value, regardless of form, offered or given in the absence of adequate and lawful consideration. It
does not include the receipt or acceptance of campaign contributions, which are regulated by federal, state, and/or
local laws or ordinance.
Relative ‐ any person related to an officer within the second degree by consanguinity or affinity. This relationship
includes the spouse, parents, children, stepchildren, father and mother‐in‐law, or son and daughter‐in‐law,
grandparents, grandchildren, sisters and brothers of the EAO.
Substantial financial interest ‐ means (i) the ownership of ten (10) percent or more of the voting stock or shares of a
business entity; (ii) the ownership of ten (10) percent or more, or fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) or more of
the fair market value of a business entity; or (iii) funds received from the business entity exceed ten (10) percent of
the person's gross income for the previous year, and action on the matter involving the business entity will have a
special economic effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the public. It is expressly
provided herein that an investment or ownership in a publicly held company, in an amount less than fifteen
thousand dollars ($15,000.00) does not constitute a substantial interest. Substantial interest in real property means
the person has an interest in the real property that is equitable or legal ownership with a fair market value of two
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) or more; and it is reasonably foreseeable that an action on a matter
involving the real property will have a special economic effect on the value of the real property distinguishable from
its effect on the public. (Ownership includes any partnership, joint or corporate ownership or any equitable or
beneficial interest as a beneficiary of a trust.) A Member is considered to have a substantial interest under this Ethics
Policy if a person related to the Member in the second degree of consanguinity or affinity has a substantial interest
under this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials. Subject to change based upon Section
171.002 of Texas Local Government code
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B. ETHICS
The citizens and businesses of Sunnyvale are entitled to have a fair, ethical and accountable local government that
has earned the public’s full confidence for integrity. Achieving this requires that:

•
•
•
•

public officials, both elected and appointed, comply with both the letter and spirit of the laws and policies
affecting the operations of government;
public officials be independent, impartial and fair in their judgment and actions;
public office be used for the public good, not for personal gain; and
public deliberations and processes be conducted openly, unless legally confidential, in an atmosphere of
respect and civility.

To this end, the Sunnyvale Town Council has adopted this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed
Officials (“Code of Ethics and Conduct”) for members of the Town Council and of the Town’s boards and
commissionsall EAOs to assure public confidence in the integrity of local government and its effective and fair
operation.
1. Express Prohibitions—the following prohibitions apply to all EAO’s, and, for purposes of Section 3.06(B)(2) of the
Town Charter, shall be considered Express Prohibitions:
1.
2.

Bribery
Release of Confidential Information to the detriment of the Town: EAO shall respect the confidentiality of
information concerning the property, personnel, or affairs of the Town. They shall neither disclose
confidential information without proper legal authorization, nor use such information to advance their
personal, financial, political or other private interests. This includes matters discussed in executive sessions
or obtained through official capacity which are not public knowledge.
3. Conflict of interest accordance with state law: No EAO or employee of the Town or a relative thereof shall:
a. Have an undisclosed financial interest in any contract, job, work, or service of or to the Town, or the sale to
the Town of any supplies, equipment, material, or real or personal property.
b.

Participate in a vote or decision on any matter in which the officer has a substantial personal or financial
interest.

c.

Act or serve as surety for the performance of any person doing business with the Town or as surety for any
Town officer or employee required to make a surety bond.

d.

Accept any gift from any person that might reasonably tend to influence such EAO or officer in the
discharge of such person's official duties. The prohibition against gifts shall not apply to:
i. A lawful campaign contribution;
ii. An honorarium in consideration for services unless the officer would not have been asked to
provide the services but for the officer's position;
iii. Meals, lodging, transportation in connection with services rendered by the EAO at a conference,
seminar or similar event that the EAO is providing services or is more than merely perfunctory;
iv. Complimentary copies of trade publications and other related promotional materials;
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v. Attendance at hospitality functions at local, regional, state or national association meetings and/or
conferences;
vi. Any gift or occasional item with value less than fifty dollars ($50.00);
vii. Gifts on account of kinship, personal, professional, or business relationship independent of the
officer's status, in accordance with state law; and,
viii. Complimentary attendance at political or charitable fund‐raising events.
4.
5.

Repeated or multiple violations of any Town policy or provisions of the ethics code
Actions that interfere with the Town Staff’s ability to operate, violations of Chapter 36, sexual harassment,
and physical violence

1.2. Act in the Public Interest. Recognizing that stewardship of the public interest must be their primary concern,
Elected and Appointed Officials (EAO) will work for the common good of the people of Sunnyvale and not for
any private or personal interest, and they will assure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and
transactions coming before the Sunnyvale Town Council, boards and commissions.

2.3. Comply with both the spirit and the letter of the Lawlaw and Town Policypolicy. Members of the Town
Council and the Town’s boards and commissions shall comply with the laws of the nation, the State of Texas and
the Town of Sunnyvale in the performance of their public duties. These laws include, but are not limited to: the
United States and Texas Constitutions; State laws pertaining to conflicts of interest, election campaigns, financial
disclosures, employer responsibilities, offenses against public administration (Chapter 36 of the Texas Penal
Code) and open processes of government; and Town Charter, ordinances and policies.

3.4. Conduct of Elected and Appointed Officials (“EAO”). EAO shall refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or
verbal attacks upon the character or motives of other members of Council, boards and commissions, the staff,
or public.

4.5. Respect for Process. EAO shall perform their duties in accordance with the processes and rules of order
established or practiced by the Town Council and boards and commissions governing the deliberation of public
policy issues, meaningful involvement of the public, and implementation of policy decisions of the Town Council
by Town staff.
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5.

6. Conduct of Public Meetings. EAO shall prepare themselves for public issues; listen courteously and
attentively to all public discussions before the body; and focus on the business at hand. They shall refrain
from interrupting other speakers; making personal comments not germane to the business of the body;
attempting to monopolize the discussion at public meetings; or otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct
of meetings.

6.7. Decisions Based on Merit. EAO shall base their decisions on the merits and substance of the matter at hand,
rather than on unrelated considerations.

7.8. Communication. EAO shall publicly disclose substantive information that is relevant to a matter under
consideration by the Town Council or boards and commissions, which they may have received from sources
outside of the public decision‐making process.

8.

Conflict of Interest. No EAO or officer of the Town or a relative thereof shall:
(a)a.

Have a financial interest in any contract, job, work, or service of or to the Town, or the sale to the
Town of any supplies, equipment, material, or real or personal property.

(b)a.

Participate in a vote or decision on any matter in which the officer has a substantial personal or
financial interest.

(c)a.

Accept any gift from any person that might reasonably tend to influence such EAO or officer in the
discharge of such person's official duties. The prohibition against gifts shall not apply to:

(i)i.

A lawful campaign contribution;

(ii)i.

An honorarium in consideration for services unless the officer would not have been asked
to provide the services but for the officer's position;

(iii) Meals, lodging, transportation in connection with services rendered by the officer at a conference,
seminar or similar event that is more than merely perfunctory;

(iv) Complimentary copies of trade publications and other related materials;
(v)i.

Attendance at hospitality functions at local, regional, state or national association
meetings and/or conferences;

(vi) Any gift, which would have been offered or given to the person if such person was not an officer or
employee of the Town;

(vii) An occasional item with value less than fifty dollars ($50.00);
(viii) Tee shirts, caps and other similar promotional material;

(ix) Meals, transportation and lodging in connection with a seminar or conference at which the officer is
providing services;
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(x) Gifts on account of kinship or a personal, or professional, or business relationship independent of the
officer's status; and,

(xi)i.
9.

Complimentary attendance at political or charitable fund‐raising events.

Confidential Information. EAO shall respect the confidentiality of information concerning the property,
personnel, or affairs of the Town. They shall neither disclose confidential information without proper legal
authorization, nor use such information to advance their personal, financial, political or other private interests.

10.9.

Use of Public Resources. EAO shall not use public resources not available to the public in general, such as
staff time, equipment, supplies or facilities, for private gain or personal, political purposes.
CouncilmembersEAOs desiring use of such Town resources for public meetings shall first obtain permission from
a majority of the Council at a duly called, posted Council meeting.

11.10. Representation of Private Interests. In keeping with their role as stewards of the public interest, members
of Council shall not appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties before the Council or any board,
commission or proceeding of the Town, nor shall members of boards and commissions appear before their own
bodies or before the Council on behalf of the private interests of third parties on matters related to the areas of
service of their bodies, nor voluntarily participate on behalf of others in any litigation to which the Town is, or
might be, an adverse party.

12.11. Advocacy. EAO shall represent the official policies or positions of the Town Council, board or commission to
the best of their ability when designated as delegates for this purpose. When presenting their individual
opinions and positions, EAO shall explicitly state they do not represent their body or the Town of Sunnyvale, nor
will they allow the inference that they do.

13.12. Policy Role of EAO. EAO shall respect and adhere to the council‐manager structure of Sunnyvale Town
government as outlined by the Sunnyvale Town Charter. In this structure, the Town Council determines the
policies of the Town with the advice, information and analysis provided by the public, boards and commissions,
and Town staff. Except as provided by the Town Charter, EAO shall not interfere with the administrative
functions of the Town or the professional duties of Town staff; nor shall they impair the ability of staff to
implement Council policy decisions.

14.13. Independence of boards and commissions. Because of the value of the independent advice of boards and
commissions to the public decision‐making process, members of Council shall refrain from using their position to
unduly influence the deliberations or outcomes of board and commission proceedings.

15.14. Non‐Interference. EAO shall not intervene in Civil Servicepersonnel or Municipal Court matters.
16. EAO shall not direct Town staff to take actions that are not in keeping with advice and guidance from the Town
Attorney’s Office.

17.15. CouncilmembersPurchasing. EAOs shall adhere to the same Town procurementpurchasing policy as utilized
by Town staff.
16. 18. Positive Work Place Environment. EAO shall support the maintenance of a positive and constructive work
place environment for Town employees and for citizens and businesses dealing with the Town. EAO shall
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recognize their special role in dealings with Town employees so in no way do they create the perception of
inappropriate direction to staff.
B

C. CONDUCT
The Town Charter provides detailed information on the roles and responsibilities of members of the Sunnyvale Town
Council, the Mayor Pro Tem, and the Mayor. The Town’s Code of Ethics and Conduct provides guidance on ethical
issues and questions of right and wrong.
This Code of Ethics and Conduct is designed to describe the manner in which Councilmembers and board and
commission membersEAOs should treat one another, Town staff, citizens, and others they come into contact with in
representing the Town of Sunnyvale.
The constant and consistent theme through all of the conduct guidelines is "respect." CouncilmembersEAOs
experience huge workloads and tremendous stress in making decisions that could impact thousands of lives. Despite
these pressures, elected and appointed officials are called upon to exhibit appropriate behavior at all times.
Demonstrating respect for each individual through words and actions is the touchstone that can help guide
Councilmembers and board and commission membersEAOs to do the right thing in even the most difficult situations.
Overview of
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1.

COUNCILMEMBER ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Mayor
• Acts as the official head of the Town for all ceremonial purposes.
• Chairs Council meetings.
• Calls for special meetings.
• Serves as spokesperson for the Town Council on Town positions.
• Selects substitute for Town representation when Mayor cannot attend.
• Makes judgment calls on proclamations, Special Orders of the Day, etc.
• Recommends subcommittees as appropriate for Council approval.
• Leads the Council into an effective, cohesive working team.
• Signs documents on behalf of the Town.
• Reviews mail addressed to Mayor.
• Other duties as set forth in other laws, ordinances, or the Town Charter.
Mayor Pro Tem
• Performs the duties of the Mayor if the Mayor is absent or disabled.
• Chairs Council meetings at the request of the Mayor.
• Represents the Town at ceremonial functions at the request of the Mayor.
• Signs documents on behalf of the Town, in absence of Mayor.
• All duties as assigned by Mayor.
All Councilmembers
All members of the Town Council, including those serving as Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem, have equal votes. No
Councilmember has more power than any other Councilmember, and all should be treated with equal respect.
Therefore, no ranking or pecking order shall be established for predetermining the order of roll call votes or public
introductions, except that the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem shall be introduced first at public meetings and events. All
Councilmembers should:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Fully participate in Town Council meetings and other public forums while demonstrating respect, kindness,
consideration, and courtesy to others;
Prepare in advance of Council meetings and be familiar with issues on the agenda;
Represent the Town at ceremonial functions at the request of the Mayor;
Be respectful of other people’s time. Stay focused and act efficiently during public meetings.
Serve as a model of leadership and civility to the community;
Provide contact information with the Town Secretary in case an emergency or urgent situation arises while the
Councilmember is out of town;
Demonstrate honesty and integrity in every action and statement; and,
Participate in scheduled activities to increase team effectiveness and review Council procedures, such as this
Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials.

Meeting Chair
The Mayor will chair official meetings of the Town Council, unless the Mayor Pro Tem or another Councilmember is
designated as chair of a specific meeting.
The Meeting Chair shall:

•
•
•

Maintain order, decorum, and the fair and equitable treatment of all speakers.
Keep discussion and questions focused on the specific agenda item under consideration.
Make parliamentary rulings with advice, if requested, from the Town Secretary who acts as advisory
parliamentarian, and in her absence, the Town Attorney shall act as advisory parliamentarian.
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Please refer to the Town Charter

2.

GENERAL POLICIES AND PROTOCOL

Ceremonial Events.
Requests for a Town representative at ceremonial events will be handled by the Town Secretary’s Office. The Mayor
will serve as the designated Town representative. If the Mayor is unavailable, then Town staff will determine if event
organizers would like another representative from the Council. If so, then the Mayor may ask a Councilmember to
serve as a substitute. Invitations received at Town Hall are presumed to be for official Town representation.
Invitations addressed to Councilmembers shall be shared with the Town Secretary’s Office in order to assure posting
for compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, if applicable.
Travel Expenses.
All Council travel in which the Councilmember expects to officially represent the Town and be reimbursed by the
Town for travel costs, should be disclosed to the Mayor, Town Council, and Town Manager in advance. The travel
budget for Council shall be reviewed at each annual budget cycle.
Rules of Order for Meetings. The latest edition of Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised shall serve as the
parliamentary authority for Council and boards, committees and commissions. Standing rules that vary from
Robert’s Rules may be adopted by the Council by ordinance.
Unless and until the Council or Boards and Committees shall adopt a set of Rules and Procedures for the conduct of
meetings, the presiding officer shall determine the most reasonable and orderly way to conduct meetings subject to
review and approval, on proper motion, by a majority of the Council or Board or Committee in attendance at the
meeting.
Non‐agenda Items (Public Forum).)
During a designated period of the agenda, referred to as “Public Forum,” citizens may bring forth issues or questions
that are not on the meeting’s agenda. Each citizen may be limited to three minutes unless otherwise directed by the
Mayor (Council meetings) or Chair (board/commission meetings).
Public Forum may not be used as a forum to make personal attacks against individual citizens, Town employees or
Councilmembers. Such remarks will result in the speaker being asked to step back from the podium and a forfeiture
of the remaining time to speak.
Public hearings.
EAO will not express opinions during the public hearing portion of the meeting except to ask pertinent questions of
the speaker or staff. "I think" and "I feel" comments by EAO are not appropriate until after the close of the public
hearing. EAO should refrain from arguing or debating with the public during a public hearing and shall always show
respect for different points of view.
Appeal Protocol.
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The applicant or appellant shall have the right to speak first. The Mayor or Chair will determine the length of time
allowed for this presentation. Speakers representing either pro or con points of view will be allowed to follow. The
Mayor or Chair will determine how much time will be allowed for each speaker, with 3 minutes the standard time
granted. The applicant or appellant will be allowed to make closing comments. The Mayor or Chair has the
responsibility to run an efficient public meeting and has the discretion to modify the public hearing process in order
to make the meeting run smoothly.

3.

EAO CONDUCT WITH ONE ANOTHER

EAO are composed of individuals with a wide variety of backgrounds, personalities, values, opinions, and goals. All
have chosen to serve in public office in order to preserve and protect the present and the futureinterests of the
community. In all cases, this common goal should be acknowledged even though individuals may "agree to disagree"
on contentious issues.
3(a).

IN PUBLIC MEETINGS
Use formal titles.
EAO should refer to one another formally during public meetings, such as Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, Chair,
Commissioner or Councilmember followed by the individual’s last name.
Practice civility and decorum in discussions and debate.
Difficult questions, challenges to a particular point of view, and criticism of ideas and information are legitimate
elements of a free democracy in action. This does not allow, however, EAO to make belligerent, personal,
impertinent, slanderous, threatening, abusive, or disparaging comments. No shouting or physical actions that could
be construed as threatening will be tolerated.
Honor the role of the Chair in maintaining order.
It is the responsibility of the Chair to keep the comments of EAO on track during public meetings. EAO should honor
efforts by the Chair to focus discussion on current agenda items. If there is disagreement about the agenda or the
Chair’s actions, those objections should be voiced politely and with reason, following procedures outlined in
parliamentary procedure.
Avoid personal comments that could offend other EAO.
If a member is personally offended by the remarks of another member, the offended member should make notes of
the actual words used and call for a "point of personal privilege" that challenges the other member to justify or
apologize for the language used. The Chair will maintain control of this discussion.
Demonstrate effective problem‐solving approaches.
EAO have a public stage to show how individuals with disparate points of view can find common ground and seek a
compromise that benefits the community as a whole. Although a board or commission may disagree with the final
decision the Council makes, the board or commission shall not act in any manner contrary to the established policy
adopted by the Council.
3(b). IN PRIVATE EncountersENCOUNTERS
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Continue respectful behavior in private.
The same level of respect and consideration of differing points of view that is deemed appropriate for public
discussions should be maintained in private conversations.
Be aware of the insecurity of written notes, voicemail messages, and E‐mail.
Technology allows words written or said without much forethought to be distributed wide and far. Written notes,
voicemail messages and e‐mail should be treated as potentially "public" communication.
Even private conversations can have a public presence
Elected and appointed officials are always on display ‐ their actions, mannerisms, and language are monitored by
people around them that they may not know. Lunch table conversations will be eavesdroppedeaves‐dropped upon,
parking lot debates will be watched, and casual comments between individuals before and after public meetings
noted and may be subject to the Open Meetings Act.

4.

CONDUCT WITH TOWN STAFF

Governance of a Town relies on the cooperative efforts of elected officials, who set policy; appointed officials who
advise the elected, and Town staff, who implementsimplement and administersadminister the Council’s policies.
Therefore, every effort should be made to be cooperative and show mutual respect for the contributions made by
each individual for the good of the community.
Treat all staff as professionals.
Clear, honest communication that respects the abilities, experience, and dignity of each individual is expected. Poor
behavior towards staff is not acceptable.
EAO questions/inquiries to Town staff.

1. General. EAO communications with Town staff shall be through the Town Manager.
1.

Town Manager has the ability to assign members of Town staff to support the Town’s Commissions, Boards and
Town Council. The EAOs will utilize this designated Town Staff member for all communications, requests,
meetings and inquiries related to the duties of the EAOs position. EAOs cannot provide direction for town staff,
EAOs can only contact the Town Manager and designated Town Staff Member support person assigned to the
commission, board or council for matters related to the respective EAO role.

2.

EAOs shall not use town staff to accomplish purposes outside the EAOs responsibilities.

2.3. Routine Requestsrequests for Information and Inquiries. EAO may contact staff directly for information made
readily available to the general public on a regular basis (e.g., “What are the library’s hours of operation?” or
“How does one reserve a tee time at the golf course?”). Under these circumstances staff shall treat the EAO no
differently than they would the general public, and the EAO shall not use their elected or appointed status to
secure preferential treatment. The Town Manager does not need to be advised of such contacts.

3.4. Non‐Routine Requests for Readily Available Information. EAO may also contact staff directly for easily
retrievable information not routinely requested by the general public so long as it does not require staff to
discuss the issue or express an opinion (e.g., “How many traffic lights are there in the Town?” or “Under what
circumstances does the Town lower its flags to half‐mast?”).
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4.5. Non‐Routine Requests Requiring Special Effort. Any EAO request or inquiry that requires staff to compile
information that is not readily available or easily retrievable and/or that requests staff to express an opinion
(legal or otherwise) shall be directed to the Town Manager, or to the Town attorney, as appropriate. The Town
Manager shall be responsible for distributing such requests to his/her staff for follow‐up. Responses to such
requests shall be copied to all Councilmembers (if originating from a Councilmember), relevant board or
commission members (if originating from a board or commission member), the Town Manager, the Town
Attorney as appropriate and affected department directors. The Town Manager, at his or her option, may
choose to seek clarification from the Town Council for non‐routine requests that might be considered
extraordinary.

5. Meeting Requests. Any EAO request for a meeting with staff shall be directed to the Town Manager or council
appointee, as appropriate. EAO’s shall promptly notify the Town Manager of any requests they receive by Town
employees or volunteers for meetings to discuss policy issues, budget issues, management issues, or
administrative issues.
Do not disrupt Town stafffromstaff from their jobs.
EAO’s should not disrupt Town staff while they are in meetings, on the phone, or otherwise engaged in performing
their job functions in order to have their individual needs met. Do not attend Town staff meetings unless requested
by staff ‐ even if the elected or appointed official does not say anything,; his or her presence implies support, shows
partiality, intimidates staff, and hampers staff’ sstaff ability to do their job objectively.
Never publicly criticize an individual employee.
EAO’s should never express concerns about the performance of a Town employee in public, to the employee
directly, or to the employee’s manager. Comments about staff performance should only be made to the Town
Manager through private correspondence or conversation.
Do not get involved in administrative functions.
EAO’s must not attempt to influence Town staff on the making of appointments, awarding of contracts, selecting of
consultants, processing of development applications, the payment of claims against the Town or granting of Town
licenses and permits.
Check with Town staff on correspondence before taking action.
Before sending correspondence, CouncilmembersEAOs should check with the Town Manager to see if an official
Town response has already been sent or is in progress. Board and commissionCommission members shall not send
correspondence except as authorized by the Town Council.
Limit requests for staff support.
Routine secretarial support will be provided to all CouncilmembersEAOs. The Town Secretary (or designee) opens
mail addressed to Mayor and forwards information as appropriate. The Town Secretary also opens mail for other
CouncilmembersEAOs, unless a Councilmemberan EAO requests other arrangements.
Do not solicit political support from staff.
EAO’s shall not solicit any type of political support (financial contributions, display of posters or lawn signs, name on
support list, etc.) from Town staff. Town staff may, as private citizens with constitutional rights, support political
candidates, but all such activities must be done away from the workplace. The use of the Town’s email system for
political purposes or communications is not allowed.
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5. CONDUCT WITH THE PUBLIC
5(a). IN PUBLIC MEETINGS
Making the public feel welcome is an important part of the democratic process. No signs of partiality, prejudice or
disrespect should be evident on the part of individual EAO toward an individual participating in a public forum. Every
effort should be made to be fair and impartial in listening to public testimony.
Be welcoming to speakers and treat them with care and gentleness.respect
Be fair and equitable in allocating public hearing time to individual speakers.
The Mayor or Chair will determine and announce limits on speakers at the start of the public hearing process.
Generally, each speaker will be allocated three minutes with applicants and appellants or their designated
representatives allowed time as allocated by the Mayor. If many speakers are anticipated, the Mayor or Chair may
shorten the time limit and/or ask speakers to limit themselves to new information and points of view not already
covered by previous speakers.
No speaker will be turned away unless he or she exhibits inappropriate behavior. Each speaker may only speak once
during the public hearing unless the Mayor or Chair requests additional clarification later in the process.
Give the appearance of active listening.
It is disconcerting to speakers to have EAO not look at them when they are speaking. Be aware of facial expressions,
especially those that could be interpreted as "smirking," disbelief, anger or boredom. EAO’sEAOs shall refrain from
texting or other cellular phone functions during public hearings.
Ask for clarification, but avoid debate and argument with the public.
Only the Mayor (Chair) ‐ not individual EAO ‐ can interrupt a speaker during a presentation. However, a member can
ask the Mayor (Chair) for a point of order if the speaker is off the topic or exhibiting behavior or language that is
disturbing.
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If speakers become flustered or defensive by questions, it is the responsibility of the Mayor (Chair) to calm and focus
the speaker and to maintain the order and decorum of the meeting. Questions by EAO to the public testifying should
seek to clarify or expand information. It is never appropriate to belligerently challenge or belittle the speaker.
Personal opinions or inclinations of EAO about upcoming votes should not be revealed until after the public hearing
is closed.
No personal attacks of any kind, under any circumstance.
EAO should be aware that their body language and tone of voice, as well as the words they use, can appear to be
intimidating or aggressive.
Follow parliamentary procedure in conducting public meetings.
The Town Secretary serves as advisory parliamentarian for the Town Council and is available to answer questions or
interpret situations according to parliamentary procedures. In her or his absence, the Town Attorney serves as
advisory parliamentarian. The Mayor (Chair), subject to the appeal of the full Council or board/commission, makes
final rulings on parliamentary procedure per the procedure outlined in Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised.
5(b). IN UNOFFICIAL SETTINGS
Make no promises on behalf of the Council, board/commission or Town.
EAO will frequently be asked to explain a Council or board/commission action or to give their opinion about an issue
as they meet and talk with constituents in the community. It is appropriate to give a brief overview of Town policy
and to refer to Town staff for further information. It is inappropriate to overtly or implicitly promise Council or
board/commission action, or to promise Town staff will do something specific (fix a pothole, remove a library book,
plant new flowers in the median, etc.).
Make no personal comments about other EAOEAOs.
It is acceptable to publicly disagree about an issue, but it is unacceptable to make derogatory comments about other
EAOEAOs, and their opinions and actions.
Remember that Sunnyvale is a small town at heart.
EAOEAOs are constantly being observed by the community every day that they serve in office. Their behaviors and
comments serve as models for proper deportment in the Town of Sunnyvale. Honesty and respect for the dignity of
each individual should be reflected in every word and action taken by EAOEAOs, 24 hours a day, seven days a week.
It is a serious and continuous responsibility.

6.

COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES

Be clear about representing the Town or personal interests.
When representing the Town, the Councilmember must support and advocate the official Town position on an issue,
not a personal viewpoint. Outside of official board or commission meetings, board and commission members are not
authorized to represent the Town or their board or commission unless specifically designated by the Council or the
board or commission to do so for a particular purpose and with the Town Manager’s knowledge.
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When representing another organization whose position is different from the Town, the CouncilmemberEAO should
withdraw from voting on the issue if it significantly impacts or is detrimental to the Town’s interest.
CouncilmembersEAOs should be clear about which organizations they represent and inform the Mayor, the Town
Council, and the Town Manager of their involvement.
Be equally clear in correspondence about representation.
Town letterhead may be used when the Councilmember is representing the Town and the Town’s official position. A
copy of official correspondence should be given to the Town Secretary to be filed with the Town as part of the
permanent public record.
Town letterhead should not be used for non‐Town business or for correspondence representing a dissenting point of
view from an official Council position.

7.

COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

The Town has established several boards and commissions as a means of gathering more community input. Citizens
who serve on boards and commissions become more involved in government and serve as advisors to the Town
Council. They are a valuable resource to the Town’s leadership and should be treated with appreciation and respect.
If attending a board or commission meeting, be careful of personal opinions.
Councilmembers may attend any board or commission meeting, which are always open to any member of the public.
However, they should be sensitive to the way their participation, especially if it is on behalf of an individual, business
or developer, could be viewed as unfairly affecting the process. Any public comments by a Councilmember at a board
or commission meeting should be clearly made as individual opinion and not as a representation of the feelings of the
entire Town Council.
Limit contact with board and commission members to questions of clarification.
It is inappropriate for a Councilmember to contact a board or commission member to lobby on behalf of an individual,
business, or developer, and vice versa. It is acceptable for Councilmembers to contact board or commission members
in order to clarify a position taken by the board or commission.
Remember that boards and commissions serve the community, not individual Councilmembers.
The Town Council appoints individuals to serve on boards and commissions, and it is the responsibility of boards and
commissions to follow policy established by the Council; but board and commission members do not report to
individual Councilmembers, nor should Councilmembers feel they have the power or right to threaten board and
commission members with removal if they disagree about an issue. Appointment and re‐appointment to a board or
commission should be based on such criteria as expertise, ability to work with staff and the public, and commitment
to fulfilling official duties. A board or commission appointment should not be used as a political "reward."
Be respectful of diverse opinions.
A primary role of boards and commissions is to represent many points of view in the community and to provide the
Council with advice based on a full spectrum of concerns and perspectives. Councilmembers may have a closer
working relationship with some individuals serving on boards and commissions but must be fair and respectful of all
citizens serving on boards and commissions.

Page 18 of 3018

Keep political support away from public forums.
Board and commission members may offer political support to a Councilmember, but not in a public forum while
conducting official duties. Conversely, Councilmembers may support board and commission members who are
running for office but not in an official forum in their capacity as a Councilmember.

8.

CONDUCT WITH THE MEDIA

Board and commission members are not authorized to represent the Town outside of official board/commission
meetings unless specifically authorized to do so by the Town Council.
Councilmembers are frequently contacted by the media for background and quotes.
The best advice for dealing with the media is to never go "off the record”.
Most members of the media represent the highest levels of journalistic integrity and ethics and can be trusted to keep
their word. But one bad experience can be catastrophic. Words that are not said cannot be quoted.
The Mayor is the official spokesperson for the Town on Town positions.
The Mayor is the designated representative of the Council to present and speak on the official Town position. If an
individual Councilmember is contacted by the media, the CouncilmemberCouncil member should be clear about
whether their comments represent the official Town position or a personal viewpoint.
Choose words carefully and cautiously.
Comments taken out of context can cause problems. Be especially cautious about humor, sardonic asides, sarcasm, or
word play. It is never appropriate to use personal slurs or swear words when talking with the media.

C. SANCTIONS
Public Disruption.
Members of the public who do not follow proper conduct after a warning in a public meeting may be barred from
further testimony at that meeting or removed from the Council Chambers.
Inappropriate Staff Behavior.
EAO’s shall refer any Town staff member or volunteer who does not follow proper conduct or protocol in their
dealings with EAO, other Town staff, or the public, to the Town Manager. These employees may be disciplined in
accordance with standard Town procedures for such action. (Please refer to the section on Council Conduct with
Town Staff for more details on interaction with Staff.)
Councilmembers Behavior and Conduct.
Compliance and Enforcement. The Code of Ethics and Conduct expresses standards of ethical conduct expected for
members of the Sunnyvale Town Council, boards and commissions. EAO themselves have the primary responsibility to
assure that ethical standards are understood and met, and that the public can continue to have full confidence in the
integrity of government. The chairs of boards and commissions and the Mayor and Council have the additional
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responsibility to intervene when actions of EAO that appears to be in violation of the Code of Ethics and Conduct are
brought to their attention.
Town Councilmembers who intentionally and repeatedly do not follow properrespectful conduct may be reprimanded
or formally censured by the Council, be removed from committee assignments (both within the Town of Sunnyvale or
with inter‐governmental agencies) or be subject to other appropriate action by the Council.
Councilmembers should point out to the offending Councilmember infractions of the Ethics Policy. If the offenses
continue, then the matter should be placed on a council agenda in closed session under the provisions of Section
551.074 of the Texas Government Code.
The affected Councilmember may request that the complaint be considered in a public meeting. The affected
Councilmember shall be provided by the Town Attorney a copy of the complaint in writing. At such meeting, the Town
Attorney or Town Manager shall present in detail to the Town Council the nature of the complaint and the Town
Attorney findings and conclusions as to a possible violation of this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and
Appointed Officials.
The affected Councilmember shall have the right to a full and complete hearing before the Town Council with the
opportunity to call witnesses and present evidence in such person's behalf. The non‐implicated Town
Councilmembers in attendance shall conduct a hearing in open session and review the complaint. The Town Council
may reject the complaint and take no action or take action to formally reprimand or censure the offending
Councilmember. If the Town Council finds that the affected Council member has violated an express prohibition of
this Ethics Code, then the Council shall by resolution declare the office forfeited and shall call an election to fill the
vacancy
Board and Commission Members Behavior and Conduct.
Counseling and verbal reprimands may be administered by board and commission chairs (or their designee) to board
and commission members failing to comply with Town policy. These lower levels of sanctions shall be kept private to
the degree allowed by law. Verbal or written reprimands may be administered by the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem at the
direction of the Council. Copies of all written reprimands administered by the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem shall be
distributed in memo format to the respective board or commission member, the board or commission chairperson,
the Town Secretary, the Town Manager, and the Town Council. Written reprimands administered by the Mayor or
Mayor Pro Tem shall not be publicized except as required under the Public Information Act.
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The Town Council may impose sanctions on any EAO whose conduct does not comply with the Town’s policies, up to
and including removal from office. in the case of non‐council EAO’s. Any form of discipline imposed by Council shall
be determined by a majority vote of at least a quorum of the Council at a noticed public meeting and such action
shall be preceded by a Report to Council with supporting documentation. The Report to Council shall be distributed
in accordance with normal procedures. Any Report to Council addressing alleged misconduct by a board or
commission member shall be routed through the Town Attorney for review of whether any information is exempt
from disclosure (subject to redaction) based on privacy interests authorized under the Public Information Act.
When deemed warranted, the Council may call for an investigation of an EAO’s conduct. Should the Town Manager
or Town Attorney believe an investigation is warranted, they shall confer with the Council. The Council shall ask for
an investigation of the allegation and a report of the findings.
The results of any investigation conducted by the Town Manager or Town Attorney shall be reported to the full
Council in a closed session. It may be reported in a verbal or written report. Any written report to Council addressing
the investigation of board and commission members shall be routed through the Town Attorney for review of
whether any information is exempt from disclosure (subject to redaction) based on privacy interests authorized
under the Public Information Act. The affected EAO may request that the complaint be considered in a public
meeting. The EAO shall be provided a copy of the complaint in writing. At such meeting, the Town Attorney or Town
Manager shall present a report to the Town Council describing in detail the nature of the complaint and the Town
Attorney findings and conclusions as to a possible violation of this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and
Appointed Officials. The affected EAO shall have the right to a full and complete hearing before the Town Council
with the opportunity to call witnesses and present evidence in such person's behalf. The non‐implicated Town
Councilmembers in attendance shall conduct a hearing and review the complaint. The Town Council may reject the
complaint or take action
It shall be the Council’ s responsibility to determine the next appropriate action. Any such action taken by Council
(with the exception of “take no further action”) shall be conducted at a noticed meeting. These actions include, but
are not limited to discussing and counseling the individual on the violations; placing the matter on a future public
hearing agenda to consider sanctions; forming a Council ad hoc subcommittee to review the allegation, the
investigation and its findings, as well as to recommend sanction options for Council consideration.
A violation of this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials, alone, shall not constitute a basis
for challenging the validity of a Council, board or commission decision.
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D. GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Confidential information means any information to which an official has access in such person's
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D official capacity, which may not be disclosed to the public except pursuant to state and/or federal law and which is
not otherwise a matter of public record or public knowledge. Confidential information includes the following
information, however transmitted: (i) any information from a meeting closed to the public pursuant to the Texas
Open Meetings Act or other law regardless of whether disclosure violates the Texas Open Meetings Act or Texas
Public Information Act; (ii) any information protected by attorney client, attorney work product, or other applicable
legal privilege; and (iii) any information deemed confidential by law.

Gift means anything of value, regardless of form, offered or given in the absence of adequate and lawful
consideration. It does not include the receipt or acceptance of campaign contributions, which are regulated by
federal, state, and/or local laws or ordinance.

Relative means any person related to an officer within the second degree by Consanguinity or affinity. This
relationship includes the spouse, parents, children, stepchildren, father and mother‐in‐law, or son and daughter‐in‐
law, grandparents, grandchildren, sisters and brothers of the officer.

Substantial financial interest means (i) the ownership of ten (10) percent or more of the voting stock or shares
of a business entity; (ii) the ownership of ten (10) percent or more, or fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) or more
of the fair market value of a business entity; or (iii) funds received from the business entity exceed ten (10) percent
of the person's gross income for the previous year, and action on the matter involving the business entity will have a
special economic effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the public. It is expressly
provided herein that an investment or ownership in a publicly held company, in an amount less than fifteen
thousand dollars ($15,000.00) does not constitute a substantial interest. Substantial interest in real property means
the person has an interest in the real property that is equitable or legal ownership with a fair market value of two
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) or more; and it is reasonably foreseeable that an action on a matter
involving the real property will have a special economic effect on the value of the real property distinguishable from
its effect on the public. (Ownership includes any partnership, joint or corporate ownership or any equitable or
beneficial interest as a beneficiary of a trust.) A Member is considered to have a substantial interest under this
Ethics Policy if a person related to the Member in the second degree of consanguinity or affinity has a substantial
interest under this Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials.
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E. IMPLEMENTATION
As an expression of the standards of conduct for EAO expected by the Town, the Code of Ethics and Conduct is
intended to be self‐enforcing. It therefore becomes most effective when EAO are thoroughly familiar with it and
embrace its provisions. For this reason, this document shall be included in the regular orientations for candidates for
Town Council, applicants to board and commissions, and newly


Newly elected andor appointed officials. EAO entering office shall sign a statement affirming they
readacknowledge the receipt and understoodcommitment to this document prior to being sworn in.



Acknowledgement of the Town of Sunnyvale Code of Ethics and Conduct will be required annually for all
EAOs.



The Town Council, and all Town Boards and Commissions will dedicate an annual meeting agenda item to
the review of the Code of Ethics and Conduct for Elected and Appointed Officials. In addition, the Code of
Ethics and Conduct shall be annually reviewed by the Town Council, boards and commissions, and, in an
effort to address questions.

Failure to comply with the items outlined above could result in disciplinary action outlined in Section C.
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E. ETHICS RESOURCES
The below resources for reference only, not a comprehensive list of all applicable documents
TOWN OF SUNNYVALE
Town Council shall consider recommendations from boards and commissions and update it as necessary.
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of Sunnyvale Personnel Policy
Town of Sunnyvale Purchasing Policy
TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE
Ch.171 Conflict of Interest
Ch. 176 Financial Disclosure in Contracts
TEXAS STATE GOVERNMENT CODE
Ch. 551 ‐ Open Meetings Act
Ch. 552 ‐ Public Information Act
Ch. 553 ‐ Disclosure of Ownership in Property
Ch. 573 ‐ Nepotism
TEXAS ELECTION CODE
Ch. 253 ‐ Campaign Finance
TEXAS PENAL CODE
CH. 36 ‐ BRIBERY AND CORRUPT INFLUENCE
§ 36.02. Bribery
§ 36.03. Coercion of Public Servant or Voter
§ 36.04. Improper Influence
§ 36.05. Tampering with Witness
§ 36.06. Obstruction or Retaliation
§ 36.07. Acceptance of Honorarium
§ 36.08. Gift to Public Servant by Person Subject to His Jurisdiction
§ 36.09. Offering Gift to Public Servant
§36.10 Non‐Applicable
CH. 37 – PERJURY AND OTHER FALSIFICATION
§ 37.10 ‐ Tampering with a Governmental Record
CH. 39 – ABUSE OF OFFICE
Page 26 of 30
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§ 39.02. Abuse of Official Capacity
§ 39.03. Official Oppression
§ 39.04. Violations of the Civil Rights of Person in Custody; Improper Sexual Activity With Person in Custody
§ 39.05. Failure to Report Death of Prisoner
§ 39.06. Misuse of Official Information

TEXAS ETHICS COMMISSION
Conflict of Interest Form
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CODE OF ETHICS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Town of Sunnyvale’s most recent Code of Ethics for Elected and
Appointed Officials. I further acknowledge that I have read and understand all of my obligations, duties, and
responsibilities under each provision of this Code of Ethics.

Printed Name:

Signature:

Date:
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Town of Sunnyvale
7.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Susan Guthrie, Town
Manager
Summary:
Act upon Resolution 19-17: A Resolution of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas
finding that Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC'S application for approval
to amend its distribution cost recovery factor pursuant to 16 Texas Admin.
Code § 25.243 to increase distribution rates withing the Town should be
denied; finding that the Town's reasonable rate case expenses shall be
reimbursed by the company; finding that the meeting at which this Resolution
is passed is open to the public as required by law; requiring notice of this
Resolution to the company and legal counsel.
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Background & Analysis:
On April 8, 2019, Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC ('Oncor' or 'Company') filed an
Application for Approval to Amend its Distribution Cost Recover Factor ('DCRF') to
Increase Distribution Rates with each of the cities in their service area. In the filing, the
Company asserts that it is seeking an increase in distribution revenues of
$29,433,804.
The resolution authorizes the Town to join with the Steering Committee of Cities
Served by Oncor ('OCSC') to evaluate the filing, determine whether the filing complies
with law, and if lawful, to determine what further strategy, including settlement, to
pursue.
The purpose of the Resolution is to deny the DCRF application proposed by Oncor.

Fiscal Impact:
Attachments:
• Resolution 19-17

RESOLUTION 19-17
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS FINDING
THAT ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC’S APPLICATION
FOR APPROVAL TO AMEND ITS DISTRIBUTION COST RECOVERY
FACTOR PURSUANT TO 16 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 25.243 TO
INCREASE DISTRIBUTION RATES WITHIN THE TOWN SHOULD BE
DENIED; FINDING THAT THE TOWN’S REASONABLE RATE CASE
EXPENSES SHALL BE REIMBURSED BY THE COMPANY; FINDING
THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; REQUIRING NOTICE
OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL.
WHEREAS, the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas (“City”) is an electric utility customer of Oncor Electric
Delivery Company LLC (“Oncor” or “Company”), and a regulatory authority with an interest in the rates
and charges of Oncor; and
WHEREAS, the Town is a member of the Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor (“OCSC”
or “Cities”), a membership of similarly situated cities served by Oncor that have joined together to
efficiently and cost effectively review and respond to electric issues affecting rates charged in Oncor’s
service area; and
WHEREAS, on or about April 8, 2019 Oncor filed with the Town an Application for Approval to
Amend its Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (“DCRF”), PUC Docket No. 49427, seeking to increase
electric distribution rates by approximately $29,433,804; and
WHEREAS, all electric utility customers residing in the Town will be impacted by this ratemaking
proceeding if it is granted; and
WHEREAS, Cities are coordinating its review of Oncor’s DCRF filing with designated attorneys
and consultants to resolve issues in the Company’s application; and
WHEREAS, Towns’ members and attorneys recommend that members deny the DCRF.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
SUNNYVALE, TEXAS:
Section 1.

That the Town is authorized to participate with OCSC in PUC Docket No. 49427.

Section 2.
That subject to the right to terminate employment at any time, the Town of
Sunnyvale hereby authorizes the hiring of the law firm of Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C.
and consultants to negotiate with the Company, make recommendations to the Town regarding
reasonable rates, and to direct any necessary administrative proceedings or court litigation associated
with an appeal of this application filed with the PUC.
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Section 3.
That the rates proposed by Oncor to be recovered through its DCRF charged to
customers located within the Town limits, are hereby found to be unreasonable and shall be denied.
Section 4.
the Town.

That the Company shall continue to charge its existing rates to customers within

Section 5.
That the Town’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed in full by
Oncor within 30 days of presentation of an invoice to Oncor.
Section 6.
That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this
Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public notice of the time, place,
and purpose of said meeting was given as required.
Section 7.
That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to Matthew C. Henry, 1616 Woodall
Rodgers Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75202 and to Thomas Brocato, Legal Counsel to OCSC, at Lloyd
Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., P.O. Box 1725, Austin, Texas 78767-1725.
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of May, 2019.
_________________________________
Saji George, Mayor
ATTEST:
__________________________________
Rachel Ramsey, Town Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
___________________________________
Town Attorney
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Town of Sunnyvale
Town Secretary

Fiscal YearMay
2012
13,‐ 2013
2019

Prepared By: Rashad Jackson, AICP
Director of Development Services
Summary
Hold a public hearing, discuss, consider and act upon a request by Zeb Fish, to
approve a Replat for the Stoney Creek 5A, Lot 5R, Block B at or about 495
Bufflehead Court.
Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the proposed re-plat. No additional comments.
Background
The applicant is the representative of a residential property located at 495 Bufflehead Court in
the Stoney Creek 5A subdivision. The property was platted and developed under the Stoney
Creek Planned Residential Overlay standards which zoned the property Single Family
Residential – 2. The minimum lot size for a SF-2 lot is one acre. The double frontage lot was
developed with a side yard setback that restricted the size of home capable of being built on the
lot. The applicant received a variance from the Board of Adjustment to allow for a 45' setback.
Subsequently, the applicant has submitted a re-plat to record the new setbacks for the lot.
Lot Width
Original - Stoney
Creek Phase 5A - Lot 5

170 feet

Approved Variance

170 feet

Front Setback Side Setback
Rear Setback
30 feet
70 feet
(70 foot setback if along
80 feet
street frontage / corner lot)
70 feet
70 feet
(45 foot along street
80 feet
frontage)

Public Notice
Notice was published within the Town’s Official Newspaper on Wednesday, March 27, 2019.
Notice letters were also provided to surrounding properties. Eighteen (18) letters were sent out.
As of the writing of this staff memo, the following letters were returned.
In Favor – 0
In Opposition – 0
Fiscal Impact:
NA
Attachments

1





Map
Stoney Creek 5A, Lot 5R, Blk B – Replat – 495 Bufflehead Court
Stoney Creek 5A – Proposed Home Layout
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RECORDING INFORMATION

A RECORD PLAT OF

LOT 5R, BLOCK B
STONEY CREEK
PHASE 5A
1.031 ACRES LOCATED IN THE
ELIZABETH HELMSTUTLER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 596
JAMES MOORE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 979
AN ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF SUNNYVALE,
DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
BEING A REPLAT OF
LOT 5, BLOCK B
STONEY CREEK - PHASE 5A
AN ADDITION IN THE TOWN OF SUNNYVALE,
DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS ACCORDING TO THE
01 March 2019NO. 2006-00076906,
PLAT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT
SHEET 1 OF
1
PLAT RECORDS, DALLAS
COUNTY,
TEXAS

Engineer/Surveyor:
J. Volk Consulting, Inc.
830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074
972-201-3100
ryan.reynolds@jvolkconsulting.com
TBPLS NO.: 10194033

Owner/Applicant:
Zeb and Leah Fish
495 Bufflehead Court
Sunnyvale, TX 75182
214-954-6824
zfish@msclaw.com

J. V O L K
consulting
830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074
972.201.3100 Texas Registration No. F-11962

Town of Sunnyvale
9.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Erick del Angel - Town
Planner
Summary:
Discuss, consider and act upon a request by Ezequiel and Fabiola Cortez to
approve a Minor Plat for the Tripp Addition, Lot 1, Block A at or about 353 East
Tripp Road.
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the proposed minor plat.

Background & Analysis:
The applicant is the representative for a residential property located at 353 East Tripp
Road. The property resides within a single family 3 residential zoning district. The SF-3
district requirement for minimum lot size is 1 acre. As it exists now, the un-platted and
non-conforming property has an approximate lot size of 0.92 acres (40,075 sq. ft.) and
an approximate lot width of 104 feet. Chart 3.05.03 of the Unified Development
Ordinance requires a minimum lot size of one acre, a minimum lot width of 170 feet,
and side setbacks of 30 feet.
In order to develop the property, the applicant received variances due to the nonconforming dimensions of the lot. On July 2, 2018, the Board of Adjustment granted
variances for the lot width, lot size, and setbacks as shown below. The applicant has
now returned to finalize the plat. All other zoning & subdivision platting requirements
have been met.
1. Variance to reduce minimum lot size to 0.92 acres.
2. Variance to reduce minimum lot width to 104 feet.
3. Variance to reduce minimum side yard setbacks – east side to reduce to 20 feet 4
inches and west side to reduce to 19 feet 4 inches.

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

Attachments:
• Location map
• Proposed minor plat
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Town of Sunnyvale
10.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Erick del Angel - Town
Planner
Summary:
Discuss, consider and act upon a request by Ronny Jones to approve an
amended site plan for Hope Church at or about 620 U.S. Highway 80.
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the proposed amended site plan.

Background & Analysis:
The subject property is 4.001 acres in size and was platted last May under the title
Berean Spirit Addition. The project received site plan approval but ran into
complications during the permitting stage for construction. The applicant has now
returned with a new site plan featuring a reconfigured parking lot design, building
facades, and interior floor plans.
The property is currently undeveloped and located east of the former Bull’s Pen Café.
Vacant land abuts the property to the south and east. US Highway 80 runs directly
north of the property. The subject property is zoned for Highway Commercial (HC). The
property owner intends to develop a church on the site, which is allowed by right in any
zoning district.

Overall Design
The plan features a 19,200 sq. ft. building that can be accessed on all sides by
pedestrian scaled doors. Although the site will have frontage along Highway 80,
vehicular access will be through a shared drive currently servicing the former
neighboring restaurant. The church’s drive will connect to the shared access drive. A
fire lane will run along the perimeter of the church. Details of the design are listed
below:
Building height: Highway Commercial (HC) zoning allows for a building height of
forty-five (45) feet and up to sixty-five (65) feet with a Special Use Designation
(SUD), measured from grade. The proposed building will be thirty (30) feet and
four (4) one-half (1/2) inches tall from grade to top of parapet.
Building exterior: The revised elevations show a lower band of four inch natural
stone, a middle section of natural thin veneer stone, and an upper band of
preformed metal gutter and fascia as part of the pre-engineered metal building.
The elevations are 100% masonry. They include a canopy, roof overhangs, and

peaked roof forms. The middle band of stone is recessed four inches to create
an offset. The building exits are recessed to break up the walls, and wall
mounted lights are included to add further architectural creativity.
Off-street parking: Required parking for Religious Use is one (1) space per fifty
(50) square feet of assembly area without fixed seating (3,694/50 = 74 spaces).
The applicant has submitted plans exceeding this requirement (116 spaces).
The parking will accommodate the proposed use.
Landscaping: Landscaping requirements per the UDO require that off-street
parking be landscaped and that a fifty (50) foot wide landscape buffer be
installed along Highway 80 as per US 80 Corridor Landscape Standards. The
buffer was allowed to be reduced to 25’ during the last site plan approval. The
landscape plan includes the required plantings in the landscape buffer as well as
throughout the rest of the site.
Building setbacks: The UDO requires that setbacks for Highway Commercial
(HC) zoning meet the minimum distances stated below.
Front – 40’
Side – 25’
Rear – 25’
Lighting: The submitted photometric plan adheres to UDO requirements but
does not include the required light fixture. US 80 Corridor Special Area Lighting
Standards requires decorative light fixtures such as the Oncor approved Hanover
Eurotique series style light or an approved equivalent. The applicant is proposing
a different style which is depicted in the attachments. The UDO specifies that
“the lights within parking lots and pedestrian areas should be from a consistent
family of fixtures for a uniform appearance within each development,” thus since
this is what the applicant is proposing Staff is in support.

Fiscal Impact:
NA

Attachments:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Location Map
Hope Church site plan
Hope Church building elevations
Landscape plan
Electrical site lighting
Photometric plan
Proposed lamp fixture
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D-Series Size 2

Catalog
Number

LED Area Luminaire

Notes

Type

Hit the Tab key or mouse over the page to see all interactive elements.

Specifications

Capable Luminaire

1.1 ft2

EPA:

(0.10 m2)

W

40”

Length:

This item is an A+ capable luminaire, which has been
designed and tested to provide consistent color
appearance and system-level interoperability.
• All configurations of this luminaire meet the Acuity
Brands’ specification for chromatic consistency
• This luminaire is A+ Certified when ordered with
DTL® controls marked by a shaded background.
DTL DLL equipped luminaires meet the A+
specification for luminaire to photocontrol
interoperability1
• This luminaire is part of an A+ Certified solution
for ROAM® or XPoint™ Wireless control networks,
providing out-of-the-box control compatibility
with simple commissioning, when ordered with
drivers and control options marked by a shaded
background1
To learn more about A+,
visit www.acuitybrands.com/aplus.
1. See ordering tree for details.
2. A+ Certified Solutions for ROAM require the order
of one ROAM node per luminaire. Sold Separately:
Link to Roam; Link to DTL DLL

(101.6 cm)

15”

Width:

(38.1 cm)

L

7-1/4”

Height:

(18.4 cm)

Weight
(max):

H

36 lbs

(16.3 kg)

A+ Capable options indicated
by this color background.

Ordering Information

EXAMPLE: DSX2 LED P7 T3M MVOLT SPA DDBXD

DSX2 LED
Series
DSX2 LED

LEDs
Forward optics
P1
P5
P2
P6
P3
P7
P4
P8
Rotated optics1
P10
P13
P11
P14
P12

Color temperature
30K
40K
50K
AMBPC

Distribution

3000 K
4000 K
5000 K
Amber
phosphor
converted2,3

T1S
T2S
T2M
T3S
T3M
T4M
TFTM

Type I Short
Type II Short
Type II Medium
Type III Short
Type III Medium
Type IV Medium
Forward Throw
Medium

Voltage
T5VS
T5S
T5M
T5W
BLC
LCCO
RCCO

Type V Very Short
Type V Short
Type V Medium
Type V Wide
Backlight control2,3
Left corner cutoff2,3
Right corner cutoff2,3

Control options

MVOLT 4
120 5
208 5
240 5
277 5
347 5,6
480 5,6

Mounting
Shipped included
SPA
Square pole mounting
RPA
Round pole mounting
WBA
Wall bracket
SPUMBA
Square pole universal mounting adaptor 7
RPUMBA
Round pole universal mounting adaptor 7
Shipped separately
KMA8 DDBXD U Mast arm mounting bracket adaptor
(specify finish) 8

Other options

Shipped installed
PER
NEMA twist-lock receptacle only (no controls) 9
PER5
Five-wire receptacle only (no controls) 9,10
PER7
Seven-wire receptacle only (no controls) 9,10
DMG
0-10V dimming extend out back of housing for
external control (no controls)
DS
Dual switching 11,12
PIRH
Bi-level, motion/ambient sensor, 15-30’ mounting
height, ambient sensor enable at 5fc 13

PIRH1FC3V Bi-level, motion sensor, 15’-30’ mounting
height, ambient sensor enabled at 1fc 13
BL30
Bi-level switched dimming, 30% 11,14
BL50
Bi-level switched dimming, 50% 11,14
PNMTDD3 Part night, dim till dawn 15
PNMT5D3 Part night, dim 5 hrs 15
PNMT6D3 Part night, dim 6 hrs 15
PNMT7D3 Part night, dim 7 hrs 15
FAO
Field Adjustable Output 16

Shipped installed
HS House-side shield 17
SF
Single fuse (120, 277, 347V) 7
DF Double fuse (208, 240, 480V) 7
L90 Left rotated optics 1
R90 Right rotated optics 1
BS Bird spikes

One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 800.279.8041 • www.lithonia.com
© 2011-2017 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved.

Finish (required)
DDBXD
DBLXD
DNAXD
DWHXD
DDBTXD
DBLBXD
DNATXD
DWHGXD

Dark bronze
Black
Natural aluminum
White
Textured dark bronze
Textured black
Textured natural aluminum
Textured white

DSX2-LED
Rev. 10/25/17
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Town of Sunnyvale
11.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Doug Kendrick, Fire Chief
Summary:
Discuss, consider and act upon authorizing the Town Manager to execute a
Letter of Intent between the Town of Sunnyvale and City of Mesquite to
explore the feasibility of contracting with the City of Mesquite for Fire/EMS
dispatching services.
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Background & Analysis:
There are three distinct functional areas to public safety dispatching: 911 operations,
dispatching emergency services personnel, and radio systems.
Currently, Dallas County handles 911 operations and then dispatching emergency
services personnel for all law enforcement, fire and EMS services. Last summer, the
Council directed staff to review the options for transitioning fire and EMS dispatching
services.
As a part of that direction, the Council approved an interlocal agreement to join the
GRMS Radio System to allow fire and EMS the capability to communicate with Dallas
County and our partner cities of Mesquite and Garland. Staff is in the process of
looking at equipment needs for this transition, and these purchases are already
budgeted in the current fiscal year.
This Letter of Intent (LOI) would signify that the Town wishes to further explore
contracting with Mesquite for the dispatching of fire and EMS personnel.There will be
IT design and equipment needed for these services. The LOI would allow the City of
Mesquite to begin the process of designing the I.T. infrastructure needed to provide the
services.

Fiscal Impact:
The cost for the I.T. infrastructure services is unknown. Currently, $200,000 is
budgeted for the radio system and dispatch transition services. This LOI would begin
the development of determining necessary costs.

Attachments:
• LOI City of Mesquite

Town of Sunnyvale
12.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Liz Hopkins, Finance
Director
Summary:
Discuss, consider and act upon the Independent Auditor's Report on financial
statements.
Staff Recommendation:
None

Background & Analysis:
In accordance with the Town Charter Section 6.12, the Town Council shall appoint a
certified public accountant to make a complete audit of the books and accounts of
each Town Department at the close of every fiscal year and present his or her report to
the Town Council.
Mike Ward Accounting & Financial Consulting, PLLC. has issued an unmodified
('clean') opinion indicating that the financial statements are presented fairly, in all
material respects, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
The auditor presented the report to the Audit Committee on April 29, 2019 and is here
tonight to present the report to the Town Council.

Fiscal Impact:
Attachments:
• Comprehensive Annual Financial Report For The Year Ended September 30, 2018

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS

Town of Sunnyvale
127 N. Collins Road
Sunnyvale, TX 75182
Telephone: 972-226-7177
Fax: 972-226-1804
www.townofsunnyvale.org

March 25, 2019
Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sunnyvale, Texas
Dear Mayor and Council Members:
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, for the year ended
September 30, 2018, is submitted herewith.
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this
report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that is established for this purpose. Because
the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather
than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.
Mike Ward Accounting and Financial Consulting, PLLC has issued an unmodified ("clean") opinion on the Town of
Sunnyvale's financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2018. The independent auditor's report is
located in the beginning of the financial section of the CAFR.
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and should be
read in conjunction with it. The Town's MD&A can be found immediately following the independent auditors' report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements.
GENERAL INFORMATION-TOWN OF SUNNYVALE
The Town of Sunnyvale is a small, upscale community located about 15 miles east of downtown Dallas.
Incorporated in 1953 and occupying approximately 16.8 square miles, Sunnyvale is a Town founded upon
uniqueness in the quality of life that our citizens enjoy and the positive environment in which our local businesses
can prosper.
The Town operates under the Council-Manager form of government. Policy-making and legislative authority are
vested in a governing Council of the Mayor and six (6) Council members. The Town Council is responsible for,
among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the Town
Manager. The Town Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the Town Council, and
for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Town.
The Town provides a range of services, including public safety, fire, medical emergency, maintenance of streets
and infrastructure, community development, provision of water and wastewater utilities, library services as well as
general administrative services.
The annual budget serves as the foundation of the Town's financial planning and control. The respective
department heads prepare and submit line item budget requests for the operations and maintenance portion of their
respective departments as well as a listing of capital items for consideration. The entire budget process includes
public involvement as the various elements composing the budget are reviewed in open and advertised public
meetings prior to final approval and adoption.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK
During the past several years, the Town has experienced similar economic challenges as other entities in the region,
state and nation. Property tax revenues provide the greatest portion of the Town's total governmental revenue
stream. Historically, the Town has realized strong property value growth and experienced an increase in property
values for fiscal year 2017-18. The property tax rate was lower from 2017 and property tax revenues were 14%
more than the prior year due to the increase in taxable value and new construction.
Building activity increased throughout the community with the Town experiencing the addition of new homes and
continues to work with developers to expand and diversify available retail opportunities. Sales tax revenues continue
to trend upward. The Town closely monitors all local economic indicators with the intention of being able to respond
as needed.
FOR THE FUTURE
The Town Council has identified strategic plan objectives and most of the major initiatives are directly related to
those objectives. Of extreme importance is the objective to enhance the quality of life of our citizens, through both
infrastructure improvements and the proper maintenance of the existing infrastructure. The following are current
initiatives and expected completion dates:
CIP Infrastructure Assessment and Financial Plan
Drainage Study and Plan of Action
Type B Roads
Nance Road, East Fork and Jobson
Jobson Road - US 80 to Tripp Road
Glazer Tract Concept Plan
Collins Road - Phase I

Spring
Spring
Annual
Spring
Spring
Summer
Summer

2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

At the end of September 2018, the Town of Sunnyvale was working on the following projects:
NE and SE corner of Collins and US-80 Retail Development
Collins Road - Phase 1 ROW Acquisition

Summer
Spring

2019
2019

LONGER-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING
Plans for additional improvements include completing the final phase of the Collins Road corridor expansion,
providing an efficient and more serviceable four-lane divided thoroughfare from the Town's southern limit to Town
East Boulevard.
Plans for additional road repair and replacement will be funded by the voter approved 1 /4 of one percent of the
sales tax revenues from the 4A Economic Development Corporation.
Unassigned fund balance in the general fund is 67% of total general fund expenditures and falls within the policy
guidelines set by the Council for budgetary and planning purposes.
Standard & Poor's Ratings rates Sunnyvale, Texas' general obligation (GO) bonds as 'AA.' The outlook is stable.

FINANCIAL INF.ORMATION
Accounting Procedures and Budgetary Controls
The Town's accounting records for general government are maintained on a modified accrual basis, with revenues
being recorded when available and measurable, and expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are
received and the liabilities are incurred. Accounting records for the Town's water and sewer utility, and other
proprietary activities are maintained on the accrual basis.
The budgetary process begins each year with the preparation of both current and proposed year revenue estimates
by the Town's financial management staff, and expenditure estimates by each Town department. Budgets are
reviewed by the Finance Director. The Town Manager makes final decisions and submits a recommended budget
to the Town Council. All funds are appropriated annually.
As part of each year's budget development process, departments are required to update expenditure estimates for
the current fiscal year. These estimates are reviewed by the Finance Director, the Town Manager, and the Town
Council concurrent with review of the proposed budget. This re-estimated budget may require a supplemental
appropriation and, if so, such supplemental appropriation is approved by ordinance adopted by the Town Council
prior to the end of the current fiscal year.
General Governmental Functions
Tax Rates All eligible property within the Town of Sunnyvale is subject to assessment, levy, and collection by the
Town. A continuing, direct ad valorem tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principal and interest on
outstanding bonds within the limits prescribed by law, and the payment of operation and maintenance costs is set
and approved by the Town Council. The tax rates adopted by the Town Council are shown below:
Year
FY 2012-2013
FY 2013-2014
FY 2014-2015
FY 2015-2016
FY 2016-2017
FY 2017-2018
FY2018-2019

Tax Rate
$.40796
$.40796
$.40796
$.40796
$.40796
$.41308
$.41290

Other Information
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United State and Canada ("GFOA") awarded the Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Sunnyvale for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual
financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine eligibility of another certificate.

Acknowledgements
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Our appreciation is also extended to the Mayor and members of the Town Council for providing the resources
necessary to maintain the integrity of the Town's financial affairs.
Respectfully submitted,
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Mike Ward Accounting & Financial Consulting, PLLC
Mike Ward, CPA
266 RCR 1397
Point, Texas 75472

(903) 269‐6211
mward@mikewardcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Town Council
Town of Sunnyvale
127 North Collins Road
Sunnyvale, Texas 75182
Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas (“Town”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and
the related notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on an auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, I
express no opinion. An audit also includes assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinions.
Opinions
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
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component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Sunnyvale,
Texas as of September 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, where applicable, and cash
flows, thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, and the TMRS Funding Progress and Schedule of Contributions and Schedule of
Changes in Net Pension Liability be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual non-major fund financial statements, and budgetary comparison schedules, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The budgetary comparison schedules and the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements
are the responsibility of management, and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated March 25, 2019 on my
consideration of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of my audit.
Respectfully Submitted,

Mike Ward Accounting & Financial Consulting, PLLC
Point, Texas
March 25, 2019
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
As management of the Town of Sunnyvale ("Town"), we offer the readers of the Town of Sunnyvale's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in the Town's financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights
• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $50,628,868 (net position). Of this amount, $38,059,225, or
75%, is net investment in capital assets. Net position restricted for specific purposes is $4,295,896, or
8%. The remaining unrestricted position of $8,273,747, or 16% may be used to meet the Town's
ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors in accordance with the Town's fiscal policies.
• The government's total net position increased by $11,149,297, or 28%, due to an increase in both
governmental activities and business-type activities net position.
• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $12,220,725, a decrease of ($78,879), or 1%, in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 43% of this total amount, or $5,221,341, is available for spending at the Town's
discretion (unassigned fund balance).
• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General fund of $5,221,341
was 66% of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.
• The Town's total long-term obligations decreased by ($1,156,211), or (9%), during the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Sunnyvale's basic
financial statements. The Town's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial
statements present two different views of the Town through the use of government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other
supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the Town of
Sunnyvale.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Basic Financial Statements
The first two statements (pages 22-25) in the basic financial statements are the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the Town’s financial status.
The next statements (pages 26-33) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of
the individual parts of the Town’s government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide
statements. There are two parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; and 2)
the proprietary fund statements.
The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes (pages 34-62). The notes to the financial
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, required
supplemental information (pages 64-66) is provided to show details about the Town’s pension plan.
Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
Town’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide
statements provide short and long-term information about the Town’s financial status as a whole.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town of Sunnyvale’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for some items that will only result in cash flows
in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). Both the statement of net
position and the statement of activities are prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting.
The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) business-type
activities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the Town’s basic services such as
public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes, sales tax and state and federal
grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the Town charges
customers to provide. These include the utility services offered by the Town of Sunnyvale. The final category is
the component unit. The Town has two component units: 4A Development Corporation and 4B Development
Corporation. The government-wide financial statements are on pages 22-25 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Town’s most significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The Town of Sunnyvale, like all other governmental entities in Texas, uses fund
accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as
the General Statutes or the Town’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of the Town of Sunnyvale can be divided
into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the Town’s basic services are accounted for in
governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and
what funds are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a short-term spending
focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that
helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the Towns’ programs.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
The Town of Sunnyvale adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The
budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the Town, the management of
the Town, and the decisions of the council about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also
authorizes the Town to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the Town complied with the budget
ordinance and whether or not the Town succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was
adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using
the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four
columns: 1) the original budget; 2) the final budget as amended by the council; 3) the actual resources, charges
to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final
budget and the actual resources and charges. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes can also
be found in this part of the statements. The Governmental Fund financial statements can be found on pages 2630 of this report.
Proprietary Funds – The Town of Sunnyvale has one type of proprietary fund which is the Utility Fund. The Town
charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or to other units within the Town.
These services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary Funds are reported in the same way that
all activities are reported in the statement of net position and the statement of activities. Proprietary Funds
provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The basic
proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 31-33 of this report.
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements are on pages 34-62 of this report.
Required Supplementary Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the Town of Sunnyvale’s progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. This information is found on pages 64-66.
Supplementary Information – The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the non-major
governmental funds are presented following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining
statements and individual fund statements can be found on pages 68-82. Fund financial statements for the
component units can be found on pages 77-82.
Statistical Section – The statistical section consists of unaudited information that presents details as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the Town’s overall financial health. These tables can be found on pages 85-95.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
GASB Pronouncements – The following statements for the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) were effective for the Town in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018.
GASB Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than
Pension’s”, that replaces Statement No. 45. It requires government to report a liability of the face of the financial
statements for the OPEB that they provide. The implementation of this statement does not result in any changes
to the Town’s financial statements.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net Position

Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Total deferred outflows of resources
Long-term liabilities outstanding
Other Liabilities
Total liabilities
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Governmental
Activities
2018
2017
$ 13,237,031
$ 13,227,332
16,753,042
13,910,650
29,990,073
27,137,982

Business-Type
Activities
2018
2017
$ 5,456,925 $ 5,010,602
28,537,509
21,776,695
33,994,434
26,787,297

Total Primary
Government
2018
2017
$ 18,693,956 $ 18,237,934
45,290,551
35,687,345
63,984,507
53,925,279

273,586

280,450

65,679

64,567

339,265

345,017

8,003,973
642,278
8,646,251

8,840,748
441,909
9,282,657

4,269,195
561,973
4,831,168

4,588,631
748,609
5,337,240

12,273,168
1,204,251
13,477,419

13,429,379
1,190,518
14,619,897

165,172

82,505

52,313

18,995

217,485

101,500

13,645,563
2,142,961
5,663,712
$ 21,452,236

11,019,317
2,109,210
4,924,743
18,053,270

24,413,662
2,152,935
2,610,035
$ 29,176,632

17,832,746
2,023,749
1,639,134
$ 21,495,629

38,059,225
4,295,896
8,273,747
$ 50,628,868

28,852,063
4,132,959
6,563,877
$ 39,548,899

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The net
position of the Town exceeded liabilities by $50,628,868 as of September 30, 2018. The Town's net position increased by
$11,149,297, for fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.
Net investment in capital assets:
The largest portion of the Town's net position, $38,059,225, or 75%, reflects the Town's investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
buildings, machinery and equipment) less any debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The Town uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the Town's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that
debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities
Restricted net position:
Restricted net position of $4,295,896, or 8%, is subject to external restrictions on how they may be used, or by enabling
legislation. The restricted net position is comprised of (a) $68,543, or 2%, for development, (b) $193,523 or 5% for
court use, (c) $1,100,375, or 26%, for debt service, (d) road improvement maintenance and operation of $1,198,595 or 28% and
(e) $1,734,860 or 40% for water infrastructure installation.
Unrestricted net position:
Unrestricted net position in the amount of $8,273,747, or 16%, is available to fund the Town programs to citizens and
obligations to creditors.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Governmental‐type activities ‐ Governmental‐type activities increased the Town's net position by
$3,454,573. A key element of this increase is as follows:
Capital contributions from developers totaling $3,132,941 were received during the 2018 fiscal year.

Expenses and Program Revenues ‐ Governmental Activities
(amounts expressed in thousands)

FY2018 Expenses
FY2017 Expenses

FY2018 Revenue
FY2017 Revenue

4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000
500
General
Government

Public
Safety

Public
Services

Public
Works

Parks &
Recreation

Library

Interest and
Fiscal Agent
Fees

Revenues by Source ‐ Governmental Activities
Franchise Taxes
15%
Property Taxes
40%

Grants and
Contributions
20%

Miscellaneous
1%
Sales Taxes
17%

Charges for Services
7%
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Business-type Activities - Business-type activities increased the Town's net position by $7,694,724,
excluding developer contributions.
Expenditures and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Water and Sewer

8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
‐
FY2018 Expenses

FY2018 Revenues

FY2017 Expenses

FY2017 Revenues

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities
Garbage , 7%

Impact Fees , 6%

Sewer , 31%
Water , 57%
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities
2018
2017
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General Revenues:
Property taxes
Franchise taxes
Sales tax
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
Expenses:
Program Expenses
General government
Public safety
Public services and operations
Public works
Parks and recreational
Library
Interest on long-term debt
Water and sewer
Total Expenses
Increase (decrease) in net position
Other revenues and financing sources (uses)
Transfers
Total other financing sources (uses)
Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position - October 1
Prior Period Adjustments
Net position - September 30

Business Activities
2018
2017

Totals
2018

2017

$ 1,494,248
293,108
3,164,377

$ 1,351,942
12,175
208,272

$ 5,729,121
6,375,710

$ 4,707,371
2,355,760

$ 7,223,369
293,108
9,540,087

$ 6,059,313
12,175
2,564,032

4,499,897
1,081,674
2,043,801
150,411
5,130
12,732,646

4,272,558
1,105,973
1,604,731
26,551
107,570
8,689,772

27,765
12,132,596

17,280
7,080,411

4,499,897
1,081,674
2,043,801
178,176
5,130
24,865,242

4,272,558
1,105,973
1,604,731
43,831
107,570
15,770,183

1,656,510
3,701,545
1,910,903
306,163
617,800
203,464
245,412
8,641,797

1,639,530
2,723,379
1,783,654
271,115
573,556
180,518
125,638
7,297,390

5,074,148
5,074,148

4,361,206
4,361,206

1,656,510
3,701,545
1,910,903
306,163
617,800
203,464
245,412
5,074,148
13,715,945

1,639,530
2,723,379
1,783,654
271,115
573,556
180,518
125,638
4,361,206
11,658,596

4,090,849

1,392,382

7,058,448

2,719,205

11,149,297

4,111,587

636,276
636,276

604,095
604,095

7,694,724

3,323,300

(636,276)
(636,276)
3,454,573
18,053,270
(55,607)
$21,452,236

(604,095)
(604,095)
788,287
17,264,983
$18,053,270

21,495,629
(13,721)
$29,176,632

18,172,329
$21,495,629

-

4,111,587

11,149,297
39,548,899
(69,328)
$ 50,628,868

35,437,312
$39,548,899

The Governmental Activities have increased the net position in the current fiscal period by $3,454,573 which is a
19% increase over the prior year. This is due, in large part, to developer contributions increasing $2,956,105, 69% during the fiscal year.

The
Business-type
Activities
have
increased
the
net
position
in
the
current
fiscal
year
by
$7,694,724.
This is a 36% increase from the prior year that is due, in large part, to an increase in capital contributions of $4,019,950, or 171%.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds
As noted earlier, the Town of Sunnyvale uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.
Governmental Funds - The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing
requirements. Specifically, the unassigned fund balance may serve as a measure of net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.
As of the close of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$12,220,725, a decrease of ($78,879), or -1%, in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount, $5,221,341,
or 43%, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the Town's
discretion. The Town has assigned fund balances of $4,913,116, or 40% for the following:
1) $4,380,897, or 88% for capital and infrastructure improvements, 2) $507,144, or 10% for vehicle replacements,
3) $25,075, or .5% for community services. A portion, $2,041,268, or 17%, of the fund balance is restricted
to indicate that it is available for spending for the following: 1) $68,543, or 3% for community development,
2) $193,524, or 9% for state imposed restricitions for use of court fees, 3) $248,126, or 12% for debt
service requirements,
4) $1,531,075, or 75% for road maintenance and improvements.
The
remaining fund balance of $45,000, or .4% is considered nonspendable and represents note receivable
due to the Town.
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Sunnyvale At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $5,221,341. As a measure of the General
Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total expenditures. Unassigned fund
represents 66% of total general fund expenditures.
The debt service fund is a major governmental fund of the Town of Sunnyvale. At the end of the current fiscal year,
fund balance increased $73,116 or 42%.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Town made revisions to the budget. Generally,
budget amendments fall into one of three categories: (1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are
used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; (2) amendments made to
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and (3) increases
in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.
Revenues were more than the budgeted amounts, mainly in the areas of licenses and permits, and
intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures were less than budgeted at the fund level.
Proprietary Funds - The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the proprietary funds at the end
of the fiscal year amounted to $2,610,035.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets - The Town of Sunnyvale's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as
of September 30, 2018, totals $45,290,551 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include land, buildings,
improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment, vehicles, and construction in progress. This amount represents a
net increase of $9,603,206, or 27%, (net of accumulated depreciation) over the prior fiscal year.
Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions:
• Completion of a new water tower
• Dedication of various street and water/sewer infrastructure by developers
Capital Assets
September 30, 2018
(net of depreciation)

Land
Infrastructure
Buildings & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Construction in Progress
Total

$

$

Governmental
2018
2017
1,419,679 $ 1,419,679
7,260,898
10,250,868
3,775,920
3,910,746
1,275,817
1,319,327
30,758
16,753,042 $ 13,910,650

Business-type
2018
2017
$
127,225 $
127,225
22,341,886
16,463,522
5,619,892
1,028,518
448,506
411,362
3,746,068
$ 28,537,509 $ 21,776,695

Total
2018
2017
$ 1,546,904 $ 1,546,904
32,592,754
23,724,420
9,395,812
4,939,264
1,724,323
1,730,689
30,758
3,746,068
$ 45,290,551 $ 35,687,345

More detailed information about the Town's capital assets is presented in Note F to the financial statements.

Long-term obligations - As of September 30, 2018, the Town of Sunnyvale had total long-term debt outstanding of
$12,125,245 which is a decrease of ($1,156,211), or -9%, from the previous year.
Outstanding Debt
As of September 30, 2018
Governmental
2018
2017
Certificates of Obligation
(backed by tax revenues and
net Water/Sewer revenues)
Tax Note
Refunding Bonds
(backed by tax revenues and
net Water/Sewer revenues)
Notes Payable
Capital Lease
Pension Related Debt
Total

$

$

Business-type
2018
2017
$

$

2,392,001

$

6,304,715

2017
$

6,751,268

4,045,000

$ 4,359,267

375,000
2,640,786

495,000
2,829,234

1,779,817

1,935,755

375,000
4,420,603

495,000
4,764,989

310,484
507,838
7,879,108

402,288
630,094
$ 8,715,883

84,316
122,289
4,246,137

92,752
145,065
4,565,573

84,316
310,484
630,127
$ 12,125,245

92,752
402,288
775,159
$ 13,281,456

$

2,259,715

Total
2018

$

More detailed information about the Town's long-term obligations is presented in Note I to these financial statements.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the Town's finances for those with an interest in the
government's finances. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the
Town of Sunnyvale, Attention: Director of Finance at 127 N. Collins Road, Sunnyvale, Texas, call 972-203-4145,
or email finance@townofsunnyvale.org.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles)
Employee promissory note receivable
Note receivable
Inventory
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation:
Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total Assets

$

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
Deferred outflows from pensions
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year:
Compensated absences
Capital lease
Notes payable
Certificates of Obligations
Bonds payable
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB Liability
Capital lease
Notes payable
Certificates of Obligations
Bonds payable
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
Deferred inflows from pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Development
Municipal court
Debt service
Street maintenance
Water infrastructure installation
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

5,730,644

$

2,807,481

Component Units

$

Total

4A Development
Corporation

4B Development
Corporation

8,538,125

$

$

2,260,885

2,708,579

888,603
45,000
382,739
-

833,809
80,775

1,722,412
45,000
382,739
80,775

69,959
-

6,190,045

1,734,860

7,924,905

-

-

1,419,679
30,758

127,225
-

1,546,904
30,758

-

-

10,250,868
3,775,920
1,275,817
29,990,073

22,341,886
5,619,892
448,506
33,994,434

32,592,754
9,395,812
1,724,323
63,984,507

2,330,844

2,866,737

273,586
273,586

65,679
65,679

339,265
339,265

6,182
6,182

6,182
6,182

385,108
238,654
18,516
-

251,294
60,920
18,192
5,957
225,610

636,402
299,574
36,708
5,957
225,610

387
-

4,140
-

62,433
93,468
125,000
120,000
175,000

11,529
12,005
135,000
145,000

73,962
93,468
137,005
255,000
320,000

34,998
-

842
-

62,432
440,040
67,798
217,016
250,000
3,925,000
2,465,786
8,646,251

11,529
105,554
16,735
72,311
2,124,715
1,634,817
4,831,168

73,961
545,594
84,533
217,016
322,311
6,049,715
4,100,603
13,477,419

9,900
1,761
347,741
394,787

3,129
9,900
1,761
19,772

165,172
165,172

52,313
52,313

217,485
217,485

4,907
4,907

4,907
4,907

13,645,563

24,413,662

38,059,225

-

-

68,543
193,523
248,126
1,531,075
5,765,406
21,452,236

418,075
1,734,860
2,610,035
$ 29,176,632

68,543
193,523
666,201
1,531,075
1,734,860
8,375,441
$ 50,628,868

$

1,937,332
1,937,332

158,158
-

$

2,848,240
2,848,240

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Expenses
Function/Program Activities
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Services and Operations
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Library
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Total governmental activities
Business-type Activities:
Utility Fund
Total business-type activities
Total primary government
Component units:
4A Development Corporation
4B Development Corporation
Total component units

$ 1,656,510
3,701,545
1,910,903
306,163
617,800
203,464
245,412
8,641,797

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Charges for
Grants and
Grants and
Services
Contributions Contributions

$

5,074,148
5,074,148
13,715,945

$

82,597
334,652
417,249

396,095
152,621
544,563
389,576
10,685
708
1,494,248

$

5,729,121
5,729,121
7,223,369

$

-

278,910
13,578
620
293,108

$

293,108

$

-

12,000
3,132,941
19,436
3,164,377
6,375,710
6,375,710
9,540,087

$

-

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Miscellaneous
Investment income
Transfers
Total general revenues
Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net position - ending

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
Page 21

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Governmental
Business
Activities
Activities
Total

Component Units
4B Development
4A Development
Corporation
Corporation

$

$

(981,505)
(3,523,346)
(1,366,340)
3,216,354
(587,679)
(202,136)
(245,412)
(3,690,064)

$

(3,690,064)

$

$

$

-

$

7,030,683
7,030,683
7,030,683

$

4,499,897
2,043,801
1,081,674
5,130
150,411
(636,276)
7,144,637
3,454,573
18,053,270
(55,607)
21,452,236

-

$

$

-

27,765
636,276
664,041
7,694,724
21,495,629
(13,721)
29,176,632

(981,505)
(3,523,346)
(1,366,340)
3,216,354
(587,679)
(202,136)
(245,412)
(3,690,064)
7,030,683
7,030,683
3,340,619

$

$

$

-

4,499,897
2,043,801
1,081,674
5,130
178,176
7,808,678
11,149,297
39,548,899
(69,328)
50,628,868

-

$

-

$

$

$

(82,597)
(82,597)

408,760
208,283
9,784
687,500
1,314,327
1,231,730
707,046
(1,444)
1,937,332

-

$

$

$

(334,652)
(334,652)

817,520
149,431
8,699
(687,500)
288,150
(46,502)
2,896,186
(1,444)
2,848,240

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

General
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectible)
Employee promissory note receivable
Note receivable
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

$

5,730,644
690,281
45,000
382,739
6,848,664

Debt Service
Fund

Other
Governmental
Funds

$

$

4,799
265,289
270,088

224,281
5,924,758
6,149,039

Total
$ 5,730,644
919,361
45,000
382,739
6,190,047
13,267,791

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Total liabilities

385,108
238,650
623,758

18,516
18,516

-

385,108
238,650
18,516
642,274

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Unavailable revenue - note receivable
Total deferred inflows of resources

18,607
382,739
401,346

3,446
3,446

-

22,053
382,739
404,792

45,000

-

-

45,000

Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Promissory note
Restricted for:
Community development
Municipal court
Street maintenance
Debt Service
Assigned for:
Infrastructure improvements
Vehicle replacement
Community services
Capital improvements
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

25,000
507,144
25,075
5,221,341
5,823,560

$

6,848,664

$

248,126

68,543
193,524
1,531,075
-

68,543
193,524
1,531,075
248,126

248,126

4,355,897
6,149,039

25,000
507,144
25,075
4,355,897
5,221,341
12,220,725

6,149,039

$ 13,267,791

270,088

$

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet

$

12,220,725

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

23,528,477

Accumulated depreciation has not been included in the governmental fund
financial statements.

(6,775,435)

Premiums and discounts on issuance of debt are not recognized on the
balance sheet for governmental funds.

(460,786)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenue in the fund financial statements.

374,028

Deferred inflow/outflow of resources for pension are not reported in the fund
financial statements

108,414

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and; therefore, are not reported in the funds.

(6,910,484)

Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, is not reported in the fund financial statements.

(440,040)

Net OPEB liability is not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, is not reported in the fund financial statements.

(67,798)

Accrued liabilities for compensated absences are not reflected in the fund
financial statements.

(124,865)

Net position of governmental activities - statement of net position

$

21,452,236

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Debt
Service
Fund

General
Fund
REVENUES
Property taxes
Franchise taxes
Sales tax collected
Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and permits
Charge for services
Impact fees
Investment income
Donation - Library
Intergovernmental - state & local
Developer contributions
Grant Revenue
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Public services and operations
Parks and recreation
Library
Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal agent fees
Issuance costs of tax note
Capital Outlays:
General government
Public works
Public safety
Public services and operations
Parks and recreation
Library
Total Expenditures

$ 3,825,226
1,081,673
2,043,801
517,371
512,303
44,080
24,975
620
31,820
5,130
8,086,999

$

702,784
2,291
52,910

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

757,985

1,482,306
3,574,902
808,451
1,094,374
602,178
197,395

-

-

681,804
245,412
-

148,956
49,518
12,250
7,970,330

30,918
389,576
90,431
-

Total

13,195
524,120

$ 4,528,010
1,081,673
2,043,801
548,289
512,303
44,080
389,576
117,697
620
84,730
13,195
5,130
9,369,104

99,970
21,949
-

1,482,306
3,574,902
908,421
1,116,323
602,178
197,395

-

681,804
245,412
-

927,216

121,919

148,956
49,518
12,250
9,019,465

402,201

349,639

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

116,669

(169,231)

Other Revenues and Financing Sources (uses)
Bond proceeds
Contributions
Sale of assets
Transfers
Total Other Financing Sources (uses)

226,000
164,028
390,028

242,347
242,347

(1,060,893)
(1,060,893)

226,000
(654,518)
(428,518)

Net Change in Fund Balance

506,697

73,116

(658,692)

(78,879)

Fund Balances, October 1
Fund Balances, September 30

5,316,867
$ 5,823,564

$

175,013
248,129

$

6,807,731
6,149,039

12,299,611
$ 12,220,732

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net change in fund balances - statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances - governmental funds

$

(78,879)

Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the fund financial statements
are different because:
Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the fund financial statements
but these are shown as an increase in capital assets in the government-wide
financial statements. The effect of removing the 2018 capital outlays is to
increase net position.

3,482,095

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it
does not require the use of current financial resources. The effect of recording
the current year's depreciation is to decrease net position.

(670,461)

Current year long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund
financial statements but are shown as a reduction in long term debt in the
government-wide financial statements.

681,804

Bond premiums are recognized as an other financing source in the
governmental funds, whereas premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds in the statement of activities.

32,715

Changes in net pension liability are not shown in the fund financial
statements.

35,417

Revenues in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances that are not recognized as revenues in the statement of activities.

(28,118)

Change in net position - statement of activities

$

3,454,573

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUE
Property taxes
Franchise Tax
Sales Tax
Fines and Forfeitures
Licenses and Permits
Charge for Services
Investment Income
Intergovernmental - state & local
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Capital Outlay
Total General Government

3,762,614
1,092,431
1,766,250
431,300
311,014
45,000
14,000
3,961
7,426,570

$

3,762,614
1,092,431
1,766,250
431,300
311,014
45,000
14,000
3,961
7,426,570

Actual
$

3,825,226
1,081,673
2,043,801
517,371
512,303
44,080
24,975
31,820
5,750
8,086,999

Variance with
Final Budget Positive
(Negative)
$

62,612
(10,758)
277,551
86,071
201,289
(920)
10,975
31,820
1,789
660,429

1,508,808
29,000
1,537,808

1,508,808
29,000
1,537,808

1,482,306
1,482,306

26,502
29,000
55,502

Public Safety
Police
Fire
Capital Outlay
Total Public Safety

2,599,187
1,132,212
22,400
3,753,799

2,599,187
1,132,212
22,400
3,753,799

2,596,064
978,838
49,518
3,624,420

3,123
153,374
(27,118)
129,379

Public Services and Operations
Capital Outlay
Total Public Services

1,115,892
1,115,892

1,115,892
1,115,892

1,094,374
1,094,374

21,518
21,518

Public Works
Public Works
Capital Outlay
Total Public Works

1,104,482
1,104,482

1,104,482
1,104,482

808,451
148,956
957,407

296,031
(148,956)
147,075

Parks and Recreation
Parks
Capital Outlay
Total Parks and Recreation

553,400
553,400

553,400
553,400

602,178
12,250
614,428

(48,778)
(12,250)
(61,028)

Library
Library
Capital Outlay
Total Library

200,732
2,200
202,932

200,732
2,200
202,932

197,395
197,395

3,337
2,200
5,537

8,268,313

8,268,313

7,970,330

297,983

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures
Other Revenues and Financing Sources (uses)
Contributions
Transfers
Total Other Financing Sources (uses)
Net change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances/Equity, beginning of year
Fund Balances/Equity, end of year

$

(841,743)

(841,743)

116,669

958,412

18,454
18,454

18,454
18,454

226,000
164,028
390,028

(226,000)
145,574
(80,426)

(823,289)

(823,289)

506,697

877,986

5,316,867
4,493,578

$

5,316,867
4,493,578

$

5,316,867
5,823,564
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Utility Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Inventory
Capital Assets:
Land
Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

$

80,775
127,225
27,564,811
6,667,418
881,059
(6,703,004)
28,537,509
28,618,284
33,994,434

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows from pensions
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

65,679
65,679

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Accrued expenses
Payables from restricted assets:
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences - current
Notes payable - current
Certificates of obligation - current
Bonds payable - current
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Notes payable
Certificates of obligation
Bonds payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

251,294
60,920
5,957
225,610
18,192
11,529
12,005
135,000
145,000
865,507
11,533
105,554
16,731
72,311
2,124,715
1,634,817
3,965,661
4,831,168

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows from pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Impact fees
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

2,807,481
1,734,860
833,809
5,376,150

52,313
52,313

24,413,662

$

418,075
1,734,860
2,610,035
29,176,632

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Utility
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for sales and services:
Water sales
Sewer sales
Garbage collection fees
Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Maintenance and repair
Contractual services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Impact fees
Amortization
Interest expense
Bad debt expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income before capital contributions and transfers
Capital contributions
Transfers
Changes in net position
Net position, October 1
Net position, September 30

$ 3,250,037
1,784,928
372,578
5,407,543

569,278
64,638
160,638
3,485,882
659,231
4,939,667
467,876

27,765
321,578
13,224
(145,777)
(1,928)
214,862
682,738
6,375,710
636,276
7,694,724
21,495,629
$ 29,176,632

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Utility
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other sources
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid for goods and services
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds
Impact fees
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities

636,276
321,578
957,854

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Interest and fiscal charges on debt
Deferred charge on refunding
Principal payments on bonds
Net cash provided by (used in) capital & related financing activities

(1,044,334)
(146,647)
(283,434)
(1,474,415)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30

27,765
27,765

$

489,809
4,052,533
4,542,342

$

2,807,481
1,734,860
4,542,341

Classified as:
Current
Restricted
Noncash disclosures:
Developer Contributions
Premium Amortization
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operation activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Bad Debt Expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Receivables
Due to/from
Inventory
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Pension liability
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

5,478,111
76
(573,574)
(3,926,008)
978,605

$

6,375,710
13,224
-

$

467,876

659,231
(1,928)

54,959
76
(11,476)

$

(214,850)
29,010
(4,293)
510,729
978,605

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
Page 30

TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Town of Sunnyvale ("Town") is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and a six-member Council. The
Town provides the following services to the citizens of the Town as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire),
public works, parks and recreation, water and sewer utilities, and general administrative services.
The accounting and reporting policies of the Town relating to the funds included in the accompanying basic financial
statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") applicable to the
state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for local government include those principles
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in the publication entitled State and Local Governments-Audit and Accounting Guide. The more significant accounting policies of
the Town are described below:
1. Reporting Entity
The Town is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and six-member Council and has the authority to make
decisions, appoint administrators and managers, and significantly influence operations.
It also has the primary
accountability for fiscal matters. Therefore, the Town is a financial reporting entity as defined by GASB Statement No. 14, "The
Financial Reporting Entity," as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units."
Under GASB Statement No. 14, component units are organizations for which the Town is financially accountable and all
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Town are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability exists if the Town
appoints a voting majority of an organization's governing board and is either able to impose its will on that organization or
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
Town. The Town may be financially accountable for governmental organizations with a separately elected governing board, a
governing board appointed by another government, or a jointly appointed board that is fiscally dependent on the Town. The
financial statements of the component units may be discretely presented in a separate column from the primary government,
or blended with the financial statements of the primary government. GASB Statement No. 39 added clarification to GASB
Statement No. 14 by including entities which meet all three of the following requirements:
1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely for the direct benefit of the primary
government, its component units, or its constituents;
2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access a majority of the
economic resources received or held by the separate organization;
3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or its
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to other access, are significant to the primary government.
The financial statements of the following component units have been "discretely presented" within the accompanying report
because (i) their governing boards are not substantially the same as the governing body of the Town, or (ii) the component
units provide services entirely or almost entirely to the citizenry.
Discretely presented component units. The Town has two discretely presented component units, 4A Development
Corporation and 4B Development Corporation. The component units described below are included in the Town's reporting
entity because the Town appoints the governing body and the Corporations are fiscally dependent on the Town. To
emphasize that the component units are legally separate from the Town, they are reported in a separate column within the
financial statements. Fund information for the component units can be found in the supplementary information in this report.
There are no separate financial statements issued for the component units.

Page 31

TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Reporting Entity (continued)
The Sunnyvale 4A Development Corporation is governed by a 5-member board appointed by, and serving at the pleasure
of the Town Council. The funding for the Corporation occurs with the collection of 1/4 of one percent of sales tax collections
from the Town. The Corporation promotes development of commercial real estate, fosters local prosperity, and offers a
competitive advantage for new, relocating, and expanding businesses.
The Sunnyvale 4B Development Corporation is responsible for collecting and disbursing the one-half of one percent sales tax to be used for
economic incentives, and development and improvement in the quality of life for its citizens. The members of the Corporation's
board serve at the pleasure of the Town Council.
In addition, GASB Statement No. 61 considers an organization that does not meet the financial accountability criteria to be
included as a component unit if management's professional judgment determines it to be necessary and misleading if
it were to be omitted. This evaluation includes consideration of whether a financial benefit or burden exists in the relationship between the
entities. Management has not identified any additional organizations that fit this criteria.
2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting
The basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with GASB Statement No. 34 which requires that the government-wide
financial statements to be prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, and the economic resources measurement focus.
Government-wide financial statements do not provide information by fund, but distinguish between the Town's governmental
activities and business-type activities on the statement of net position and statement of activities. Significantly, the Town's
statement of net position includes both noncurrent assets and noncurrent liabilities. In addition, the government-wide
statement of activities reflects depreciation expense on the Town's capital assets, including infrastructure.
In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the Town has prepared fund financial statements, which use the
modified accrual basis of accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus for the governmental funds.
The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary funds. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned, and
when expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
Management's Discussion and Analysis includes an analytical overview of the Town's financial activities. In addition, a
budgetary comparison statement is presented that compares the original adopted and final amended budget with actual
results for the General Fund.
The basic financial statements include both government-wide, based on the Town as a whole, and fund financial
statements. The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental activities, which normally
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely on
fees and charges for support.
The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a functional category
(police, fire, public works, etc.) or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or program. Program revenues include: a) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or program, b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular function or program, or c) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or program. Taxes and other items
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
The net cost, by function or business-type activity, is normally covered by general revenue (property and sales taxes,
franchise taxes, and interest income).

Page 32

TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (continued)
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual governmental
funds, and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns within the funds financial statements. The major
governmental funds are the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund. The major proprietary fund is the Utility Fund. GASB
Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of either
fund category for the governmental and proprietary combined) for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are
combined in a separate column within the fund financial statements. With the adoption of GASB Statement No. 63, the
presentation of deferred inflows/outflows is included in this calculation.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. The principle operating revenues of the Utility Fund are charges to customers for sales and
services. The Utility Fund also recognizes, as operating revenue, the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of
connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the costs of sales and service,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting the definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity, and the change in aggregate financial
position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The focus of the fund financial statements is on major individual
funds of the governmental and proprietary categories. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed
and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information.
3. Measurement Focus
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are
recognized in the accounts, and reported within the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. The economic resources measurement focus means
all assets and liabilities, (whether current or noncurrent), are included on the statement of net position, and the operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, including unbilled water and sewer services which are accrued.
Expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of cash flows.
Governmental fund level financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter,
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available when they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due and payable shortly after year end, as
required by GASB Interpretation No. 6.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3. Measurement Focus (continued)
Ad valorem, franchise, and sales tax revenues recorded in the General Fund, and ad valorem tax revenues recorded in the
Debt Service Fund, are recognized under the susceptible to accrual concept. Licenses and permits, charges for services,
fines and forfeitures, contributions, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash, as the
resulting receivable is not measurable. Investment earnings are recorded as earned since they are measurable and
available. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance. Intergovernmental grant revenues are recognized when all
eligibility requirements have been met.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed.
Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Town are financed. The acquisition, use
and balances of the Town's expendable financial resources, and the related liabilities, except those accounted for in
proprietary funds, are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of
changes in financial position, rather than upon net income determination. The following is a description of the Town's major
governmental funds:
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. All general tax revenues, and other receipts that are not restricted by law or
contractual agreement to some other fund, are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges,
and capital improvements costs, that are not paid through other funds, are paid from this fund.
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation
related cost on long term obligation debt of governmental funds.

of

resources

for

the

payment

of

principal,

interest, and

Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. Within the economic measurement focus,
all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net position.
Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases, (e.g., revenues), and decreases, (e.g., expenses), in net
position. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and providing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principle ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town's water and sewer services are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the proprietary fund include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses, not meeting this definition, are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. The following is a description of the proprietary fund:
The Utility Fund accounts for the activities of trash collection, and water and wastewater operations, that are intended to be
self-supporting on a user charge basis.
4 Financial Statement Amounts
a.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, certificates of deposit, and
short-term investments with original maturities of one year or less from the date of acquisition.
b.

Inventories

Inventories are valued using the first-in/first-out ("FIFO") method. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4 Financial Statement Amounts (continued)
c.

Receivable and Payable Balances

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
Short-term advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivable and payable accounts, and
are reported as Internal Balances.
Legally authorized transfers are treated as transfers, and are included in the results of operations of both governmental
and proprietary funds.
d.

Restricted Assets

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature of normal understanding of the
availability of the asset. Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of
other governments, or are imposed by law, through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted assets in
the proprietary fund represent cash and cash equivalents, and investments set aside for repayment of customer's
water/sewer deposits, impact fees, and various bond covenants.
Impact fees are the capital recovery fees that are, by law, restricted to the projects these funds may be used to support.
Customer deposits received for water and sewer services are, by law, to be considered restricted assets. These activities
are included in the Utility Fund.
e.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, and improvements, purchased or acquired, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary
fund financial statements. The Town defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost,
if historical cost is not available. Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date donated. Additions,
improvements, and other capital outlays, that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, are capitalized. Other costs
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Net interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the
assets constructed. No interest was capitalized during the current fiscal year.
Management elected not to retroactively report infrastructure assets within the scope of GASB 34.
Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Asset Class
Buildings
Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure

Years
40 years
10-40 years
3-5 years
40-50 years
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4 Financial Statement Amounts (continued)
f.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
The separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources , represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditures) until then.
The Town only has two items that qualifiy for this type of reporting. It is the deferred charge on refunding debt
reported in the government-wide statement of net position, and on the utility operations fund statement of net position. A
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt, and its reacquisition price.
This
amount
is
deferred
and
amortized
over
the
life
of
the
refunded
debt.
The
Town's
pension
plan contributions made from the measurement date of the pension plan to the current fiscal year end are deferred and
will be recognized in the subsequent fiscal year end. Also, the difference between projected and actual investment
earnings are amortized as a component of pension expense over a five-year period beginning with the period in which
the difference occurred.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources , represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The Town has three items that qualify for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue is reported
in the governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred revenue from property taxes is shown as a deferred inflow of
resource. The amount is deferred and recognized as inflows of resources in the period that the amounts become
available. Deferred revenue from the receivable from 4A is shown as a deferred resource. The amount is deferred and
recognized as inflows of resources in the period that the amounts become available. As a component of implementing
GASB Statement No. 68, and GASB Statement No. 75, a deferred inflow is recorded in the government-wide statement of net position
and within the separate financials for the proprietary statement of net position, for the difference in projected and actual experience in the
actuarial measurement of the total pension liability not recognized in the current year. The amount is deferred and
amortized over a period of years determined by the Plan actuary. The differences are amortized over the average
remaining service life of all participants in the respective pension plan and recorded as a component of pension
expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred.
g.

Compensated absences

It is the government's policy to permit employees with at least six months of continuous service to accumulate earned but
unused vacation pay benefits, not to exceed two times the rate of the employees' annual rate of accrual based on years
of service. It is the Town's policy to pay up to 90 days of unused sick time for full time employees upon termination. All sick
and vacation pay is accrued when incurred within the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. As such,
there is an accrual at the close of the fiscal year in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements for the
amount due to all employees as of September 30, 2018. No unused holiday leave will be paid out upon termination of
employment.
h.

Pension Plan

In government-wide financial statements, retirement plans (pension) are required to be recognized and disclosed using
the accrual basis of accounting regardless of the amounts recognized as pension expenditures.
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h.
Pension Plan (continued)
In general, the Town recognizes a net pension liability, which represents the Town's proportionate share of the excess
of the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the pension reflected in the actuarial report provided by the
Texas Municipal Retirement System ("TMRS"). The net pension liability is measured as of December 31, 2017. Changes
in the net pension liability are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred inflows of resources, or deferred outflows
of resources, depending on the nature of the change. The changes in net pension liability that is recorded as deferred
inflows of resources, or deferred outflows of resources, (that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs
and differences between expected or actual experience), is amortized over the weighted average remaining service
life of all participants, and are recorded as a component of pension expense beginning with the period in which it is
incurred.
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, relating to pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Town's pension plan with TMRS, and additions/deductions
from the plan's fiduciary net position, have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For
this purpose, benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions, are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at market value.
Projected earning on pension investments are recognized as a component of pension expense. Difference between
projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows of resources, or deferred outflows of resources,
and will be amortized as a component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the
period in which the difference occurred. Each subsequent year will incorporate an additional closed five-year period
of recognition.
i.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types within the fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds on a straight-line basis. The Town has compared this method to the effective interest method
and found the difference between the two methods to be immaterial. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.
Within the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.
j.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds)
and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted-net position and unrestricted-net
position within the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the
order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town's policy to consider restricted-net position to have
been depleted before unrestricted-net position is applied.
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k.

Fund Balance Policies

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance as nonspendable, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to honor constraints on
how specific amounts can be spent.
• Nonspendable fund balance - includes the portion of net resources that cannot be spent because of its form
(i.e., inventory, long-term loans, or prepaids), or because they must remain intact.
• Restricted fund balance - includes the portion of net resources on which limitations are imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or by laws or regulations of other governments (i.e. externally imposed limitations). Amounts can be
spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external resource providers, or as allowed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
• Committed fund balance - includes the portion of net resources that can only be used for a specific purpose,
determined by a resolution or ordinance of the Town Council, and that remains binding unless removed in the same
manner. The resolution must be approved before the commitment will be reflected on the financial statements.
• Assigned fund balance - includes the portion of net resources for which an intended use has been established by
the Town Council or the Town Manager. Assignment of fund balance is much less formal than commitments, and
do not require formal action for their imposition or removal. In governmental funds, other than the General Fund,
assigned fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed, which indicates that resources are, at
a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund, as directed by the Town Council, or the Town Manager.
• Unassigned fund balance - includes the amounts within the General Fund in excess of what can properly be classified in
one of the other categories of fund balance. It is the residual classification of the General Fund, and includes all
amounts not contained in other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically available for any purpose.
Negative residual amounts for all other governmental funds are reported in this classification.
Fund balances of governmental funds are reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations requiring
the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish limitations on the use of resources
through either a commitment, committed fund balance, or an assignment, assigned fund balance.
The purpose of the Town's fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of financial resources to protect against
reducing service levels or raising taxes and fees because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unprecedented one-time
expenditures.
It is the long-term goal of the Town to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance in the general fund equivalent to no
less than 66% of operating expenses. The Town is currently in compliance with this policy, with an unassigned fund balance at 67%
of operating expenditures.
l.

Fund Balance Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources, the total
of committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted,
committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance within the governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town's policy to consider any
restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any component of unrestricted fund balance. Further,
when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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m.

Federal and State Grants

Grants and shared revenues are generally accounted for within the fund financed.
n.

Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the current year to budget have been presented within the supplementary section of the financial
statements in order to provide an understanding of budgeted to actual results.
o.

Property Taxes

The Town's property tax is levied each October 1, on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, for all real and
personal property. Appraised values are established by the Dallas Central Appraisal District as market value and
assessed at 100% of appraised value. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The
Dallas County Appraisal District bills for the property taxes, which are due October 1. Full payment must be made prior to the next
January 31, to avoid penalty or interest charges. Over time, substantially all property taxes are collected. Revenues are
recognized as ad valorem taxes are collected. Additional delinquent property taxes estimated to be collectible within 60 days
following the close of the fiscal year have been recognized as a revenue at the fund level.
In Texas, county-wide central appraisal districts are required under the Property Tax Code to assess all property within
the appraisal district on the basis of 100% of its market value, and are prohibited from applying any assessment ratios.
The value of property within the appraisal district must be reviewed every five years; however, the Town may, at its own
expense, require annual reviews of appraisal values. The Town may challenge appraised values established by the
appraisal district through various appeals, and, if necessary, take legal action. Under this legislation, the Town continues
to set tax rates on Town property. However, if the effective tax rate, including tax rates for bonds and other contractual
obligations, adjusted for new improvements, exceeds the rate for the previous year by more than 8%, qualified voters
of the Town may petition for an election to determine whether to limit the tax rate to no more than 8% above the tax rate
of the previous year.
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Town had a tax rate of $.413088 per $100 assessed values.

p.

Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are reported
as interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services
provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses.
Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost
as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In, and Transfers Out, are netted,
and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables
and payables are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances" line on the government-wide statement of net
position.
q.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates.
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r.

Program Revenues

Certain revenues such as charges for services and impact fees are included in program revenues.
s.

Program Expenses

Certain indirect costs, such as administrative costs, are included in the program expense reported for individual functional
activities.
B. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," violations of finance-related
legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations:
Violation
None

Action Taken
N/A

2. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Position of Individual Funds
Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net position at year end, if any, along with remarks which address
such deficits:
Violation
None

Action Taken
N/A

3. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The Town adopts an "appropriated budget" of several of the governmental funds by department. The Town is required to
present the adopted and final amended budget for both revenues and expenditures. The Town compares the final amended
budget to actual revenues and expenditures.
The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data:
• The Town Manager shall submit a proposed budget containing a complete financial plan for each fiscal year. Such
budget shall be submitted to the Town Council not more than one hundred twenty (120) days, but not less than sixty
(60) days, prior to the beginning of each fiscal year.
• The General Fund is legally required to have an adopted budget, and is included in the basic financial statements.
The Town Manager shall submit a five-year Capital Improvement Program as an attachment to the annual budget.
The Program shall include a list of all capital improvements that are proposed for the five fiscal years succeeding the
budget year; cost estimates, method of financing, and recommended time schedules for each improvement; and the
estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the facilities to be constructed or acquired. The information may
be revised and extended each year with regard to the capital improvements still pending, or in process of construction
or acquisition.
• The Town Council shall publish a notice for a public hearing on the budget in accordance with State Law.
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• After the public hearing, the Town Council may adopt the budget with or without amendment. In amending the budget,
the Town Council may add or increase programs or amounts and may delete or decrease any programs or amounts,
except expenditures required by law, or for debt service.
• On or before the 20th day of the last month of the fiscal year currently ending, the Town Council shall adopt the budget
by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of Town Council then qualified and serving. If the Town fails to
adopt the budget by this date, the amounts appropriated for current operation for the current fiscal year shall be
deemed adopted for the ensuing fiscal year on a month-to-month basis, with all items in it prorated accordingly, until
such time as the Town Council adopts a budget for the ensuing fiscal year. Adoption of the budget shall constitute
appropriations of the amounts specified therein as expenditures from the funds indicated and shall constitute a levy of
the property tax therein proposed.
• Under conditions which may arise, and which could not have been foreseen in the normal process of budget
preparation, the Town Council may, by an affirmative action vote of a majority of the members of the Town Council, then
qualified and serving, amend the budget. Such amendments shall be by ordinance.
C. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The Town's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract and investment
policy pursuant to state statute. The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the Town's agent approved
pledged securities authorized by Chapter 2257, "Collateral for Public Fund of the Government Code", in an amount
sufficient to protect the Town funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities
is waived only to the extent of the depository banks' dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC").
Cash Deposits
At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the Town's deposits (cash, certificates of deposit, and interest-bearing
savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $16,463,030 and the bank balance was $17,156,669. The
Town's cash deposits at September 30, 2018 and during the year ended September 30, 2018, were entirely covered by
FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the Town's agent bank in the Town's name.
Cash and investments as of September 30, 2018 consist of and are classified in the financial statements as follows:
Statement of net position:
Primary Government
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets-cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents
Governmental - Restricted Cash
Community services
Road maintenance and improvements
Debt service
Capital projects
Total Governmental
Business-type - Restricted Cash
Water Infrastructure installation
Total Business-type
Total Restricted cash

$

8,538,125
7,924,905
$ 16,463,030

$

$

68,542
1,531,074
265,289
4,325,140
6,190,045

1,734,860
1,734,860
7,924,905
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Investments
The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") (Government Code Chapter 2256) requires the Town to have an annual audit of
investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial
statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports, and establishment of appropriate
policies, the Town adhered to the requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the Town were in
accordance with local policies.
Currently, all of the Town's investments are with TexSTAR. TexSTAR is administered by First Southwest Asset
Management Inc. and JP Morgan Chase. Together, these organizations bring to the TexSTAR program the powerful
partnership of two leaders in financial services with a proven track record in local government investment pool
management. TexSTAR is a local government investment cooperative created under the Interlocal Cooperation Act,
specifically tailored to meet Texas state and local government investment objectives of preservation of principal, daily
liquidity, and competitive yield. The fund is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. A request for TexSTAR's financial statement
can be made at www.TexStar.org.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, a government
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of another party. Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act, it is the policy of the
Town to require full collateralization of all Town investments and funds on deposit with a depository bank, other than
investments which are obligations of the U.S. government and its agencies and instrumentalities.
In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, it is the Town's policy that the market
value of investments securing the deposit of funds shall be at least equal to or not less than 102% of the amount of the
deposit of funds, reduced to the extent that the deposits are insured by the FDIC. The market value of collateral will always
equal or exceed the principal and accrued interest of deposits at financial institutions. At its discretion, the Town may
require a higher level of collateralization for certain investment securities. Securities pledged as collateral shall be held
by an independent third party with whom the Town has a current custodial agreement. As of September 30, 2018, The
Town is in compliance with this policy.
Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below
is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the Public Funds Investment Act, the Town's investment policy, or
debt agreements and the actual rating as of year end for each investment type.
The Town will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer by:
•
•
•

Limiting investment to the safest types of securities;
Pre-qualifying the financial institutions and broker/dealers with which the Town will do business;
Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential loss on individual securities will be minimized.

Interest Rate Risk
Investment rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair market value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its market value, to changes in
market interest rates. One of the ways that the Town manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by investing mainly in
investment pools which purchase a combination of shorter term investments with an average maturity of less than 60
days, thus reducing interest rate risk. The Town monitors interest rate risk inherent in its portfolio by measuring the weighted
average maturity of its portfolio. The Town's investment policy has no specific limitations with respect to this metric.
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Fair Value of Investments
Fair value is the amount at which a security could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in forced liquidation. GASB 79 created an election option for external investment pools and pool participants to continue to
utilize amortized cost accounting, rather than fair value, for certain investment pools, and eliminated the reference to SEC2a-7
guidance. Participants in qualifying pools would be permitted to continue measuring investments at amortized cost if they
met certain criteria. The Town's investment pool (TexStar) is in compliance with GASB 79. The Town's investment pool,
TexStar, has elected to continue to measure its investments at fair value even though they meet all criteria under GASB 79 to
report at amortized cost. The Town has mirrored these valuations.
The Town is required to disclose the fair value of its investments within the fair value hierarchy established by GASB 72. In
the fair value hierarchy there are three levels: 1) Inputs that are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets, or liabilities in
active markets that a government can access at the measurement date, 2) inputs (other than quoted prices included within
level one) that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, 3) unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
Federal Securities classified as level two of the fair value hierarchy are valued using an evaluation model maintained by
surveying the dealer community, obtaining relevant trade dates and spreads, and incorporating information into the
evaluation process. U.S. Treasury Notes classified as level two of the fair value hierarchy are valued using an evaluation
mode with continuous feeds from live data sources including active market makers and inter-dealer brokers.
The Town invests in TexStar investment pool which maintain a stable net asset value (NAV) of $1 per share using the fair
value method. The Town has no unfunded commitments to these pools and may redeem investments at any time. As of
September 30, 2018 the Town's investments all were classified as level two according to GASB 72, except for the pools
which are exempt from the level of fair value disclosure because they are valued either at NAV or amortized cost.
SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RELATED WEIGHTED AVG.
MATURITY, AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Minimum
Rating as of
Average
Amount
Legal Rating
Year End
Maturity
Investment Type
TexStar
$ 4,325,140
N/A
AAA-m
39 days
D. RECEIVABLES
Receivables as of year end for the government's individual major funds and non-major funds, including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:
General
Receivables:
Taxes
Fees and Charges

$

Gross Receivables
Less:

allowance for
uncollectables

412,083
1,951,813

Debt Service
$

11,543
-

2,363,896

11,543

(1,480,092)

(6,744)

883,804

$

4,799

Utility
$

833,949

Total
$

833,949

3,209,388

(140)
$

833,809

423,626
2,785,762

(1,486,976)

Net Total Receivables

$

$

1,722,412

Allowance for uncollectables:

Approximately 97%, or $1,443,700, of the allowance represents older outstanding court warrants that
that have been deemed as potentially uncollectable.

E. NOTE RECEIVABLE
The Sunnyvale 4A Development Corporation agreed to pay a portion of the Town's 2013 Refunding Bond by remitting to
the Town from the receipts of local sales and use taxes received by the Corporation to pay a portion of the principal and
interest on the bonds.

Note receivable-4A Dev

Beginning
Balances
$
435,649

Requirements as follows:
Year Ending
Sept 30
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2028

Additions
$
-

Decreases
$
52,910

Ending
Balances
$
382,739

Due Within
One Year
$
34,998

Payment
34,998
35,164
36,238
37,254
239,085
$
382,739
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Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balances
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

1,419,679
1,419,679

Transfers

$

30,758
30,758

Additions

$

-

Ending
Balances

Decreases

$

-

$

1,419,679
30,758
1,450,437

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated

5,395,244
3,955,595
9,245,106
18,595,945

-

250,142
3,231,953
3,482,095

-

5,395,244
4,205,737
12,477,059
22,078,040

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

(1,484,498)
(2,636,268)
(1,984,208)
(6,104,974)
12,490,971

-

(134,826)
(293,652)
(241,983)
(670,461)
2,811,634

-

(1,619,324)
(2,929,920)
(2,226,191)
(6,775,435)
15,302,605

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$

13,910,650

$

Beginning
Balances
Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

127,225
3,746,068
3,873,293

30,758

$

Transfers

$

-

2,811,634

Additions

$

-

$

-

$ 16,753,042

Ending
Balances

Decreases

$

(3,746,068)
(3,746,068)

$

127,225
127,225

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated

1,959,800
798,274
21,189,101
23,947,175

-

4,707,618
82,784
6,375,710
11,166,112

-

6,667,418
881,058
27,564,811
35,113,287

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

(931,282)
(386,912)
(4,725,579)
(6,043,773)
17,903,402

-

(116,244)
(45,640)
(497,346)
(659,230)
10,506,882

-

(1,047,526)
(432,552)
(5,222,925)
(6,703,003)
28,410,284

Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

21,776,695

$

-

$

10,506,882

$ (3,746,068)

$ 28,537,509
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Service
Parks & Recreation
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

$

Business-type activities:
Utility
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$

183,259
154,682
210,057
24,799
97,664
670,461

$
$

659,230
659,230

G. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS
As of September 31, 2018, the Town had one open construction project for enhancements to Collins Road Infrastructure.
H. IMPAIRED CAPITAL ASSETS
The Town of Sunnyvale and management did not take note of any significantly impaired capital assets that are idle at the end
of the fiscal year of 2018.
I. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
A summary of long-term debt transactions, including the current portion, for the year ended September 30, 2018, is as
follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities
Refunding bonds
Certificates of obligation
Tax Note
Plus:
Issuance premiums
Minus:
Issuance discounts
Total bonds payable
BOK Finance
Total lease payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Compensated absences
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities

Issued

Ending
Balance

Decrease

Due Within
One Year

$ 2,650,000
4,045,000
495,000
525,708
(32,207)
7,683,501
402,288
402,288
630,094
124,865

$

67,798
137,352

$

(470,000)
(120,000)
(34,332)
1,617
(622,715)
(91,804)
(91,804)
(190,054)
(137,352)

$

2,180,000
4,045,000
375,000
491,376
(30,590)
7,060,786
310,484
310,484
440,040
67,798
124,865

$

175,000
120,000
125,000
(34,332)
1,617
387,285
93,468
93,468
-

$ 8,840,748

$

205,150

$

(1,041,925)

$

8,003,973

$

480,753
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Beginning
Balance
Business-type Activities
Water & Sewer
Refunding bonds
Certificates of obligation
Plus: Issuance premiums
Total Bonds Payable
Notes payable
Minus:
Issuance discounts
Total Notes Payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Compensated absences
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities

Issued

$ 1,820,000
2,360,000
147,756
4,327,756
132,031
(39,279)
92,752
145,065
23,058

$

$ 4,588,631

$

Ending
Balance

Decrease

-

$

(145,000)
(130,000)
(13,224)
(288,224)
(12,006)
3,570
(8,436)
(39,511)
(25,364)

$

1,675,000
2,230,000
134,532
4,039,532
120,025
(35,709)
84,316
105,554
16,735
23,058

$

145,000
135,000
(13,223)
266,777
12,004
3,570
15,574
11,529

$

(361,535)

$

4,269,195

$

293,880

16,735
25,364
42,099

Due Within
One Year

General obligation bonds
The general obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the Town and are payable from property taxes.
Refunding bonds and certificates of obligation
The refunding bonds and certificates of obligation are payable from the net revenues of the Utility Fund and from property
taxes received by the Town.
Compensated Absences
Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued vacation leave for which employees are
entitled to be paid upon termination. The retirement of this liability is typically paid from the General or Proprietary
Fund, based on the assignment of an employee at date of termination.
Changes in Governmental Long-term Debt
Interest
Rate
Description
Payable
2013 GO Refunding
2.50%
2017 Certificate of Oblig. 3.00%
2014 Tax Note
1.62%
Total Bonds Payable
Capital Lease- BOK
1.81%
Total Capital Lease Payable
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Compensated absences
Totals

Amounts
Original
Issue
$ 4,295,000
4,045,000
785,000
9,125,000
591,554
591,554

$ 9,716,554

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
2,650,000
4,045,000
495,000
7,190,000
402,288
402,288
630,094
124,865
$
8,347,247

Issued
$

$

67,798
137,352
205,150

$

Interest
206,813
197,038
187,975
178,075
712,625
406,075
146,100
2,034,701

$

$

Retired
(470,000)
(120,000)
(590,000)
(91,804)
(91,804)
(190,054)
(137,352)
(1,009,210)

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$ 2,180,000
4,045,000
375,000
6,600,000
310,484
310,484
440,040
67,798
124,865
$ 7,543,187

Due Within
One Year
$
175,000
120,000
125,000
420,000
93,468
93,468
-

$

513,468

Debt service requirements are as follows:
Year Ending September 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
Totals

Principal
420,000
430,000
440,000
385,000
2,100,000
1,410,000
1,415,000
$
6,600,000

Total
Requirements
626,813
627,038
627,975
563,075
2,812,625
1,816,075
1,561,100
$
8,634,701
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I. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Changes in Governmental Long-term Debt (continued)
A brief discussion of each bond issuance as follows:
$4,295,000 - Series 2013 Refunding General Obligation Bonds issued in April 2013 to refund a portion of the Town's
outstanding debt. The Bonds mature in September 2028.
$785,000 - 2014 Tax Note issued in November 2014 for the purpose of purchasing land and a building for law
enforcement facilities. The Note matures in February 2021.
$4,045,000 - 2017 Certificate of Obligation issued in April 2017 for the purpose of construction of street improvements to Collins
Road. The Certificates mature at various dates through September 2037.
Capital Lease
The Town entered into a capital lease agreement for a 2016 Ford F-350 Ambulance in the amount of $176,125 on
December 29, 2015 and a 2016 Spartan Pumper in the amount of $415,429 on February 16, 2016. The lease will be
repaid over a seven year period at an interest rate of 1.81%. The future minimum lease obligation and the net present value
of these minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2018 were as follows:

Year Ending September 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
Totals

Total
Requirements
99,097
99,097
62,588
62,588
$
323,370

Changes in Business-type Long-term Debt

Description
2011 CO
2013 GO Refunding
Total Bonds Payable
Infrastructure Repayment
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Compensated Absences
Totals

Interest
Rate
Payable
3.00%
2.50%

Amounts
Original
Issue
3,035,000
2,370,000
5,405,000
192,062
$ 5,597,062

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
2,360,000
1,820,000
4,180,000
132,031
145,065
23,058
$
4,480,154

Issued

$

16,735
25,364
42,099

$

Interest
134,800
124,875
114,600
103,975
350,263
58,919
887,432

$

Retired
(130,000)
(145,000)
(275,000)
(12,006)
(39,511)
(25,364)
(351,881)

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
2,230,000
1,675,000
3,905,000
120,025
105,554
16,735
23,058
$ 4,170,372

Due Within
One Year
135
145,000
145,135
12,004
11,529
$
168,668

Debt service requirements are as follows:
Year Ending September 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2031
Totals

Principal
280,000
290,000
300,000
310,000
1,725,000
1,000,000
$
3,905,000

Total
Requirements
414,800
414,875
414,600
413,975
2,075,263
1,058,919
$
4,792,432
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I. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Changes in Business-type Long-term Debt (continued)
A brief discussion of each bond issuance as follows:
$1,090,000 Series 2010 Refunding General Obligation Bonds issued in March 2010 to refund a portion of the Town's
outstanding debt. The Bonds matured in 2017 and were repaid in their entirety.
$3,035,000 Series 2011 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation bonds issued for constructing,
acquiring, purchasing, renovating, enlarging, equipping and improving water system properties and facilities, including
the acquisition of land and right-of-ways therefore, and professional services rendered in connection therewith. The Certificates mature
at various dates through February 2021.
$2,370,000 Series 2013 Refunding General Obligation Bonds issued in April 2013 to refund a portion of the Town's
outstanding debt. The Bonds mature in September 2028.
Note Payable
In fiscal year 2007, the Town executed an infrastructure repayment agreement with the Texas Department of Agriculture's
Rural Economic Development Division. Under the terms of the agreement, the Town agreed to repay program income to
the Texas Department of Agriculture in an amount up to $192,100. The note is noninterest bearing. However, to reflect the
time value of money, the liability recorded in the financial statements reflects future payments discounted at an imputed
interest rate of 5.00%. Payments will be made in no more than two hundred and forty equal monthly installments
beginning the first (1st) day of the third (3rd) month following the completion date or occupancy by the beneficiary,
whichever comes first. The amount of funds to be repaid as of September 30, 2018 totals $144,035. The amount due
within one year totals $12,004.
Future note payments are as follows:
Year Ending September 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2028
Total minimum note payments
Less: amount representing interest
Present value of note payments

Minimum
Obligation
12,004
12,004
12,004
12,004
72,012
$
120,028
(35,709)
$
84,319

J. OPERATING LEASES
The Town leases copiers from DeLange to provide equipment for the printing, copying, faxing, and scanning needs
of the Town during daily operation. The total cost for the copier leases was $31,940 for the year ended September 30, 2018.
The Town also leases a postage machine from Pitney Bowes. The total cost for the postage machine lease was
$2,928 for the year ended September 30, 2018. The future minimum payments for these leases are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30
2019
2020
2021
Total

Pitney
Bowes
2,928
2,928
1,464
$
2,928

DeLange
31,308
31,308
2,609
$
31,308

$

Total
34,236
34,236
4,073
34,236
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K. PENSION PLAN
For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of TMRS and additions/
deductions from TMRS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
Plan. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee,
which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
1. Plan Description
The Town provides pension benefits for all its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid
defined benefit plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System ("TMRS"). TMRS is an agency created by the
State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code ("TMRS
Act") as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act
places the general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the
Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of
Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.
TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report ("CAFR") that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.
All eligible employees of the Town are required to participate in TMRS.
2. Benefits Provided
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefits provisions are adopted by the Town Council, within the
options available in the statutes governing TMRS.
At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, and the town-financed
monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit
in one of seven payment options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum
Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits
and interest.
Employees covered by benefit terms:
At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
Plan Year
2017
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

2016
16
33
39
88

15
31
36
82
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K. PENSION PLAN (continued)
3. Contributions
The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and the Town
matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the Town Council. Under the state law
governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each town is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal
("EAN") actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Employees for the Town were required to contribute 6.00% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year.
Contribution rates for the Town were 12.13% and 12.19% in calendar years 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Town's
contributions to TMRS for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 were $272,132.
4. Net Pension Liability
The Town's Net Pension Liability ("NPL") was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the Total Pension Liability ("TPL")
used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
Actuarial assumptions:
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:
Inflation
Overall payroll growth
Investment Rate of Return

2.5% per year
3.0%, per year
6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries
were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male rates multiplied by 109% and
female rates multiplied by 103%. Based on the size of the Town, rates are multiplied by a factor of 100%. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants,
the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustments are used with males rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males and females. In addition,
a 3% minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.
Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuations were based on the results of actuarial experience
studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2014. Healthy
post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study
covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013
valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed annually.
No additional changes were made for the 2017 valuation. After the Asset Allocation Study analysis and experience
investigation study, the Board amended the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments from 7% to
6.75%. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the
production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding need of TMRS.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment is 6.75%. The pension plan's policy in regard to the
allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets are
managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in
order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.
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4. Net Pension Liability (continued)
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions were made at the rates specified in statute. Based
on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.
Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset):

Balances as of December 31, 2016

Increases (Decreases)
Total Pension
Fiduciary
Net Pension
Liability
Net Position Liability/(Asset)
(a)
(b)
(a) - (b)
$
5,148,040
$ 4,310,832
$
837,208

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Other
Balances as of December 31, 2017

321,161
351,770
15,749
(194,424)

321,161
351,770
15,749
(194,424)
(244,031)
(122,425)
(597,290)
194,424
3,096
156

244,031
122,425
597,290
(194,424)
(3,096)
(156)
$

5,642,296

$ 5,076,902

$

565,394
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4. Net Pension Liability (continued)
Sensitivity of the net position liability to change in the discount rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what
the Town's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
5.75%
$ 1,474,985

Current Single
Rate
Assumption
6.75%
$
565,394

1% Increase
7.75%
$
(164,086)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued TMRS financial
report. That report may be obtained on the internet at www.tmrs.com.
5. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the Town recognized pension expense of $199,056.
At September 30, 2018, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Deferred
Outflow of
Inflow of
Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic
experience
$
11,549
$
35,067
Changes in actuarial assumptions
8,371
Difference between projected and actual investment
112,777
245,142
earnings
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date of December 31, 2017
208,928
$
341,625
$
280,209
$183,684 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
Net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources:
December 31
2018
$
(18,312)
2019
(8,040)
2020
(59,899)
2021
(61,261)
2022
Thereafter
$ (147,512)
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6. Group-term Life Insurance
The Town also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance plan operated
by the TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund ("SDBF"). The Town elected, by ordinance, to provide
group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The Town may terminate coverage under and
discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following
January 1.
The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee's annual
salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death);
retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other postemployment benefit", or OPEB.
The Town contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation. The rate
is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that
adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund
retiree term life insurance during employees' entire careers.
Total OPEB Liability
The Town's total OPEB liability of $88,056 was measured as of December 31, 2017, and was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.
The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:
Inflation
Salary increases
Discount rate*

2.50%
3.50% to 10.5%, including inflation
3.31%

* The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA index" rate as of December 31, 2017.
Mortality rates - service retirees:
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.
Mortality rates - disabled retirees:
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and then 3 year set-forward for both males and females. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB
to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014.
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:
Total OPEB Liability - beginning of year
Changes for the year:
Service costs
Interest on Total OPEB Liability
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments
Total OPEB Liability - end of year

$

72,217

$

7,141
2,849
6,665
(816)
88,056
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6. Group-term Life Insurance (Continued)
The following presents the Total OPEB Liability of the Town, as well as what the Town's Total OPEB Liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.31 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.31%) than
the current discount rate.
Current
Discount
Rate
1% Decrease
1% Increase
(2.31%)
(4.31%)
(3.31%)
Total OPEB Liability
$
105,395
$
88,056
$
74,724
Deferred (Inflows)/Outflows of Resources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions and other inputs
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date
Total

$

$

5,526
4,478
10,004

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$

$

-

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
Total

Net Deferred
Outflows
(Inflows) of
Resources
$
1,139
1,139
1,139
1,139
970
$
5,526

L. HEALTH CARE COVERAGE
During the year ended September 30, 2018, employees of the Town were covered by a health insurance plan with Texas
Municipal League Intergovernmental Employee Benefit Pool ("TMLIEBP"). The Town contributed $481 per month.
Of this monthly amount, $66.20 was credited to a Health Reimbursement Account ("HRA") for each employee.
The monthly premium also included $10,000 life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment ("AD&D")
protection for each employee. The Town paid 100% of monthly premiums for full-time employees. The Town did not pay
for dependent coverage; however, it was available to employees at their option and was paid through payroll deductions.
M. INSURANCE COVERAGE
In accordance with state statute, the Town was protected against unanticipated catastrophic individual or aggregate loss
by stop-loss coverage carried through Texas Municipal League, a commercial insurer licensed and eligible to do business
in Texas, in accordance with the Texas Insurance Code. Stop-loss coverage was in effect for individual claims exceeding
$125,000 and for aggregate loss. According to the latest actuarial opinion, dated October 1, 2015, the unfunded claim
benefit obligation included no reported claims that were unpaid and no estimated claims incurred, but not reported.
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N. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets, errors and omissions,
injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The Town had general liability coverage at a cost that is considered to be
economically justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State as a member of the Texas
Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool ("TML"). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common risk
management and insurance program. The Town pays an annual premium to TML for its insurance coverage. The
agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will
reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each category has its
own level of reinsurance. The Town continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. There were no
significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these
risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
O. LITIGATION
The Town is a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of its operations. Management believes
that the Town has adequate legal defenses and/or insurance coverage respecting each of these actions.

P. ADDITIONAL WATER AND SEWER INFORMATION
The following information is included at the request of the Texas Water Development Board for the year under audit.
Water Accountability Report:
Gallons Purchased
Gallons Billed

697,317,440
584,986,736

The Town secures its water supply and sewer services from the North Texas Municipal Water District ("District"), a district
authorized by the Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Section 59, created by the Texas Legislature, Article 8280-141; and
authorized to act by the confirming vote of the majority of the qualified voters in each of the cities comprising the District.
The District has police, taxation, and eminent domain power and is authorized to issue revenue and/or tax bonds upon
approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and functions as a political subdivision of the State of Texas
independent of the Town. The District is governed by a 17-member board ("Board"). The Board has full power and
discretion to establish its budget and to set the rates for the services it provides by contract with its member cities and
customers. The Board is empowered by statute and contract, or otherwise permitted by law, to discontinue a facility or
service in order to prevent an abuse or to enforce payment of an unpaid charge, fee or rental due to the District. Because of
these factors, the District is not included in the Town's basic financial statements.
The Town purchases its water from the North Texas Municipal Water District ("NTMWD"). Each year, NTMWD calculates
the cost of water based upon the previous year's usage. The Town currently pays $2.58 per thousand gallons for water
with the total cost for this current fiscal year being $1,799,079.
Q. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
Prior period adjustments totaling $72,216 were required during the 2018 fiscal year to establish the opening
Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB), liability as required with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions”.
R. TRANSFERS
Transfers between funds during the fiscal year were as follows:
Funds
General Fund
Other Governmental Funds
Water and Sewer Funds
Total Major Funds

Transfers Out
$
2,718,957
1,160,863
4,494,655
$
8,374,475

Transfers In
(281,367)
(2,962,177)
(5,130,931)
$ (8,374,475)
$

$

$

Total
2,437,590
(1,801,314)
(636,276)
-

Transfers are used to 1) transfer debt service payments and 2) fund general administrative operations.
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S. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Town's Finance Director is married to the owner of Digital Security Systems, a company which services th esecurity system of the
Town. During the year ended September 30, 2018, the Town incurred $1,537 with Digital Security Systems. No amounts were
outstanding as of September 30, 2018.
T. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Town has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after September 30, 2018 up through March 25, 2019, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. During this time, management is not aware of any events
requiring financial statement disclosure other than those mentioned within the report.
U. SUNNYVALE 4A DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
The 4A Economic Development Corporation ("4A") is financed with a voter approved 12.5% of sales tax collections to
aid, promote and further the economic development within the Town. Under a contract between 4A and the Town, the
Town provides financial services for 4A.
1. Stewardship, Compliance and Contractual Provisions
a.

Finance-related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures", violations
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations.
Violation
N/A
b.

of

finance-

Action Taken
N/A

Deficit Fund Balance of Fund Net Position of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net position at fiscal year-end if any, along with remarks
which address such deficits:
Violation
N/A

Action Taken
N/A

2. Deposits and Investments
Cash Deposits
At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of 4A's deposits (cash, certificates of deposit, and interest-bearing savings
accounts included in temporary investments) was $2,260,885 and the bank balance was $2,263,385. 4A's cash deposits
at September 30, 2018 and during the year ended September 30, 2018 were entirely covered by FDIC and pledged
collateral held by 4A's agent bank in 4A's name.
Cash and investments
statements as follows:

as

of

September

Statement of net position:
4A Development Corporation
Cash and Cash Equivalents

30,

2018

consist

$

2,260,885

of

and

are

classified

in

the

accompanying

financial

Investments
The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures
conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial statements found that 4A Development Corporation's investment
practices, management reports, and establishment policies adhered to the requirements of the Act.
3. Receivables
Accounts receivable at the end of the fiscal year is due from the Town in the amount of $81,964 for collection of sales
tax revenues. No allowance for uncollectible is calculated since there is minimal chance that the entire amount will not
be collected.
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U. SUNNYVALE 4A DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (continued)
4. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balances
4A Component Unit
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Machinery & Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

$

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery & Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

8,578
8,578

Transfers

$

(8,434)
(8,434)
144

4Al component unit capital assets, net

$

144

-

Additions

$

$

-

-

$

(144)
(144)
(144)
$

(144)

Ending
Balances

Decreases

-

$

$

-

8,578
8,578
(8,578)
(8,578)
-

$

-

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the component unit as follows:
4A Community Service

$

144

5. Long-term Obligations
The Sunnyvale 4A Development Corporation agreed to pay a portion of the Town's 2013 Refunding Bond by remitting
to the Town from the receipts of local sales and use taxes received by 4A to pay a portion of the principal and interest
on the bonds. 4A remitted $49,927 to the Town during fiscal year 2017. The outstanding amount owed to the Town
as of September 30, 2018 totaled $435,649. Note payable requirements are as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities
Note payable - Town
Total note payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Compensated absence
Total

$

$

435,649
435,649
16,801
452,450

Issued
$

$

1,761
1,761

Ending
Balance

Decrease
$

$

(52,910)
(52,910)
(6,901)
(59,811)

$

$

382,739
382,739
9,900
1,761
394,400

Due Within
One Year
$

$

-

Debt service requirements are as follows:
Year ending
Sept 30
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2028

Payment
34,998
35,164
36,238
37,254
239,085
$
382,739

Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued paid time off for which employees
are entitled to be paid upon termination. Also, 4A employees were provided the same pension benefits through TMRS
as the Town employees. See Note J for detailed disclosures of the pension plan and net pension liability.
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U. SUNNYVALE 4A DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (continued)
6. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued paid time off for which employees
are entitled to be paid upon termination. The detail of 4A's liability for compensated absences as of September 30, 2018
is as follows:

Compensated absences

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
-

Issued
$

Retired
-

$

-

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$
-

Due Within
One Year
$
-

7. Net Pension Liability
4A employees were provided the same pension benefits through the TMRS as the Town employees. See Note J for
detailed disclosures of the pension plan and net pension liability.

Net pension liability

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
16,801

Increase/
(Decrease)
$
(6,901)

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$
9,900

8. Subsequent Events
4A has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after September 30, 2018 up through March 25, 2019, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. During this time, management is not aware of any events
requiring financial statement disclosure other than those mentioned above.
V. SUNNYVALE 4B DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
The 4B Development Corporation ("4B") is financed with a voter approved one half of one percent sales tax to promote and
retain business development within the Town through enhancements and expansions of the local economy. Under a
contract between 4B and the Town, the Town provides financial services for 4B.
1. Stewardship, Compliance and Contractual Provisions
a.

Finance-related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures", violations
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations.
Violation
N/A
b.

of

finance-

Action Taken
N/A

Deficit Fund Balance of Fund Net Position of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or deficit fund net position at fiscal year-end, if any along with remarks
which address such deficits:
Violation
N/A

Action Taken
N/A

2. Deposits and Investments
Cash Deposits
At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the 4B Development Corporation's ("4B") deposits (cash, certificates of
deposit and interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $2,708,579 and the bank
balance was $2,716,664. 4B's cash deposits at September 30, 2018 and during the year ended September 30, 2018
were entirely covered by FDIC and pledged collateral held by 4B's agent bank in 4B's name.
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V. SUNNYVALE 4B DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
2. Deposits and Investments (continued)
Cash and investments
statements as follows:

as

of

September

30,

2018

consist

Statement of net position:
4B Development Corporation
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

$
$

of

and

are

classified

in

the

accompanying

financial

2,708,579
2,708,579

Investments
The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area
conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment
practices, management reports, and establishment of appropriate policies, the 4B adhered to the requirements of the
Act.
3. Receivables
Accounts receivable at the end of the fiscal year is due from the Town in the amount of $353,917 for collection of sales
tax revenues. No allowance for uncollectible is calculated since there is minimal chance that the entire amount will not
be collected.
4. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balances
4B Component Unit
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$

1,375,000
1,375,000

Transfers

$

-

Additions

$

-

Ending
Balances

Decreases

$ (1,375,000)
(1,375,000)

$

-

5. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued paid time off for which employees
are entitled to be paid upon termination. The detail of 4B's liability for compensated absences as of September 30, 2018
is as follows:

Compensated absences

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
3,971

Issued
$

Retired
-

$

-

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$
3,971

Due Within
One Year
$
-

6. Net Pension Liability
4B employees were provided the same pension benefits through the TMRS as the Town employees. See Note J for
detailed disclosures of the pension plan and net pension liability.

Net pension liability

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
41,634

Increase/
(Decrease)
$
(31,734)

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$
9,900

7. Subsequent Events
4B has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after September 30, 2018 up through March 25, 2019, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. During this time, management is not aware of any events
requiring financial statement disclosure other than those mentioned above.
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F. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balances
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

1,419,679
1,419,679

Transfers

$

30,758
30,758

Additions

$

-

Ending
Balances

Decreases

$

-

$

1,419,679
30,758
1,450,437

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated

5,395,244
3,955,595
9,245,106
18,595,945

-

250,142
3,231,953
3,482,095

-

5,395,244
4,205,737
12,477,059
22,078,040

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

(1,484,498)
(2,636,268)
(1,984,208)
(6,104,974)
12,490,971

-

(134,826)
(293,652)
(241,983)
(670,461)
2,811,634

-

(1,619,324)
(2,929,920)
(2,226,191)
(6,775,435)
15,302,605

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$

13,910,650

$

Beginning
Balances
Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

127,225
3,746,068
3,873,293

30,758

$

Transfers

$

-

2,811,634

$

Additions

$

-

-

$ 16,753,042

Ending
Balances

Decreases

$

(3,746,068)
(3,746,068)

$

127,225
127,225

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated

1,959,800
798,274
21,189,101
23,947,175

-

4,707,618
82,784
6,375,710
11,166,112

-

6,667,418
881,058
27,564,811
35,113,287

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

(931,282)
(386,912)
(4,725,579)
(6,043,773)
17,903,402

-

(116,244)
(45,640)
(497,346)
(659,230)
10,506,882

-

(1,047,526)
(432,552)
(5,222,925)
(6,703,003)
28,410,284

Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

21,776,695

$

-

$

10,506,882

$ (3,746,068)

$ 28,537,509
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F. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Service
Parks & Recreation
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

$

Business-type activities:
Utility
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$

183,259
154,682
210,057
24,799
97,664
670,461

$
$

659,230
659,230

G. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS
As of September 31, 2018, the Town had one open construction project for enhancements to Collins Road Infrastructure.
H. IMPAIRED CAPITAL ASSETS
The Town of Sunnyvale and management did not take note of any significantly impaired capital assets that are idle at the end
of the fiscal year of 2018.
I. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
A summary of long-term debt transactions, including the current portion, for the year ended September 30, 2018, is as
follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities
Refunding bonds
Certificates of obligation
Tax Note
Plus:
Issuance premiums
Minus:
Issuance discounts
Total bonds payable
BOK Finance
Total lease payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Compensated absences
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities

Issued

Ending
Balance

Decrease

Due Within
One Year

$ 2,650,000
4,045,000
495,000
525,708
(32,207)
7,683,501
402,288
402,288
630,094
124,865

$

67,798
137,352

$

(470,000)
(120,000)
(34,332)
1,617
(622,715)
(91,804)
(91,804)
(190,054)
(137,352)

$

2,180,000
4,045,000
375,000
491,376
(30,590)
7,060,786
310,484
310,484
440,040
67,798
124,865

$

175,000
120,000
125,000
(34,332)
1,617
387,285
93,468
93,468
-

$ 8,840,748

$

205,150

$

(1,041,925)

$

8,003,973

$

480,753
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Beginning
Balance
Business-type Activities
Water & Sewer
Refunding bonds
Certificates of obligation
Plus: Issuance premiums
Total Bonds Payable
Notes payable
Minus:
Issuance discounts
Total Notes Payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Compensated absences
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities

Issued

$ 1,820,000
2,360,000
147,756
4,327,756
132,031
(39,279)
92,752
145,065
23,058

$

$ 4,588,631

$

Ending
Balance

Decrease

-

$

(145,000)
(130,000)
(13,224)
(288,224)
(12,006)
3,570
(8,436)
(39,511)
(25,364)

$

1,675,000
2,230,000
134,532
4,039,532
120,025
(35,709)
84,316
105,554
16,735
23,058

$

145,000
135,000
(13,223)
266,777
12,004
3,570
15,574
11,529

$

(361,535)

$

4,269,195

$

293,880

16,735
25,364
42,099

Due Within
One Year

General obligation bonds
The general obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the Town and are payable from property taxes.
Refunding bonds and certificates of obligation
The refunding bonds and certificates of obligation are payable from the net revenues of the Utility Fund and from property
taxes received by the Town.
Compensated Absences
Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued vacation leave for which employees are
entitled to be paid upon termination. The retirement of this liability is typically paid from the General or Proprietary
Fund, based on the assignment of an employee at date of termination.
Changes in Governmental Long-term Debt
Interest
Rate
Description
Payable
2013 GO Refunding
2.50%
2017 Certificate of Oblig. 3.00%
2014 Tax Note
1.62%
Total Bonds Payable
Capital Lease- BOK
1.81%
Total Capital Lease Payable
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Compensated absences
Totals

Amounts
Original
Issue
$ 4,295,000
4,045,000
785,000
9,125,000
591,554
591,554

$ 9,716,554

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
2,650,000
4,045,000
495,000
7,190,000
402,288
402,288
630,094
124,865
$
8,347,247

Issued
$

$

67,798
137,352
205,150

$

Interest
206,813
197,038
187,975
178,075
712,625
406,075
146,100
2,034,701

$

$

Retired
(470,000)
(120,000)
(590,000)
(91,804)
(91,804)
(190,054)
(137,352)
(1,009,210)

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$ 2,180,000
4,045,000
375,000
6,600,000
310,484
310,484
440,040
67,798
124,865
$ 7,543,187

Due Within
One Year
$
175,000
120,000
125,000
420,000
93,468
93,468
-

$

513,468

Debt service requirements are as follows:
Year Ending September 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
Totals

Principal
420,000
430,000
440,000
385,000
2,100,000
1,410,000
1,415,000
$
6,600,000

Total
Requirements
626,813
627,038
627,975
563,075
2,812,625
1,816,075
1,561,100
$
8,634,701
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I. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Changes in Governmental Long-term Debt (continued)
A brief discussion of each bond issuance as follows:
$4,295,000 - Series 2013 Refunding General Obligation Bonds issued in April 2013 to refund a portion of the Town's
outstanding debt. The Bonds mature in September 2028.
$785,000 - 2014 Tax Note issued in November 2014 for the purpose of purchasing land and a building for law
enforcement facilities. The Note matures in February 2021.
$4,045,000 - 2017 Certificate of Obligation issued in April 2017 for the purpose of construction of street improvements to Collins
Road. The Certificates mature at various dates through September 2037.
Capital Lease
The Town entered into a capital lease agreement for a 2016 Ford F-350 Ambulance in the amount of $176,125 on
December 29, 2015 and a 2016 Spartan Pumper in the amount of $415,429 on February 16, 2016. The lease will be
repaid over a seven year period at an interest rate of 1.81%. The future minimum lease obligation and the net present value
of these minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2018 were as follows:

Year Ending September 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
Totals

Total
Requirements
99,097
99,097
62,588
62,588
$
323,370

Changes in Business-type Long-term Debt

Description
2011 CO
2013 GO Refunding
Total Bonds Payable
Infrastructure Repayment
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Compensated Absences
Totals

Interest
Rate
Payable
3.00%
2.50%

Amounts
Original
Issue
3,035,000
2,370,000
5,405,000
192,062
$ 5,597,062

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
2,360,000
1,820,000
4,180,000
132,031
145,065
23,058
$
4,480,154

Issued

$

16,735
25,364
42,099

$

Interest
134,800
124,875
114,600
103,975
350,263
58,919
887,432

$

Retired
(130,000)
(145,000)
(275,000)
(12,006)
(39,511)
(25,364)
(351,881)

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
2,230,000
1,675,000
3,905,000
120,025
105,554
16,735
23,058
$ 4,170,372

Due Within
One Year
135
145,000
145,135
12,004
11,529
$
168,668

Debt service requirements are as follows:
Year Ending September 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2031
Totals

Principal
280,000
290,000
300,000
310,000
1,725,000
1,000,000
$
3,905,000

Total
Requirements
414,800
414,875
414,600
413,975
2,075,263
1,058,919
$
4,792,432
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I. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Changes in Business-type Long-term Debt (continued)
A brief discussion of each bond issuance as follows:
$1,090,000 Series 2010 Refunding General Obligation Bonds issued in March 2010 to refund a portion of the Town's
outstanding debt. The Bonds matured in 2017 and were repaid in their entirety.
$3,035,000 Series 2011 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation bonds issued for constructing,
acquiring, purchasing, renovating, enlarging, equipping and improving water system properties and facilities, including
the acquisition of land and right-of-ways therefore, and professional services rendered in connection therewith. The Certificates mature
at various dates through February 2021.
$2,370,000 Series 2013 Refunding General Obligation Bonds issued in April 2013 to refund a portion of the Town's
outstanding debt. The Bonds mature in September 2028.
Note Payable
In fiscal year 2007, the Town executed an infrastructure repayment agreement with the Texas Department of Agriculture's
Rural Economic Development Division. Under the terms of the agreement, the Town agreed to repay program income to
the Texas Department of Agriculture in an amount up to $192,100. The note is noninterest bearing. However, to reflect the
time value of money, the liability recorded in the financial statements reflects future payments discounted at an imputed
interest rate of 5.00%. Payments will be made in no more than two hundred and forty equal monthly installments
beginning the first (1st) day of the third (3rd) month following the completion date or occupancy by the beneficiary,
whichever comes first. The amount of funds to be repaid as of September 30, 2018 totals $144,035. The amount due
within one year totals $12,004.
Future note payments are as follows:
Year Ending September 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2028
Total minimum note payments
Less: amount representing interest
Present value of note payments

Minimum
Obligation
12,004
12,004
12,004
12,004
72,012
$
120,028
(35,709)
$
84,319

J. OPERATING LEASES
The Town leases copiers from DeLange to provide equipment for the printing, copying, faxing, and scanning needs
of the Town during daily operation. The total cost for the copier leases was $31,940 for the year ended September 30, 2018.
The Town also leases a postage machine from Pitney Bowes. The total cost for the postage machine lease was
$2,928 for the year ended September 30, 2018. The future minimum payments for these leases are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30
2019
2020
2021
Total

Pitney
Bowes
2,928
2,928
1,464
$
2,928

DeLange
31,308
31,308
2,609
$
31,308

$

Total
34,236
34,236
4,073
34,236
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K. PENSION PLAN
For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of TMRS and additions/
deductions from TMRS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
Plan. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee,
which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
1. Plan Description
The Town provides pension benefits for all its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid
defined benefit plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System ("TMRS"). TMRS is an agency created by the
State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code ("TMRS
Act") as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act
places the general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the
Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of
Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.
TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report ("CAFR") that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.
All eligible employees of the Town are required to participate in TMRS.
2. Benefits Provided
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefits provisions are adopted by the Town Council, within the
options available in the statutes governing TMRS.
At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, and the town-financed
monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit
in one of seven payment options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum
Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits
and interest.
Employees covered by benefit terms:
At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
Plan Year
2017
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

2016
16
33
39
88

15
31
36
82
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K. PENSION PLAN (continued)
3. Contributions
The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and the Town
matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the Town Council. Under the state law
governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each town is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal
("EAN") actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Employees for the Town were required to contribute 6.00% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year.
Contribution rates for the Town were 12.13% and 12.19% in calendar years 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Town's
contributions to TMRS for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 were $272,132.
4. Net Pension Liability
The Town's Net Pension Liability ("NPL") was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the Total Pension Liability ("TPL")
used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
Actuarial assumptions:
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:
Inflation
Overall payroll growth
Investment Rate of Return

2.5% per year
3.0%, per year
6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries
were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male rates multiplied by 109% and
female rates multiplied by 103%. Based on the size of the Town, rates are multiplied by a factor of 100%. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants,
the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustments are used with males rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males and females. In addition,
a 3% minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.
Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuations were based on the results of actuarial experience
studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2014. Healthy
post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study
covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013
valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed annually.
No additional changes were made for the 2017 valuation. After the Asset Allocation Study analysis and experience
investigation study, the Board amended the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments from 7% to
6.75%. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the
production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding need of TMRS.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment is 6.75%. The pension plan's policy in regard to the
allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets are
managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in
order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.
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4. Net Pension Liability (continued)
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions were made at the rates specified in statute. Based
on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.
Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset):

Balances as of December 31, 2016

Increases (Decreases)
Total Pension
Fiduciary
Net Pension
Liability
Net Position
Liability/(Asset)
(a)
(b)
(a) - (b)
$
5,148,040
$ 4,310,832
$
837,208

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Other
Balances as of December 31, 2017

321,161
351,770
15,749
(194,424)

321,161
351,770
15,749
(194,424)
(244,031)
(122,425)
(597,290)
194,424
3,096
156

244,031
122,425
597,290
(194,424)
(3,096)
(156)
$

5,642,296

$ 5,076,902

$

565,394
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4. Net Pension Liability (continued)
Sensitivity of the net position liability to change in the discount rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what
the Town's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
5.75%
$ 1,474,985

Current Single
Rate
Assumption
6.75%
$
565,394

1% Increase
7.75%
$
(164,086)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued TMRS financial
report. That report may be obtained on the internet at www.tmrs.com.
5. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the Town recognized pension expense of $199,056.
At September 30, 2018, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Deferred
Outflow of
Inflow of
Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic
experience
$
11,549
$
35,067
Changes in actuarial assumptions
8,371
Difference between projected and actual investment
112,777
245,142
earnings
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date of December 31, 2017
208,928
$
341,625
$
280,209
$183,684 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
Net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources:
December 31
2018
$
(18,312)
2019
(8,040)
2020
(59,899)
2021
(61,261)
2022
Thereafter
$ (147,512)
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6. Group-term Life Insurance
The Town also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance plan operated
by the TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund ("SDBF"). The Town elected, by ordinance, to provide
group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The Town may terminate coverage under and
discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following
January 1.
The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee's annual
salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death);
retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other postemployment benefit", or OPEB.
The Town contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation. The rate
is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that
adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund
retiree term life insurance during employees' entire careers.
Total OPEB Liability
The Town's total OPEB liability of $88,056 was measured as of December 31, 2017, and was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.
The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:
Inflation
Salary increases
Discount rate*

2.50%
3.50% to 10.5%, including inflation
3.31%

* The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA index" rate as of December 31, 2017.
Mortality rates - service retirees:
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.
Mortality rates - disabled retirees:
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and then 3 year set-forward for both males and females. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB
to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014.
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:
Total OPEB Liability - beginning of year
Changes for the year:
Service costs
Interest on Total OPEB Liability
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments
Total OPEB Liability - end of year

$

72,217

$

7,141
2,849
6,665
(816)
88,056
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6. Group-term Life Insurance (Continued)
The following presents the Total OPEB Liability of the Town, as well as what the Town's Total OPEB Liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.31 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.31%) than
the current discount rate.
Current
Discount
Rate
1% Decrease
1% Increase
(2.31%)
(4.31%)
(3.31%)
Total OPEB Liability
$
105,395
$
88,056
$
74,724
Deferred (Inflows)/Outflows of Resources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions and other inputs
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date
Total

$

$

5,526
4,478
10,004

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$

$

-

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
Total

Net Deferred
Outflows
(Inflows) of
Resources
$
1,139
1,139
1,139
1,139
970
$
5,526

L. HEALTH CARE COVERAGE
During the year ended September 30, 2018, employees of the Town were covered by a health insurance plan with Texas
Municipal League Intergovernmental Employee Benefit Pool ("TMLIEBP"). The Town contributed $481 per month.
Of this monthly amount, $66.20 was credited to a Health Reimbursement Account ("HRA") for each employee.
The monthly premium also included $10,000 life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment ("AD&D")
protection for each employee. The Town paid 100% of monthly premiums for full-time employees. The Town did not pay
for dependent coverage; however, it was available to employees at their option and was paid through payroll deductions.
M. INSURANCE COVERAGE
In accordance with state statute, the Town was protected against unanticipated catastrophic individual or aggregate loss
by stop-loss coverage carried through Texas Municipal League, a commercial insurer licensed and eligible to do business
in Texas, in accordance with the Texas Insurance Code. Stop-loss coverage was in effect for individual claims exceeding
$125,000 and for aggregate loss. According to the latest actuarial opinion, dated October 1, 2015, the unfunded claim
benefit obligation included no reported claims that were unpaid and no estimated claims incurred, but not reported.
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N. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets, errors and omissions,
injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The Town had general liability coverage at a cost that is considered to be
economically justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State as a member of the Texas
Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool ("TML"). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common risk
management and insurance program. The Town pays an annual premium to TML for its insurance coverage. The
agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will
reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each category has its
own level of reinsurance. The Town continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. There were no
significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these
risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
O. LITIGATION
The Town is a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of its operations. Management believes
that the Town has adequate legal defenses and/or insurance coverage respecting each of these actions.

P. ADDITIONAL WATER AND SEWER INFORMATION
The following information is included at the request of the Texas Water Development Board for the year under audit.
Water Accountability Report:
Gallons Purchased
Gallons Billed

697,317,440
584,986,736

The Town secures its water supply and sewer services from the North Texas Municipal Water District ("District"), a district
authorized by the Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Section 59, created by the Texas Legislature, Article 8280-141; and
authorized to act by the confirming vote of the majority of the qualified voters in each of the cities comprising the District.
The District has police, taxation, and eminent domain power and is authorized to issue revenue and/or tax bonds upon
approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and functions as a political subdivision of the State of Texas
independent of the Town. The District is governed by a 17-member board ("Board"). The Board has full power and
discretion to establish its budget and to set the rates for the services it provides by contract with its member cities and
customers. The Board is empowered by statute and contract, or otherwise permitted by law, to discontinue a facility or
service in order to prevent an abuse or to enforce payment of an unpaid charge, fee or rental due to the District. Because of
these factors, the District is not included in the Town's basic financial statements.
The Town purchases its water from the North Texas Municipal Water District ("NTMWD"). Each year, NTMWD calculates
the cost of water based upon the previous year's usage. The Town currently pays $2.58 per thousand gallons for water
with the total cost for this current fiscal year being $1,799,079.
Q. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
Prior period adjustments totaling $72,216 were required during the 2018 fiscal year to establish the opening
Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB), liability as required with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions”.
R. TRANSFERS
Transfers between funds during the fiscal year were as follows:
Funds
General Fund
Other Governmental Funds
Water and Sewer Funds
Total Major Funds

Transfers Out
$
2,718,957
1,160,863
4,494,655
$
8,374,475

Transfers In
(281,367)
(2,962,177)
(5,130,931)
$ (8,374,475)

$

$

$

Total
2,437,590
(1,801,314)
(636,276)
-

Transfers are used to 1) transfer debt service payments and 2) fund general administrative operations.
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S. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Town's Finance Director is married to the owner of Digital Security Systems, a company which services th esecurity system of the
Town. During the year ended September 30, 2018, the Town incurred $1,537 with Digital Security Systems. No amounts were
outstanding as of September 30, 2018.
T. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Town has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after September 30, 2018 up through March 25, 2019, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. During this time, management is not aware of any events
requiring financial statement disclosure other than those mentioned within the report.
U. SUNNYVALE 4A DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
The 4A Economic Development Corporation ("4A") is financed with a voter approved 12.5% of sales tax collections to
aid, promote and further the economic development within the Town. Under a contract between 4A and the Town, the
Town provides financial services for 4A.
1. Stewardship, Compliance and Contractual Provisions
a.

Finance-related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures", violations
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations.
Violation
N/A
b.

of

finance-

Action Taken
N/A

Deficit Fund Balance of Fund Net Position of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net position at fiscal year-end if any, along with remarks
which address such deficits:
Violation
N/A

Action Taken
N/A

2. Deposits and Investments
Cash Deposits
At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of 4A's deposits (cash, certificates of deposit, and interest-bearing savings
accounts included in temporary investments) was $2,260,885 and the bank balance was $2,263,385. 4A's cash deposits
at September 30, 2018 and during the year ended September 30, 2018 were entirely covered by FDIC and pledged
collateral held by 4A's agent bank in 4A's name.
Cash and investments
statements as follows:

as

of

September

Statement of net position:
4A Development Corporation
Cash and Cash Equivalents

30,

$

2018

consist

of

and

are

classified

in

the

accompanying

financial

2,260,885

Investments
The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") requires an annual audit of investment practices.
Audit procedures
conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial statements found that 4A Development Corporation's investment
practices, management reports, and establishment policies adhered to the requirements of the Act.

3. Receivables
Accounts receivable at the end of the fiscal year is due from the Town in the amount of $81,964 for collection of sales
tax revenues. No allowance for uncollectible is calculated since there is minimal chance that the entire amount will not
be collected.
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4. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balances
4A Component Unit
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Machinery & Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

$

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery & Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

8,578
8,578

Transfers

$

(8,434)
(8,434)
144

4Al component unit capital assets, net

$

144

-

Additions

$

$

-

-

$

(144)
(144)
(144)
$

(144)

Ending
Balances

Decreases

-

$

$

-

8,578
8,578

(8,578)
(8,578)
$

-

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the component unit as follows:
4A Community Service

$

144

5. Long-term Obligations
The Sunnyvale 4A Development Corporation agreed to pay a portion of the Town's 2013 Refunding Bond by remitting
to the Town from the receipts of local sales and use taxes received by 4A to pay a portion of the principal and interest
on the bonds. 4A remitted $49,927 to the Town during fiscal year 2017. The outstanding amount owed to the Town
as of September 30, 2018 totaled $435,649. Note payable requirements are as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities
Note payable - Town
Total note payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Compensated absence
Total

$

$

435,649
435,649
16,801
452,450

Issued
$

$

1,761
1,761

Ending
Balance

Decrease
$

$

(52,910)
(52,910)
(6,901)
(59,811)

$

$

382,739
382,739
9,900
1,761
394,400

Due Within
One Year
$

$

-

Debt service requirements are as follows:
Year ending
Sept 30
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2028

Payment
34,998
35,164
36,238
37,254
239,085
$
382,739

Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued paid time off for which employees
are entitled to be paid upon termination. Also, 4A employees were provided the same pension benefits through TMRS
as the Town employees. See Note J for detailed disclosures of the pension plan and net pension liability.
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U. SUNNYVALE 4A DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (continued)
6. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued paid time off for which employees
are entitled to be paid upon termination. The detail of 4A's liability for compensated absences as of September 30, 2018
is as follows:

Compensated absences

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
-

Issued
$

Retired
-

$

-

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$
-

Due Within
One Year
$
-

7. Net Pension Liability
4A employees were provided the same pension benefits through the TMRS as the Town employees. See Note J for
detailed disclosures of the pension plan and net pension liability.

Net pension liability

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
16,801

Increase/
(Decrease)
$
(6,901)

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$
9,900

8. Subsequent Events
4A has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after September 30, 2018 up through March 25, 2019, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. During this time, management is not aware of any events
requiring financial statement disclosure other than those mentioned above.
V. SUNNYVALE 4B DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
The 4B Development Corporation ("4B") is financed with a voter approved one half of one percent sales tax to promote and
retain business development within the Town through enhancements and expansions of the local economy. Under a
contract between 4B and the Town, the Town provides financial services for 4B.
1. Stewardship, Compliance and Contractual Provisions
a.

Finance-related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures", violations
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations.
Violation
N/A
b.

of

finance-

Action Taken
N/A

Deficit Fund Balance of Fund Net Position of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or deficit fund net position at fiscal year-end, if any along with remarks
which address such deficits:
Violation
N/A

Action Taken
N/A

2. Deposits and Investments
Cash Deposits
At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the 4B Development Corporation's ("4B") deposits (cash, certificates of
deposit and interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $2,708,579 and the bank
balance was $2,716,664. 4B's cash deposits at September 30, 2018 and during the year ended September 30, 2018
were entirely covered by FDIC and pledged collateral held by 4B's agent bank in 4B's name.
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V. SUNNYVALE 4B DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
2. Deposits and Investments (continued)
Cash and investments
statements as follows:

as

of

September

30,

2018

consist

Statement of net position:
4B Development Corporation
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

$
$

of

and

are

classified

in

the

accompanying

financial

2,708,579
2,708,579

Investments
The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area
conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment
practices, management reports, and establishment of appropriate policies, the 4B adhered to the requirements of the
Act.
3. Receivables
Accounts receivable at the end of the fiscal year is due from the Town in the amount of $353,917 for collection of sales
tax revenues. No allowance for uncollectible is calculated since there is minimal chance that the entire amount will not
be collected.
4. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balances
4B Component Unit
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$

1,375,000
1,375,000

Transfers

$

-

Additions

$

-

Ending
Balances

Decreases

$ (1,375,000)
(1,375,000)

$

-

5. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued paid time off for which employees
are entitled to be paid upon termination. The detail of 4B's liability for compensated absences as of September 30, 2018
is as follows:

Compensated absences

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
3,971

Issued
$

Retired
-

$

-

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$
3,971

Due Within
One Year
$
-

6. Net Pension Liability
4B employees were provided the same pension benefits through the TMRS as the Town employees. See Note J for
detailed disclosures of the pension plan and net pension liability.

Net pension liability

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2017
$
41,634

Increase/
(Decrease)
$
(31,734)

Amounts
Outstanding
September 30
2018
$
9,900

7. Subsequent Events
4B has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after September 30, 2018 up through March 25, 2019, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. During this time, management is not aware of any events
requiring financial statement disclosure other than those mentioned above.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution
Contributions deficiency (excess)
Covered employee payroll
Contributions as a percentage of coveredemployee payroll

$

12/31/2013
173,488

$

12/31/2014
188,817

12/31/2015
$ 206,166

12/31/2016
$ 226,781

12/31/2017
$ 242,197

$
$
$

173,488
1,340,708

$
$
$

188,817
1,406,983

$ 206,166
$
$ 1,669,364

$ 226,781
$
$ 1,896,161

$ 242,197
$
$ 2,040,414

13.42%

12.94%

12.35%

11.96%

11.87%

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Valuation Date:
Notes
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and
become effective in January, 13 months later
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:
Actuarial Cost Method
Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method
Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 29 years
Asset Valuation Method
10-year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor
Inflation
2.50%
Salary Increases
3.50% to 10.50% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return
6.75%
Retirement Age
Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the Town's plan of benefits.
Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the
period 2010-2014
Mortality
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully
generational basis with scale BB
Other Information:
Notes

There were no benefit changes during the year.

Note: Years will continue to be added until there are 10 years for comparison
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS-TMRS

Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contribution - employer
Contribution - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Administrative expense
Other
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending
Net Pension Liability - Ending

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

$

$

295,043 $
322,942
(15,243)
-

12/31/2014

258,084 $ 201,393
306,981
305,697
(17,673)
(288,939)
28,957
-

(194,424)
(183,001)
(208,896)
(247,410)
494,256
419,741
367,453
(29,259)
5,148,040
4,728,299
4,360,846
4,390,105
$ 5,642,296 $ 5,148,040 $ 4,728,299 $ 4,360,846

$

244,031
122,425
597,290

$

231,142
113,770
262,691

$

213,509
100,162
5,581

$ 186,424
84,419
203,553

(194,424)
(183,001)
(208,896)
(247,410)
(3,096)
(2,969)
(3,400)
(2,125)
(157)
(160)
(168)
(175)
766,069
421,473
106,788
224,686
4,310,832
3,889,359
3,782,571
3,557,885
$ 5,076,901 $ 4,310,832 $ 3,889,359 $ 3,782,571
$

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of
Total Pension Liability
Covered employee payroll

321,161
351,770
15,749
-

12/31/2015

565,395

89.98%
$ 2,040,414

Net Pension Liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

27.71%

$

837,208

83.74%
$ 1,896,161

44.15%

$

838,940

82.26%
$ 1,669,364

50.26%

$ 578,275

86.74%
$ 1,406,983

41.10%

Note: Years will be added until there are 10 years of comparison
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Town of Sunnyvale, Texas
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS-TMRS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

12/31/2017
Total OPEB Liability
Service cost
Interest (on the Total OPEB liability
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning
Total OPEB Liability - Ending

Covered employee payroll

$

$

7,141
2,849
6,665
(816)
15,839
72,217
88,056

$ 2,040,414

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

4.32%

See accompanying notes to these financial statements for more detail.
Note: Years will continue to be added until there are 10 years for comparison
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Roadway Impact Fund
Impact Fees are charges or assessments paid by new development in order to generate revenue for capital
improvements in response to the developments’ impact on services. The revenues presented are based on the
expectation of 100 permit requests for the budget year.
Homestead Amenities Fund
The Homestead Amenities Fund was established in 2007 under Ordinance 464 to provide contributions in lieu
of amenity construction. Currently the fund is being considered as a source of funds for the Collins Road
expansion from Highway 80 to Town East Blvd and the future construction of a new fire station.
Special Revenue Funds
Revenues that are collected but are restricted and can only be spent under specific guidelines. For these
funds, a fund description and fund statement are provided.






American Heart Association
Tree Mitigation
Lone Star Libraries Grant Program
Court Technology
Court Security

Capital Projects Funds
The Capital Projects Funds account for the design and construction of the Town’s facilities, roads, drainage,
parks, and water and sewer systems. Unlike the operating and enterprise budgets, the capital improvements
budgets do not conclude at the end of each fiscal year, as many CIP projects remain in progress over several
accounting periods. The Town utilizes professional service providers to conduct detailed studies to assist in
determining the short- and long-range infrastructure needs. The Town’s non-major Capital Project Funds are:



PEG Capital – to account for Public Education Grant (PEG) fees are charged to communication
providers and capital costs associated with PEG facilities, as permitted by law.
Capital Projects – to account for improvements to the Town’s owned infrastructure.

Page 81

.

Page 82

TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Roadway
Impact
ASSETS
Cash and Investments:
Unrestricted
Restricted
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectible)
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Total Liabilities
FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Community services
Municipal court
Street Maintenance
Assigned:
Capital improvements
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances

$

1,198,595
1,198,595

Homestead
Amenities

$

-

332,479
332,479

Special
Revenue

$

-

193,524
193,524

-

1,198,595

332,479

193,524
-

1,198,595

332,479

193,524

$ 1,198,595

$

332,479

$

193,524
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PEG
Capital

$

$

68,543
68,543

Tax
Increment

$

-

Capital
Projects

$

4,325,140
30,757
4,355,897

-

-

-

68,543
-

-

-

68,543

-

4,355,897
4,355,897

-

$ 4,355,897

68,543

$

Total Other
Governmental
Funds

$

5,924,757
224,281
6,149,038

-

68,543
193,524
1,531,074
4,355,897
6,149,038

$

6,149,038
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Roadway
Impact
REVENUE
Franchise
Fines and forfeitures
Impact fees
Miscellaneous
Grant income
Investment income
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Public services and operations
Library
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other Revenues and Financing Sources (uses)
Transfers In(Out)
Total Other Financing Sources (uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances/Equity, beginning of year
Fund Balances/Equity, end of year

$

380,364
-

Homestead
Amenities

8,383
388,747

2,462
11,674

99,970
99,970

-

21,949
21,949

-

288,777

11,674

22,164

502

(143,250)
(143,250)

-

-

145,527

11,674

22,164

$

9,212
-

320,805
332,479

$

PEG
Capital

30,918
13,195
44,113

1,053,067
$ 1,198,594

$

Special
Revenue

$

171,360
193,524

$

502
502

502

$

68,041
68,543
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Tax
Increment

$

$

-

Capital
Projects

$

-

Total Other
Governmental
Funds

$

30,918
389,576
-

-

79,084
79,084

90,431
510,925

-

-

99,970
21,949
121,919

-

79,084

389,006

-

(917,643)
(917,643)

(1,060,893)
(1,060,893)

-

(838,559)

(671,887)

-

5,194,458
$ 4,355,899

$

6,807,731
6,149,039
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS) TO ACTUAL - DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUE
Property taxes
Investment Income
Intergovernmental - state & local
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Total Current Expenditures

$

-

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures
Other Revenues and Financing Sources (uses)
Bond Proceeds
Transfers
Total Other Financing Sources (uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances/Equity, beginning of year
Fund Balances/Equity, end of year

686,415
2,100
688,515

$

Actual

686,415
2,100
688,515

$

-

702,784
2,291
52,910
757,985

-

Variance with
Final Budget Positive
(Negative)
$

16,369
191
52,910
69,470

-

810,197
810,197

810,197
810,197

681,804
245,412
927,216

128,393
(245,412)
(117,019)

810,197

810,197

927,216

(117,019)

(121,682)

(121,682)

(169,231)

(47,549)

196,160
196,160

196,160
196,160

242,347
242,347

46,187
46,187

74,478

74,478

73,116

(1,362)

175,013
249,491

$

175,013
249,491

$

175,013
248,129
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS) TO ACTUAL - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUE
Investment Income
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Total General Government

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures
Other Revenues and Financing Sources (uses)
Bond Proceeds
Transfers
Total Other Financing Sources (uses)
Net change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances/Equity, beginning of year
Fund Balances/Equity, end of year

$

-

$

-

Actual
$

79,084
79,084

Variance with
Final Budget Positive
(Negative)
$

79,084
79,084

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

79,084

79,084

5,194,458
$ 5,194,458

196,160
196,160
5,194,458
$ 5,194,458

(917,643)
(917,643)

(1,113,803)
(1,113,803)

(838,559)

(1,034,719)

5,194,458
$ 4,355,899
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS) TO ACTUAL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUE
Fines and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Police
Public Services and Operations
Library
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures
Net change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances/Equity, beginning of year
Fund Balances/Equity, end of year

$

30,000
30,000

$

30,000
30,000

Actual
$

30,918
13,195
44,113

Variance with
Final Budget Positive
(Negative)
$
$

918
13,195
14,113

18,550
18,550

-

21,949
21,949

(21,949)
(21,949)

11,450

30,000

22,164

(7,836)

11,450

30,000

22,164

(7,836)

171,360
$ 182,810

171,360
$ 201,360

171,360
$ 193,524
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - COMPONENT UNITS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectible)
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

Sunnyvale
4A Development
Corporation

Sunnyvale
4B Development
Corporation

$

$

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total Liabilities
FUND BALANCE
Assigned for
Infrastructure improvements
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$

2,260,885
69,964
2,330,849

2,708,579
139,917
2,848,496

Total
Component
Units
$

4,969,464
209,881
5,179,345

391
391

4,140
4,140

4,531
4,531

2,330,458
2,330,458

2,844,356
2,844,356

5,174,814
5,174,814

2,330,849

$

2,848,496

$

5,179,345
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - COMPONENT UNITS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Total fund balance - component units

$ 5,174,814

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

8,578

Accumulated depreciation is not included in the governmental fund financial
statements

(8,578)

Notes payable are not due and payable in the current period, and; therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

(382,739)

Revenues that do not provide current financial resources but are recognized in
the governmental activities.

18,241

Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period, and,
therefore is not reported in the fund financial statements.

(23,323)

Deferred inflow/outflow represent an acquisition of net position that is applied to
future periods. The amount is unavaliable and deferred at the fund level but
recognized in the governmental activities.

2,550

Compensated absences recorded as governmental liabilities in prior years
were transferred to component unit in the current year. Compensated
absences are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

(3,971)

Net position of component units - statement of net position

$ 4,785,572
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUE
Sales tax collected
Contributions
Total Revenues

Sunnyvale
4A Development
Corporation

Sunnyvale
4B Development
Corporation

$

$

EXPENDITURES
Current operating:
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Contractual services
Maintenance and repairs
Intergovernmental
Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures
Other Revenues and Financing Sources (uses)
Transfers
Investment income
Total Other Financing Sources (uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances/Equity, October 1
Fund Balances/Equity, September 30

$

408,760
895,783
1,304,543

817,520
836,931
1,654,451

Total
Component
Units
$

1,226,280
1,732,714
2,958,994

54,448
2,138
18,786
12,000

61,268
299
27,153
69,925
214,000

115,716
2,437
45,939
69,925
226,000

52,910
140,282

372,645

52,910
512,927

1,164,261

1,281,806

2,446,067

9,784
9,784

8,699
8,699

18,483
18,483

1,174,045

1,290,505

2,464,550

1,156,413
2,330,458

$

1,553,851
2,844,356

$

2,710,264
5,174,814
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF COMPONENT UNITS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net change in fund balances - component units

$ 2,464,550

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:
Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in the governmental funds since
it does not require the use of current financial resources.

(144)

Current year long-term debt payments are expenditures in the fund financial
statements but are shown as a reduction in long-term debt in the
government-wide financial statements.

52,910

Expenses in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances that are not recognized as expenses in the statement of activities.

18,240

Proceeds from the sale of assets are not reported in the government-wide financial
statements but are recognized as income within the fund financial statements.
Gain from the sale of assets is recognized within the government-wide financial
statements but are not recognized within the fund financial statements

(1,673,862)

298,862

Changes to vacation and other compensated absence liabilities are not
shown in the fund financial statements. The net effect of the current year is to
increase net position.

0

Changes in net pension liability are not shown in the fund financial
statements.

24,672

Change in net position of component units - statement of activities

$ 1,185,228
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL - 4A DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUE
Sales tax collected
Contributions
Total Revenues

353,250
353,250

$ 408,760
895,783
1,304,543

78,540
129,000
57,825
-

78,540
129,000
57,825
-

54,448
2,138
18,786
12,000

24,092
126,862
39,039
(12,000)

52,911
318,276

52,911
318,276

52,910
140,282

1
177,994

34,974

34,974

1,164,261

1,129,287

Other Revenues and Financing Sources (uses)
Interest Income
Total Other Financing Sources (uses)

5,070
49,344

5,070
49,344

9,784
9,784

Net Change in Fund Balances

84,318

84,318

1,174,045

1,156,413
$ 1,240,731

1,156,413
$ 1,240,731

1,156,413
$ 2,330,458

EXPENDITURES
Current operating:
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Contractual services
Intergovernmental
Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expenditures

Fund Balances/Equity, beginning of year
Fund Balances/Equity, end of year

$

353,250
353,250

$

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget Positive
(Negative)

$

55,510
895,783
951,293

4,714
(39,560)
1,089,727
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL - 4B DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUE
Sales tax collected
Contributions
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current operating:
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Contractual services
Maintenance and repairs
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expenditures

706,500
706,500

$ 706,500
706,500

66,040
21,000
85,650
356,741
18,700
650,000
1,198,131

66,040
21,000
85,650
356,741
18,700
650,000
1,198,131

Actual
$

817,520
836,931
1,654,451

61,268
299
27,153
69,925
214,000
(1)
372,644

Variance with
Final Budget Positive
(Negative)
$

111,020
836,931
947,951

4,772
20,701
58,497
286,816
(195,300)
650,001
825,487

(491,631)

(491,631)

1,281,807

1,773,438

Other Revenues and Financing Sources (uses)
Interest Income
Total Other Financing Sources (uses)

6,640
(207,360)

6,640
(207,360)

8,699
8,699

2,059
216,059

Net Change in Fund Balances

(698,991)

(698,991)

1,290,506

1,989,497

Fund Balances/Equity, beginning of year
Fund Balances/Equity, end of year

$

1,553,851
854,860

1,553,851
$ 854,860

1,553,851
$ 2,844,357
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Mike Ward Accounting & Financial Consulting, PLLC
Mike Ward, CPA
266 RCR 1397
Point, Texas 75472

(903) 269‐6211
mward@mikewardcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Town Council
Town of Sunnyvale
127 North Collins Road
Sunnyvale, Texas 75182
I have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the businesstype activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas’ basic financial
statements, and have issued my report thereon dated March 25, 2019.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the businesstype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the Town of Sunnyvale,
Texas as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United State of America, I considered the Town of Sunnyvale’s internal control over financial
reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing my auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Sunnyvale’s internal control. Accordingly, I do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Sunnyvale’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas’ financial statements
are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of
my test disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.
Respectfully Submitted,

Mike Ward Accounting & Financial Consulting, PLLC
Point, Texas
March 25, 2019
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 1

(accrual basis of accounting)

(unaudited)

2009

2010

FISCAL YEAR
2011

2012

2013

$ 3,372,667
3,732,321
1,941,907
9,046,895

$ 3,748,238
3,562,718
2,283,507
9,594,463

$ 4,496,865
4,255,040
2,550,808
11,302,713

$ 4,805,132
1,546,831
2,645,673
8,997,636

$ 4,956,375
1,851,519
2,332,178
9,140,072

8,101,933
1,271,531
168,312
9,541,776

7,741,287
1,065,607
1,035,517
9,842,411

12,482,792
1,072,987
(3,287,776)
10,268,003

8,412,549
1,098,608
1,359,897
10,871,054

11,276,133
5,003,852
1,873,552
$ 18,153,537

11,850,171
4,834,249
2,451,819
$ 19,136,239

12,238,152
5,320,647
3,586,325
$ 21,145,124

17,287,924
2,619,818
(642,103)
$ 19,265,639

13,368,924
2,950,127
3,692,075
$ 20,011,126

2014

2015

FISCAL YEAR
2016

2017

2018

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities net position

$ 5,533,170
1,237,407
5,072,122
11,842,699

$ 9,192,257
1,480,724
5,063,645
15,736,626

$ 10,259,140
1,879,936
5,125,907
17,264,983

$ 11,019,317
2,109,210
4,924,743
18,053,270

$ 13,645,563
2,142,961
5,496,564
21,285,088

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net position

8,638,647
1,793,193
1,090,014
11,521,854

14,404,813
1,744,554
520,468
16,669,835

14,409,109
2,714,408
1,048,812
18,172,329

17,832,746
2,023,749
1,639,134
21,495,629

24,413,662
2,152,935
2,610,035
29,176,632

14,171,817
3,030,600
6,162,136
$ 23,364,553

23,597,070
3,225,278
5,584,113
$ 32,406,461

24,668,249
4,594,344
6,174,719
$ 35,437,312

28,852,063
4,132,959
6,563,877
$ 39,548,899

38,059,225
4,295,896
8,106,599
$ 50,461,720

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities net position
Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net position
Primary government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total primary government net position

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total primary government net position

7,903,466
1,271,531
(68,355)
9,106,642
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)
(unaudited)

2009
EXPENSES
Governmental activities:
General government
Public Safety
Public Services and Operations
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Library
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities expenses

$

1,305,921
1,883,403
1,460,763
594,466
230,136
5,474,689

2010

$

1,436,272
1,920,850
1,348,711
935,833
225,028
5,866,694

FISCAL YEAR
2011

$

1,594,165
1,967,396
1,399,123
460,552
213,247
5,634,483

2012

$

2013

1,626,724
1,954,257
1,048,309
510,051
203,199
5,342,540

$

1,458,993
1,900,606
1,979,301
305,228
228,506
5,872,634

Business-type activities:
Utilities
Total business-type activities expenses

2467260
2,467,260

2,562,480
2,562,480

2,873,770
2,873,770

2,979,588
2,979,588

2,946,655
2,946,655

Total primary government expenses

7,941,949

8,429,174

8,508,253

8,322,128

8,819,289

141,938
475,524
53,844
294,444
-

126,133
522,244
28,310
194,441
416,512

132,788
556,500
39,689
208,401
264,336

247,301
580,392
61,626
14,678
45,733

109,181
448,154
25,581
202,144
230,901

965,750

1,287,640

1,201,714

949,730

1,015,961

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental activities:
Charge for services:
General government
Public Safety
Public Services and Operations
Public Works
Parks and Cultural
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities
program revenues
Business-type activities:
Charge for services:
Utilities
Capital grants and contributions
Total business-type activities
program revenues

2,659,023
220,554

3,010,925
-

3,402,567
-

3,310,713
-

3,330,492
15,000

2,879,577

3,010,925

3,402,567

3,310,713

3,345,492

Total primary government program revenues

3,845,327

4,298,565

4,604,281

4,260,443

4,361,453

(4,508,939)
412,317

(4,579,054)
448,445

(4,432,769)
528,797

(4,392,810)
331,125

(4,856,673)
398,837

$ (4,096,622)

$ (4,130,609)

$ (3,903,972)

$ (4,061,685)

$ (4,457,836)

NET (EXPENSE)/REVENUE
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government program
net expenses
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Table 2

2014

$

1,043,470
1,906,497
821,386
394,480
428,745
142,695
88,808
4,826,081

2015

$

1,052,425
2,367,607
816,091
595,851
509,635
142,545
103,540
5,587,694

FISCAL YEAR
2016

$

1,248,277
2,602,749
2,092,844
277,284
471,979
191,508
97,819
6,982,460

2017

$

1,639,530
2,723,379
1,783,654
271,115
573,556
180,518
125,638
7,297,390

2018

$

1,597,658
3,701,545
1,910,903
306,163
617,800
203,464
245,412
8,582,945

3,374,140
3,374,140

3,663,328
3,663,328

4,257,032
4,257,032

4,361,206
4,361,206

5,074,148
5,074,148

8,200,221

9,251,022

11,239,492

11,658,596

13,657,093

418,776
778,203
3,135
507,878
-

105,332
109,281
296,036
101,283
4,197
118,384
1,524,366

240,305
230,557
499,121
221,217
6,244
113,123
566,140

211,624
362,077
489,160
282,465
6,616
12,175
208,272

396,095
152,621
544,563
389,576
11,393
67,108
3,164,377

1,707,992

2,258,879

1,876,707

1,572,389

4,725,733

3,825,951
-

4,249,639
2,239,086

4,808,138
883,070

4,707,371
2,355,760

5,729,121
6,375,710

3,825,951

6,488,725

5,691,208

7,063,131

12,104,831

5,533,943

8,747,604

7,567,915

8,635,520

16,830,564

(3,118,089)
451,811

(3,328,815)
2,825,397

(5,105,753)
1,434,176

(5,725,001)
2,701,925

(3,857,212)
7,030,683

(503,418)

$ (3,671,577)

$ (3,023,076)

$ (2,666,278)

$

$

3,173,471
(continued)
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities:
Taxes:
Property tax
Sales tax
Franchise tax
Alcoholic Beverage Tax
Investment Income
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Investment Income
Transfers
Total business-type activities
Total primary government
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government

2009

2010

FISCAL YEAR
2011

2012

2013

$ 2,470,096
1,749,084
987,491
6,085
64,556
39,239
(706,636)
4,609,915

$ 2,885,750
1,330,813
814,312
1,437
19,882
49,428
25,000
5,126,622

$ 2,906,223
1,665,837
914,799
17,623
349,539
286,923
6,140,944

$ 3,017,460
2,007,188
903,025
11,262
12,583
(214,788)
5,736,730

$ 3,061,437
1,172,287
940,189
3,167
20,229
(198,200)
4,999,109

23,314
706,636
729,950

11,689
(25,000)
(13,311)

18,123
(286,923)
(268,800)

4,923
214,788
219,711

6,014
198,200
204,214

5,339,865

5,113,311

5,872,144

5,956,441

5,203,323

100,976
1,142,267
$ 1,243,243

547,568
435,134
982,702

1,708,175
259,997
$ 1,968,172

1,343,920
550,836
$ 1,894,756

142,436
603,051
745,487

$

$
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Table 2
(continued)

2014

2015

FISCAL YEAR
2016

2017

$ 3,309,754
1,130,663
986,539
1,343
12,870
(196,611)
5,244,558

$ 3,314,131
1,376,840
1,205,928
1,085
51,245
(98,276)
5,850,953

$ 3,774,207
1,751,597
1,158,235
5,845
3,218
(58,992)
6,634,110

$ 4,272,558
1,604,731
1,105,973
26,551
107,570
(604,095)
6,513,288

2018

$

4,499,897
2,043,801
1,081,674
5,130
150,411
(636,276)
7,144,637

2,381
196,611
198,992

3,112
98,276
101,388

9,326
58,992
68,318

17,280
604,095
621,375

27,765
636,276
664,041

5,443,550

5,952,341

6,702,428

7,134,663

7,808,678

2,126,469
650,803
$ 2,777,272

2,522,138
2,926,785
$ 5,448,923

1,528,357
1,502,494
$ 3,030,851

788,287
3,323,300
$ 4,111,587

3,287,425
7,694,724
$ 10,982,149
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 3

(accrual basis of accounting)
(unaudited)

Sales
Tax

Fiscal
Year

Property
Tax

2009

$ 2,470,096

2010

2,885,750

665,407

2011

2,906,223

2012

$

874,542

Alcoholic
Beverage
Tax

Franchise
Tax
$

987,491

$

Total

6,085

$ 4,338,214

814,312

1,437

4,366,906

832,915

914,799

-

4,653,937

3,017,460

1,003,594

903,025

-

4,924,079

2013

3,061,437

1,172,287

940,189

-

5,173,913

2014

3,309,754

1,130,663

986,539

-

5,426,956

2015

3,314,131

1,376,840

1,205,928

-

5,896,899

2016

3,774,207

1,751,597

1,158,235

-

6,684,039

2017

4,272,558

1,604,731

1,105,973

-

6,983,262

2018

4,499,897

2,043,801

1,081,674

-

7,625,372
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 4

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(unaudited)

2009
General Fund
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total General Fund
All Other Governmental Funds
Restricted for:
General Use
Court Use
Capital Improvements
Debt Service
Community Development
Street Maintenance
Assigned for:
Police
Capital Improvements
Community Services
Unassigned
Total all other Governmental Funds

General Fund
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total General Fund
All other governmental funds
Restricted for:
General Use
Court use
Capital improvements
Debt Service
Community development
Street Maintenance
Assigned for:
Police
Capital improvements
Community services
Unassigned
Total all other governmental funds

$

1,273,986
1,273,986

2010
$

25,000
1,592,652
1,617,652

FISCAL YEAR
2011
$

25,000
298,759
1,748,156
2,071,915

2012
$

25,000
171,824
2,521,642
2,718,466

2013
$

25,000
163,548
3,064,242
3,252,790

69,013
-

78,509
-

34,192
1,474,783
72,645
-

8,456
41,689
1,524,500
90,463
2,508,190
-

5,314,049
$ 5,383,062

5,106,889
$ 5,185,398

4,061
4,011,877
$ 5,597,558

67,494
1,787,461
36,560
$ 6,064,813

36,560
(4,027)
$ 1,859,052

2014

2015

FISCAL YEAR
2016

2017

2018

$

389,608
4,095,036
4,484,644

150,346
208,243
28,831
849,987
871,685
(3,200)
$ 2,105,892

$

40,603
151,331
735,335
4,247,916
5,175,185

112,448
231,611
80,368
904,966
895,936
(3,200)
$ 2,222,129

$

31,015
350,318
406,307
4,686,749
5,474,389

164,958
207,146
54,092
1,126,413
898,616
(3,200)
$ 2,448,025

$

20,685
476,843
4,819,339
5,316,867

109,568
1,540,879
158,605
17,467
-

$

45,000
557,219
5,054,193
5,656,412

171,360
175,013
68,041
1,373,872

248,126
68,543
1,531,075

5,194,458
$ 6,982,744

4,355,897
$ 6,397,165

193,524
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(unaudited)

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales tax
Franchise Fees
Alcoholic Beverage Tax
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Charge for Current Services
Impact Fees
Grants
Donations
Investment Income
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

2009

2010

FISCAL YEAR
2011

2012

2013

$ 2,422,829
1,749,084
987,491
6,085
129,484
426,629
115,193
2,200
64,556
292,244
59,335
6,255,130

$ 2,864,377
1,330,813
814,312
1,437
116,133
462,136
98,419
33,900
19,882
519,693
49,428
6,310,530

$ 2,814,655
1,665,838
914,799
132,788
508,964
87,225
6,600
17,623
466,474
353,518
6,968,484

$ 3,078,063
2,007,188
903,025
247,301
531,767
110,251
10,890
11,262
67,234
12,583
6,979,564

$ 3,153,354
1,172,287
940,189
109,181
397,035
76,700
181,130
3,167
36,774
20,229
6,090,046

1,075,036
1,862,683
1,949,887
-

1,577,806
1,871,816
2,241,941
-

1,749,208
1,991,589
1,876,671
-

1,554,890
1,918,488
1,681,729
-

1,365,401
1,922,274
2,161,178
-

200,000
224,823
5,312,429

275,764
222,201
6,189,528

265,000
210,757
6,093,225

295,000
200,863
5,650,970

4,805,000 *
173,120
73,452
10,500,425

942,701

121,002

875,259

1,328,594

(4,410,379)

(52,893)
(52,893)

173,320
173,320

121,188
121,188

149,520
149,520

996,447

$ 1,478,114

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreational
Public Services and Operations**
Library
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and other charges
Bond issuance costs
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers
Gain on sale of assets
Issuance of Tax Note
Issuance of Certificates of Obligation
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

$

889,808

8.00%

$

294,322

8.05%

$

7.81%

8.77%

25,000
4,549,032 *
4,574,032
$

163,653

7.21%

* Refunding bond in fiscal year 2013.
** Public Services and Operations includes Community Development, Library, and Parks and Streets for years 2005-2013.
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Table 5

2014

2015

FISCAL YEAR
2016

2017

2018

$ 3,269,744
1,130,663
986,539
334,239
616,098
32,713
217,064
10,383
1,343
492,973
12,870
7,104,629

$ 3,400,741
1,376,840
1,205,928
163,582
299,291
44,415
101,283
687
1,085
195,389
51,245
6,840,486

$ 3,750,703
1,751,597
1,158,235
357,698
503,179
43,742
221,217
1,119
3,218
170,162
5,844
7,966,714

$ 4,248,741
1,604,731
1,105,973
497,981
495,435
49,486
282,465
1,085
26,551
266,290
106,195
8,684,933

$ 4,528,010
2,043,801
1,081,673
512,303
548,289
44,080
389,576
13,195
620
117,697
84,730
5,130
9,369,104

949,165
1,821,954
311,230
358,761
821,385
142,695
541,695

930,884
2,259,340
444,662
438,869
836,325
146,395
1,095,256

1,068,827
2,452,774
1,459,117
390,696
741,970
193,428
425,501

1,705,243
2,364,482
1,033,291
370,788
812,361
179,388
772,040

1,423,454
3,574,902
908,421
602,178
1,116,323
197,395
210,724

380,000
102,439
5,429,324

450,000
103,540
23,041
6,728,312

634,097
97,819

660,170
193,033

681,804
245,412

7,464,229

8,090,796

8,960,613

1,675,305

112,174

502,485

594,137

408,491

(98,276)
7,880
785,000
694,604

(58,992)
81,607
22,615

(604,095)
26,573
4,360,581
3,783,059

(654,518)
(654,518)

(196,611)
(196,611)
$ 1,478,694

9.87%

$

806,778

9.83%

$

525,100

10.40%

$ 4,377,196

11.66%

$

(246,027)

10.60%
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Table 6

Total
Fiscal Year
Ended
Sept. 30

Estimated Actual Value
Real
Personal
Property
Property

Less:
Tax Exempt
Real Property

Total Taxable
Assessed
Value

Direct
Tax
Rate

Total Taxable
Assessed Value
Inc / (Dec)

2009

694,308,390

172,737,840

204,099,250

662,946,980

0.37796

13.75%

2010

745,473,070

207,664,100

235,483,988

717,653,182

0.40796

7.62%

2011

792,081,080

196,648,770

260,331,798

728,398,052

0.40796

1.48%

2012

802,789,310

208,338,430

242,170,205

768,957,535

0.40796

5.27%

2013

809,693,090

199,622,700

260,261,093

749,054,697

0.40796

-2.66%

2014

856,130,210

232,716,580

283,769,366

805,077,424

0.40796

6.96%

2015

888,189,540

218,121,640

274,631,565

831,679,615

0.40796

3.20%

2016

931,852,220

294,122,850

301,684,556

924,290,514

0.40796

10.02%

2017

1,032,922,190

303,227,460

364,392,341

971,757,309

0.40796

4.88%

2018

1,118,858,490

304,117,440

351,596,731

1,071,379,199

0.41309

9.30%

Avg

5.98%

Source: Town Administration Office.
Note: Property is reassessed annually. Property is assessed actual value; therefore, the assessed values are equal to actual value.
Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.
Residential: includes single family, vacant lots, acreage, farm and ranch
Commercial: includes real property, industrial and utilities
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)
(unaudited)

Fiscal Year
Ended
Sept. 30

Town Direct Rates
General
Operating/
Obligation
General
Debt
Rate
Service

Table 7

Total
Direct

Overlapping Rates *
Sunnyvale
Independent
School
Dallas
District
County

Total
Direct and
Overlapping
Rates

2009

0.3448

0.0332

0.3780

1.3700

0.2281

1.9761

2010

0.3536

0.0544

0.4080

1.3600

0.2281

1.9961

2011

0.3530

0.0550

0.4080

1.3510

0.2431

2.0021

2012

0.3230

0.0850

0.4080

1.4100

0.2431

2.0611

2013

0.3074

0.1006

0.4080

1.4100

0.2431

2.0611

2014

0.3177

0.0902

0.4080

1.4100

0.2431

2.0611

2015

0.3368

0.0712

0.4080

1.4100

0.2431

2.0611

2016

0.3392

0.0688

0.4080

1.4100

0.2431

2.0611

2017

0.3392

0.0688

0.4080

1.4100

0.2431

2.0611

2018

0.3485

0.0646

0.4131

1.5200

0.2431

2.1762

Source: Town Administration Office and Dallas Central Appraisal District
*Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property
owners within the Town of Sunnyvale, Texas.
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Table 8

TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO
(unaudited)
20181
Taxable
Assessed
Value

Taxpayer

DAL TILE CORPORATION

$

Rank

20092
Percentage of
Total Taxable
Assessed
Value

116,576,381

1

9.51%

SABRA TEXAS PROPERTIES LP

31,150,000

2

2.54%

LLH MRS MASTER RE LLC

20,500,000

3

1.67%

HOMATEX LP

16,063,420

4

1.31%

RKS SUNNYVALE LLC

13,171,170

5

1.07%

301 CLAY RD LLC

10,311,580

6

0.84%

ARHC SMSVLT01 LLC

9,954,160

7

0.81%

ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY

9,627,360

8

0.79%

SAL 2016 LLC

9,500,000

9

0.77%

FEDERAL EXPRESS

7,222,750

10

0.59%

DAL TILE CORPORATION

Taxable
Assessed
Value

20,079,616

1

2.80%

AMERICAN MARAZZI TILE INC.

17,533,039

2

2.44%

HOMATEX LP

16,491,010

3

2.30%

CP SUNNYVALE PROPERTY LTD

15,749,140

4

2.19%

AMERICAN MARAZZI TILE INC.

13,328,753

5

1.86%

STONE 38 LLC

9,795,190

6

1.36%

WAL MART EAST INC

8,354,060

7

1.16%

GC LEASING SERVICES INC

7,132,880

8

0.99%

MILLARD REFRIDGERATED SERVICES

6,828,930

9

0.95%

ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY

5,178,660

10

0.72%

Total

$

Rank

Percentage of
Total Taxable
Assessed
Value

$

244,076,821

Total valuation of Town net of exempt property $ 1,225,860,828

19.91%

$ 120,471,278

16.79%

$ 717,653,182

Source: 1 Dallas County Tax Office
2
Municipal Advisory Council of Texas
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Fiscal Year
Ended
Sept. 30

Total Tax
Levy for
Fiscal Year

Table 9

Collections in
Collected within the
Subsequent
Fiscal Year of the Levy
Amount
% of Levy
Years

Total Collections to Date
Amount
% of Levy

2009

2,495,391

2,409,050

96.54%

85,620

2,494,670

99.97%

2010

2,965,195

2,785,208

93.93%

179,028

2,964,235

99.97%

2011

2,972,083

2,764,037

93.00%

207,094

2,971,131

99.97%

2012

3,139,017

2,919,286

93.00%

217,457

3,136,743

99.9%

2013

3,089,815

2,977,346

96.36%

99,286

3,076,632

99.6%

2014

3,288,047

3,241,651

98.59%

34,127

3,275,778

99.6%

2015

3,392,837

3,335,116

98.30%

43,048

3,378,164

99.6%

2016

3,746,450

3,696,188

98.66%

31,947

3,728,135

99.5%

2017

3,903,070

3,874,714

99.27%

26,344

3,901,058

99.9%

2018

4,384,310

4,359,156

99.43%

25,896

4,385,052

100.0%

Source: First Southwest Company, Dallas County Tax Office Year End Report, Texas
Municipal Reports
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Table 10

Governmental
Activities
Fiscal
Year

General
Obligations

Tax
Note

Capital
Lease

Business-Type Activities
Certificates
of
General
Other
Obligation
Obligations Obligations

2009

5,600,000

-

-

4,140,000

2010

5,365,000

-

-

3,005,707

2011

5,100,000

-

-

2012

4,805,000

-

2013

4,541,976

2014

4,145,040

2015

3,728,105

735,000

2016

3,296,169

615,000

2017

7,188,501

2018

6,685,786

-

Total
Primary
Government

Percentage
of Personal
Per
Income (1) Capita (1)

363,857

10,103,857

5.67%

2,196

950,000

296,892

9,617,599

*

1,869

2,937,036

3,845,000

219,163

12,101,199

*

2,259

-

2,815,364

3,620,000

185,051

11,425,415

5.40%

2,080

-

-

2,840,000

3,247,541

126,493

10,756,010

4.58%

1,903

-

-

2,899,987

2,763,858

118,058

9,926,943

4.42%

1,757

-

2,641,573

2,588,576

109,623

9,802,877

3.92%

1,700

492,457

2,608,603

2,135,000

144,040

9,291,269

3.42%

1,537

495,000

402,288

2,468,477

1,820,000

132,031

12,506,297

4.43%

2,083

375,000

310,484

2,328,824

1,675,000

120,024

11,495,118

3.64%

1,771

Note 1: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(1) See Table 15 for personal income and population data.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Fiscal Year

General
Obligations

Less:
Debt Service
Fund

Total

Table 11

Percentage of
Estimated
Actual Taxable 1
Value of Property

Per
Capita 2

2009

5,600,000

69,013

5,530,987

0.83%

1,202

2010

5,365,000

78,509

5,286,491

0.74%

1,027

2011

5,100,000

72,645

5,027,355

0.69%

939

2012

4,805,000

90,463

4,714,537

0.61%

858

2013

4,541,976

158,605

4,383,371

0.59%

776

2014

4,145,040

199,293

3,945,747

0.49%

698

2015

4,463,105

231,611

4,231,494

0.51%

734

2016

4,403,626

207,145

4,196,481

0.45%

694

2017

8,085,789

175,012

7,910,777

0.81%

1,318

2018

7,371,270

248,126

7,123,144

0.66%

1,097

Note: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
Source:
1 See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
on Table 6 for property value data.
2 Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics
on Table 15.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX

Table 12

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
(unaudited)

Governmental Subdivision

Gross Bonded
Debt

Dallas County
Dallas County CCD
Dallas County Hospital District
Dallas County Schools
Sunnyvale I S D

$

172,265,000
228,350,000
687,775,000
36,600,000
97,144,558

$1,222,134,558
Town of Sunnyvale, Texas direct debt

Percentage of
Debt
Applicable to
Area 1
0.48%
0.48%
0.48%
0.48%
100.00%

Town Share of
Overlapping
Debt
$

826,872
1,096,080
3,301,320
175,680
97,144,558
102,544,510
10,505,000

$ 113,049,510
Ratio of overlapping bonded debt to
taxable assessed valuation
(valued at 100% of market value)
Per capita overlapping bonded debt

9.22%
$17,416

Source: "Texas Municipal Report" as of September 30, 2017, prepared by the Municipal Advisory Council.
Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of
the Town. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping government
that is borne by the residents and businesses of the Town of Sunnyvale. This process recognizes that,
when considering the Town of Sunnyvale's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden
borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.
(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using the taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the overlapping government's taxable
assessed value that is within the Town of Sunnyvale's boundaries and dividing it by the overlapping
government's total taxable assessed value.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Table 13

FISCAL YEAR
Debt Limit

$

Current Tax Rate
Available Tax Rate

$

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

2.09204

2010
2.50

$

2.09204

2015
$
2.50

0.40796

0.40796

2.09204
19.50%

$

2.09204
19.50%

2011
2.50

$

0.40796
$

19.50%

2014
$
2.50

$

$

0.40796

19.50%

Current Tax Rate
Available Tax Rate

$

0.40796

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

Debt Limit

2009
2.50

2.09204

2012
2.50
0.40796

$

19.50%

2.09204

0.40796
2.09204
19.50%

$

2.09204
19.50%

2.09204
19.50%

$

0.40796
$

2013
2.50
0.40796

19.50%

FISCAL YEAR
2016
2017
$
2.50
$
2.50

$

$

2018
2.50
0.41309

$

2.08691
19.79%
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Less: Operating
Expenses b

Table 14

Tax and Revenue Refunding Bonds
Debt Service
Net Available
Revenue
Principal
Interest

Fiscal
Year

Total
Revenues a

Times
Coverage

2009

2,659,023

2,148,772

510,251

225,000

176,404

1.27

2010

3,010,925

2,194,993

815,932

250,000

142,634

2.08

2011

3,402,567

2,477,007

925,560

340,000

280,625

1.49

2012

3,310,713

2,554,226

756,487

448,419

238,541

1.10

2013

3,330,492

2,517,502

812,990

417,004

184,951

1.35

2014

3,825,951

2,922,114

903,837

415,000

174,875

1.53

2015

4,079,273

3,118,955

960,318

425,000

163,950

1.63

2016

4,208,074

3,703,658

504,416

440,000

152,375

0.85

2017

4,381,231

3,734,548

646,683

275,000

143,075

1.55

2018

5,407,543

4,280,436

1,127,107

280,000

134,800

2.72

Note: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
a Revenue does not include transfers or non-operating revenues.
b Includes operating expenses minus depreciation, bond issuance costs, and other
non-operating expenses.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Table 15

Per Capita
Personal
Income 2

Fiscal
Year

Estimated
Population 1

Personal
Income

2009

4,600

2010

5,147

-

2011

5,356 **

-

2012

5,494 **

2013

178,043,000

$

38,705

Median
Age 5

School
Enrollment 3

Unemployment
4
Rate

(a)

1,010

7.7%

(a)

42.6

1,154

8.2%

(a)

(a)

1,224

7.8%

211,694,808

38,532

(a)

1,291

6.8%

5,651 **

224,791,129

39,779

(a)

1,361

6.2%

2014

5,651 **

224,791,129 **

(a)

(a)

1,512

5.5%

2015

5,766

250,077,186

43,371 (b)

41.9

(c)

1,565

4.0%

2016

6,044 **

271,816,812

41,398

39.6

(c)

1,638

3.9%

2017

6,004

282,398,140

47,035

40.4

1,752

4.0%

2018

6,491

315,501,546

48,606

38

1,814

3.7%

Sources:
1 North Texas Council of Governments, US Census, Town Officials
2 US Department of Commerce - Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Census Bureau
2 Sunnyvale Independent School District
3
43
5 US Department of Labor - Bureau of Labor Statistics - DFW Region
5
4
*3 Town Charts/Texas Demographics/Sunnyvale, American Fact Finder
** Estimated
(a) Information not available
(b) TX HomeTownLocator (as of July 1, 2015)
(c) US Census Bureau - American Fact Finder (2010-2014 5 year estimate)
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO
(unaudited)

Table 16

2018

2009

Number of
Employees

Number of
Employees

0

0

Construction

169

159

Manufacturing

243

323

77

86

437

203

Transportation & Warehousing, and Utilities

75

96

Information

95

31

Finance, Insurance, Real Estate, Rental & Leasing

266

147

Professional, Scientific, Management, & Administrative &
Waste Management Services

436

410

886

770

Arts, Entertainment, Recreation, and Accommodation &
Food Services

109

96

Other Services, except Public Administration

180

171

Public Administration

125

106

Business Sector
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing, Hunting & Mining

Wholesale Trade
Retail Trade

Educational Services, and Health Care & Social Assistance

Note: The Town of Sunnyvale is a relatively small municipality with a geographic area of approximately 16
square miles. Infomration is from the U.S. Census Bureau, American Fact Finder American Community
Selected Economic Characteristics Survey 5 Year Estimates 2013-2017 and 2011-2015.
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT TOWN GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Table 17

Fiscal Year
Function / Program
General government
Administrative Services
Town Manager
Town Secretary
Secretary/Admin Assistant
Economic Development

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

1
1
1

1
1
1

1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
0
1

2
1
0
1

Financial Services
Finance
Municipal Court
Municipal Court Judge

2
2
1

2
2
1

2
2
1

2
2
1

2
2
1

2
2
1

3
2
1

3
2
1

3
3
1

3
2
1

Library

4

4

4

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Public Safety
Police **
Development Services
Fire

0
4
2

0
4
2

0
4
2

0
4
1

0
4
1

0
4
4

0
5
5

0
5
5

0
5
5

0
7
8

Parks & Streets

6

5

7

7

7

7

7

7

8

8

Water and Sewer Systems
Total

6
30

6
29

6
31

6
30

6
30

6
33

6
36

8
38

9
40

9
45

Source: Town Administration Office.
** All positions contracted with Dallas County
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Table 18

Fiscal Year
2010
2011

2009
Function/Program
Judicial
Municipal Court Fines
Fire
Fire Calls
Fire Loss
New Development
Permits Issued (Units)
Permit Value
Streets
Miles of Streets Maintained
Health
Animals Impounded
Cultural and Recreational
Parks
Parks Maintained
Sanitation Service
Refuse Customers
Water
Number of Water Customers
Estimated Gallons Billed (in thousands)
Sewer
Number of Wastewater Customers

$

399,536

31
$39,600

(a)
(a)

54.69

(a)

5

$

432,809

30
$414,560

(a)
(a)

$

2012

478,838

34
$30,000

(a)
(a)

$

2013

497,790

$

Fiscal Year
2015

2014

375,898

$

442,434

$

2016

370,378

$

2017

426,246

$

2018

457,607

$

520,854

31
$296,390

33
$2,500

30
$20,000

38
$82,290

42
$174,000

28
$1,043,070

27
$658,460

44
$265,335 (b)

120
$292,092

102
$521,027

44
$14,041,157

108
$55,916,721

90
$60,916,508

97
$117,621,670

54.69

54.69

54.69

54.69

55.7

57.63

59.11

60.11

63.71

116

121

103

151

133

133

168

178

170

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

1,886

2026

2,059

2,117

2,155

2,178

1,947

1,965

2,071

2,153

1,886
529,231

2026
505,051

2,059
562,521

2,117
457,540

2,155
577,817

2,178
422,669

2,256
478,108

2,336
462,682

2,492
450,176

2,597
584,989

1,441

1,528

1,530

1,575

1,587

1,641

1,741

1,820

1,358

1,388

Sources: Various government departments.
(a) Information not available
(b) Information reflects Jan-Sept 2012 activity only
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TOWN OF SUNNYVALE, TX
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Function

2009

2010

2011

2012

Police
Number of Stations

1

1

1

1

Fire
Number of Stations
Fire Hydrants

1
568

1
616

1
657

1
662

54.69

54.69

54.69

54.69

5

5

5

5

Streets
Miles of Streets
Cultural and Recreational
Parks Maintained
Water
Water Storage Capacity (gallons)

800,000

800,000

800,000

800,000

Sources: Various government departments.
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Table 19

Fiscal Year
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
685

1
710

1
796

1
842

1
875

1
940

54.69

55.7

57.63

59.11

60.11

63.71

5

5

5

5

5

5

1,725,000

1,750,000

800,000

800,000

800,000

800,000
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Town of Sunnyvale
13.

May 13, 2019

Prepared By: Susan Guthrie, Town
Manager
Summary:
Discuss, consider and act upon a development agreement with TF
Stoneycreek, LP to provide for funding and construction of a portion of
roadway connecting Hounsel Lane and Nance Road.
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Background & Analysis:
Sunnyvale ISD received plat approval and has received approval for design plans to
extend Hounsel Lane to a point that will connect with Nance Road. This connection will
not provide for good traffic flow to the new development, described as Stoney Creek
Development Tract 4 (Phase 4B and 4C). To facilitate this access, Staff worked with
the Developer, TF Stoney Creek, LP to construct a connection that would encourage
traffic exiting the development from Nance Road to use Hounsel Lane. This will also
provide for direct access to the school for parents dropping off students.

Fiscal Impact:
In return for the Developer constructing the project, the Town agrees to waive the traffic
mitigation fees of $1,100 per house up to the cost to construct the street, not to exceed
$184,400. Additionally, the agreement will call for the Town to pay up to $129,000 from
existing traffic mitigation funds to cover the cost of the construction.

Attachments:
• Stoneycreek Nance Rd Gap
• Contract for Hounsel
• Nance Rd & Hounsel Construction Exhibit

Stoney Creek Nance Road Gap
Town of Sunnyvale, Dallas County, Texas
0.85 Acres
4/30/2019
QUANTITIES
Item #
Pay Item
1
34' Asphalt (2" TxDot Type "D" HMAC Surface Overlay)
2
34' Asphalt (4" TxDot Type "B" HMAC Base Course)
3
6" Compacted Subgrade
4
1.5' Concrete Curb & Gutter
5
5' Sidewalk
6
Transition to Nance Road
7
6' Curb Inlet
8
3'x3' Drop Inlet
9
18" RCP
10
24" RCP
11
Erosion Control
12
Excavation/Clearing/Fencing
13
Remove/Demo Existing Asphalt Pavement

Item #
1
2
3
4
5

Pay Item
Enginering/Surveying/Staking, Dev Agrmnt & Re-work
Construction Management
Material Testing
Inspection Fees (3%)
Contingency (10%)

Unit
SY
SY
SY
LF
SY
LS
EA
EA
LF
LF
LS
LS
SY

Quantity
1,921
1,921
2,225
1,017
566
1
2
1
35
242
1
1.0
1,441

Cost
$28,213
$13,928
$9,000
$6,964
$23,213

Item Cost
$28,213
$13,928
$9,000
$6,964
$23,213
$81,317
$313,446

Unit Cost Item Cost
$15
$28,815
$23
$44,183
$6
$13,350
$26
$26,442
$52
$29,432
$20,732
$20,732
$4,500
$9,000
$4,100
$4,100
$60
$2,100
$85
$20,570
$6,200
$6,200
$20,000
$20,000
$5
$7,205
$232,129

GRAND TOTAL
NOTE:
1. This assumes the Town obtains ALL right of way and permits necessary, including but notlimited to the
permit to construct a road within the Dallas Power and Light right of way, tree clearing, adjacent owner
easement acquisition, ect.
2. Item #6 (Transition to Nance Road) includes the 2" Type D HMAC, 4" Type B HMAC, 6" compacted
subgrade, and connecting to the existing Nance Road pavement section.

Dowdey, Anderson Associates, Inc.

1

4/30/2019

STATE OF TEXAS
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF DALLAS

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, is made and entered into by and between the TOWN OF
SUNNYVALE, TEXAS, a Texas home rule municipality (hereinafter "Sunnyvale"), and TF
Stoney Creek, LP (hereinafter “Starwood”). Sunnyvale and Starwood shall be collectively
referred to as “Parties” or individually as “Party”.

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement ("Agreement") is for the purpose of providing funding
and construction services for the construction of certain road improvements, as described as
construction of the portion of road highlighted in blue (2.gap) in Exhibit “A”, hereinafter referred to
as the "Project".

WHEREAS, Starwood is the owner of real property located in the Town of Sunnyvale and zoned
for single family residential uses, described as Stoney Creek Development Tract 4 (Phase 4B,
4C); and

WHEREAS, Chapter 212, Subchapter C of the TEXAS LOCAL GOVT. CODE specifically authorizes
municipalities and developers to contract for the construction of public improvements related to a
private development; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Project will benefit all citizens of Sunnyvale by improving traffic flow
and access; and

WHEREAS, a portion of the Project is located near a Sunnyvale Independent School District
school site and will provide access to the school; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to the proposed Project and desire to set forth herein their
respective responsibilities, obligations and rights relative to the construction and funding of the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained herein do mutually agree and understand as follows:

SECTION 1
Incorporation

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are agreed upon and incorporated
herein as a part of this Agreement.

SECTION 2
CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS

2.01 Right of Way. All necessary right-of-way has been obtained prior to the construction of this
project by the Town of Sunnyvale, and all parties shall provide the access necessary to
allow the project to be constructed

2.02

Project Management. Starwood shall act as Project Manager for the construction of the
Project as described and shown on attached Exhibit “A”. The project is defined as
construction of the road depicted in blue (2.gap) on Exhibit “A”. Starwood shall administer
and oversee all contracts and construction work for the Project. The Town of Sunnyvale
shall perform all inspections of the Project and shall accept the Project for maintenance
by the Town once construction is complete and record drawings for the Project have been
completed, submitted to, and approved by the Town.

2.03

Plans and Specifications – Review and Approval. Pursuant to the Funding and
Development agreement, Starwood shall complete and submit plans and specifications
for the Project (hereinafter “Project Plans”) to the Town of Sunnyvale for review and
approval. The Project Plans shall comply with all requirements of the Town of Sunnyvale’s
Code of Ordinances, unified Development Ordinance, Standard Construction Details, and
Engineering Design Manual, copies of which are incorporated herein by reference
(hereinafter “Design Standards”) or otherwise be approved by the Town Engineer. The
Town shall return all comments within thirty (30) business days of receipt of Project Plans,
or any amendment to previously approved Project Plans. The parties agree that the
Sunnyvale Town Engineer shall be responsible for final approval of the Project Plans, and
the Project Plans will not be released for construction until such time as the Sunnyvale
Town Engineer has provided written approval of those Project Plans.

2.04 Construction Standards and Inspection. The Project shall be constructed and inspected
in accordance with applicable state law and Sunnyvale ordinances regulating construction
and development, including without limitation the Design Standards (or Town Engineer

directives). Inspection of the Public Improvements to confirm compliance with applicable
requirements will be either by a third-party inspector or in-house inspector selected by
Sunnyvale.

2.05

Timing Starwood shall begin the project concurrent with the rehabilitation of Nance Road
as per required in the preliminary plat for Stoney Creek Tract 4 (Phase 4B, 4C), item 6,
dated Oct. 25, 2018. Project shall be complete within one year of the date the first phase
is released for construction.

2.06

Final Acceptance Starwood understands and agrees that the Town of Sunnyvale will
be required to make a determination that final acceptance of the Project is appropriate.
The Town shall follow its standard procedures for final acceptance of public infrastructure
of the Project. Upon determination of the Sunnyvale Town Engineer that the Project
complies with all Project Plans and Design Standards, the Town Engineer shall issue a
final acceptance letter for the Project. The maintenance period for the Project shall
commence on the date of issuance of said letter. Sunnyvale shall not issue final
acceptance in phases, segments, or units. Upon completion and final acceptance of the
Project, and after expiration of the Maintenance period, Sunnyvale shall be responsible
for maintenance of public infrastructure of the Project.

SECTION 3
COST

3.01 SUNNYVALE. In return for Starwood constructing the Project, Sunnyvale agrees to waive
the traffic mitigation fees of One Thousand One Hundred dollars and no cents ($1,100.00)
per house in the Stoney Creek Development Tract 4 (Phase 4B, 4C) up to an amount
equal to the total cost of the improvement. The total amount of the waived fees shall not
exceed One Hundred Eighty Thousand Four Hundred dollars and no cents ($184,400.00)
(as allowed by Section 5A3C of Ordinance 463).
In order to receive the waiver of the fees, Starwood agrees to provide Sunnyvale proof of
the agreement for construction and payment of said costs.
Additionally, Sunnyvale agrees to pay a sum of $129,000 from existing traffic mitigation
funds toward the completion of this project (as allowed by Section 5F1 and 5A3C of
Ordinance 463) upon completion of the project. Starwood will present an invoice following
final inspection and Town acceptance of the project. Costs are not to exceed $129,000.
Any costs associated with this project that exceed the $184,400 in fee waivers and
$129,000 payment will be borne by Starwood (or the developer)

SECTION 4

MISCELLANEOUS

4.01

Term. This Agreement shall become effective upon approval by each of the respective
parties and shall remain in effect for a term of two (2) years, unless earlier terminated as
provided herein.

4.02

Consideration. The Parties agree that sufficient consideration for this Agreement exists
and is found in the cross promises set forth above and other good and valuable
consideration paid and services received pursuant to this Agreement. Each of the Parties
hereto paying for the performance of governmental functions or services shall make such
payments from current revenues legally available to the paying party. Each of the Parties
further agree that it is fairly compensated for the services or functions performed under
the terms of this Agreement.

4.03

Termination And Release. Anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding,
upon satisfactory completion and final acceptance of the Project by Sunnyvale, and final
waiver by Sunnyvale this Agreement shall terminate.

4.04 Non Waiver. All rights, remedies and privileges permitted or available to either party under
this Agreement or at law or equity shall be cumulative and not alternative, and election of
any such right, remedy or privilege shall not constitute a waiver or exclusive election of
rights, remedies or privileges with respect to any other permitted or available right, remedy
or privilege. Additionally, one instance of forbearance by either party in the enforcement
of any such right, remedy or privilege against the other party, shall not constitute a waiver
of such right, remedy or privilege by the forbearing party. A default by either party under
this Agreement shall not result in a forfeiture of any rights, remedies, or privileges under
this Agreement by such defaulting party.

4.05

Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended or modified unless such amendment
or modification is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each of the
Parties hereto.

4.06 Assignment. This Agreement may not be sold, transferred, or assigned by any party to
this agreement without written consent from the other party.

4.07 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties
and supersedes all prior agreements, whether oral or written, covering the same subject

matter. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing mutually in
accordance with Paragraph 4.05 herein.

4.08

Notices. Written notice shall be deemed effective as of the date of posting with the United
States mail service. All notices hereunder shall be given in writing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, at the following addresses:

Sunnyvale:

Town of Sunnyvale
127 Collins Road
Sunnyvale, Texas 75182
Attention: Susan Guthrie, Town Manager

TF Stoney Creek, LP
385 Inverness Parkway
Ste. 130
Englewood, CO 80112

4.09

Applicable Law / Venue. This Agreement is entered into under and pursuant to, and is
to be construed and enforceable in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.
Exclusive venue for any action to enforce or construe this Agreement shall lie in Dallas
County, Texas. Both Parties agree to attend mediation over disputes before filing any
action in court.

4.10

Immunity. The fact that the Parties individually and/or collectively accept certain
responsibilities relating to Project under this Agreement as part of their responsibility for
providing public infrastructure makes it imperative that the performance of the obligations
imposed under this Agreement be recognized as a governmental function and that the
doctrine of governmental immunity shall be, and it is hereby, invoked to the extent possible
under the law.

4.11

Severability. In the event that any portion of this Agreement shall be found to be
contrary to law, it is the intent of the Parties hereto that the remaining portions shall
remain valid and in full force and effect to the extent possible.

4.12

Relationship of Parties. The Parties intend that Sunnyvale and Starwood in performing
their obligations hereunder, shall act as independent parties and shall each have control
of their respective obligations and the manner in which its obligations are performed.
Neither Sunnyvale nor Starwood nor their respective employees, contractors, agents,
representatives, or any other person(s) operating under this Agreement on behalf of one
or more of the Parties hereto, shall be considered an agent or employee of any other
Party hereto. Each of the Parties agrees to and accepts full responsibility for the acts,
negligence and/or omissions of their respective employees, contractors, agents,
representatives, or any other person(s) operating under this Agreement on behalf of
such Party.

4.13

No Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement is not intended to affect or create any
additional rights or obligations on the part of third parties.

4.14

Construction of Document. This Agreement is a negotiated document and shall be
deemed drafted equally by all Parties hereto. The language of all parts of this
Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, and any
presumption or principle that the language herein is to be construed against any Party
shall not apply.

4.15

Force Majeure. None of the Parties hereto shall be required to perform any term,
condition, or covenant in the Agreement so long as performance is delayed or prevented
by force majeure, which shall mean acts of God, strikes, lockouts, material or labor
restrictions by any governmental authority, civil riots, floods, and any other cause not
reasonably within the control of such Party and which by the exercise of due diligence
such Party is unable, wholly or in part, to prevent or overcome.

4.16

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in a number of identical counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original for all purposes.

4.17

Boycott . In the case of overseas suppliers, this order is placed subject to the overseas
suppliers being not on the Israeli boycott list.

4.18

Indemnification. Starwood agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town of
Sunnyvale, Texas and all of its present, future, and former agents, employees, officials
and representatives in their official, individual and representative capacities from and
against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, judgments, liens and expenses
(including attorney's fees, whether contractual or statutory), costs and damages
(whether common law or statutory, and whether actual, punitive, consequential or
incidental), of any conceivable character, due to or arising from injuries to persons
(including death) or to property (both real and personal) created by, arising from, or in
any manner relating to the services or goods performed or provided by Starwood to the
fullest extent BUT ONLY TO THE EXTENT allowed under Sec. 271.904(a) of the Texas
Government Code as it relates to this project.

Signed this ____ day of _____, 2019

Town of Sunnyvale
_______________
Susan Guthrie
Town Manager

TF Stoney Creek, LP

______________________
______________________
Craig K. Campbell
Authorized Signatory

EXHIBIT A

PROPOSED CONNECTOR ROAD SEGMENT EXHIBIT
(Next Page)

STONEY CREEK
GATED ENTRY

NANCE ROAD

2. GAP

1. SUNNYVALE
ISD

3. STONEY CREEK MILL &
OVERLAY REQUIREMENT PER
TOWN COUNCIL

4. STONEY CREEK TO PROVIDE
ASPHALT TURN AROUND 50'
EAST OF ENTRY

HOUNSEL ROAD

HOUNSEL AND NANCE ROAD
CONSTRUCTION EXHIBIT

